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Highlights of the Year 2018

2018 FEXNE4C

January

e The Group entered into cooperation
with a new retail star enterprise in
the PRC:

March

e The Sunrise factory of the Group
continued to pass IATF16949
system certification, and secured
automobile EMS business;

April

e The Group entered into cooperation
with a famous international
automobile brand, and tailor-
made a high-end triple protection
(waterproof, dust-proof and shock
resistant) smartphone;

May

e Base on artificial intelligence online
inspection system SIM Intelligent
Manufacturing System entered
into a strategic partnership with a
high speed screen printer machine
brand;

e The Group launched a code-
scanning and identification smart
terminal

June

e Bulk shipment of anti-explosive
version of industrial level (the
highest level) AR glasses tailor-
made for our customers in the
United States. The product is
the world’s first high-level anti-
explosive supporting industrial
head-mounted smart device;

e The Group launched double-screen
handheld game console which can
connect external VR equipment for
immersive game experience;

July

e Based on visual and artificial
intelligence technology, SIM
Intelligent Manufacturing System
launched product defects online
inspection system applicable to
automated mobile display module
production line;

August

e Delivery of the 4G+TETRA
intercom terminal tailor-made for
a Global 500 European enterprise.
The product is a terminal
equipment combining smartphone
and TETRA;

e Sunrise Simcom scooped the
“Top 100 Private Manufacturing
Enterprises in Shanghai” award in
2018;

e The Group launched a food and
drink ordering terminal for the
catering industry;

September

e The Group launched new product
in internet of things for smart cities
applicable to of road municipal
management;

October

e The Group launched internet of
things product applicable to China
Railway Express container logistics
supervision and control;

e The Group launched pollutant
emission real time inspection
system based on visual and
artificial intelligence technology;

November

e The Group launched internet of
things system applicable to cow
herd supervision and control in
husbandry;

December

e The PCBA testing robot whole-
set equipment launched by
SIM Intelligent Manufacturing
System was commonly used
by smartphone manufacturing
industry;

e Based on 4G wireless
communication, the Group
launched an enforcement recorder
with functions including digital
intercom, camera and real time
transmission function.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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.| Chairman’s Statement
ERWwE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM
Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Year”).

For the Year, the Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$238.0 million (2017: HK$111.7 million). The basic
earnings per share was HK9.33 cents (2017: HK4.36 cent).

SPECIAL DIVIDEND AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to announce that at the Board meeting held on
Thursday, 21 March 2019, the Board has resolved to declare a special
dividend (the “Second Special Dividend”) of HK1cent per Share,

amounting to approximately HK$25.0 million in total.

4 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

AAEBRREAMBREEARAR ([A2F)
Ex(85)e((EFEDREAQFI RN
BRAR(SEIAERDBHE—_FT-N\F+_A
=T -RAEFE(AFE]) 22FRERS -

REFE - REBESARNAFERS ARIERN R
238,000,000 7T (—ZZF—+4 1 111,700,000
BIL) c NERESREARRNARIIZEW(=F
—+t4F 1 4.36%() -

BRIRERARBRE
EERMASH  R-B—AFE=A=+—
A EMNARGOESRES EFRCE
BEEER 1B EH) 25,000,000 T804
RIS ([ ERASRIRE. ) -



I

it
(NEREEN
LS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to

shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, operation was difficult for companies involved in real economic
activities in China as a result of the unfavourable domestic and external
economic environment. The different business segments of the Group
thus experienced some tough times. During the Year, the Group made
a revenue of HK$2,312.2 million, representing a 29.0% decrease when
compared with last year. Gross profit decreased by 55.2% year-on-year
to HK$176.9 million, mainly attributable to the disposal of the modules
business and change of the original business model to providing EMS,
which resulted in a substantial drop in revenue and gross profit during
the Year. However, with the gain from the disposal of the modules
business, the Group recorded net profit of HK$215.0 million representing
an increase of 109.6% against last year. Excluding the impact of the
disposal, except for the intelligent manufacturing business which
recorded some profit, all of the Group’s core businesses incurred loss

during the Year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHE

Handsets and 10T terminals business

In 2018, revenue of handsets and IOT terminals business segment
amounted to HK$829.9 million, representing a decline by 22.9% year-
on-year. Gross profit was HK$73.3 million, representing a decrease of
46.3% when compared with last year. Gross profit margin also shrank by
3.9% year-on-year to 8.8%. The decline in revenue and gross profit was
the result of unexpected situations experienced by upstream suppliers
during the Year and in turn the Group was unable to deliver on some
major projects on time. Costs also went up as the Group had to turn to

new suppliers for some raw materials.

Overall, the terminals business has shifted its weight towards 0T/
industrial application terminals business during the Year. |IOT and
industrial terminals business now accounts for an important proportion of
the segment’s revenue and gross profit. The Group designs and produces
various intelligent terminals for customers to use in, e.g. scanning, mobile
point-of-sale, vehicles terminals, intercom network terminals, encryption,
augmented reality glasses and smart bracelets and watches, among
others. The products are highly recognized by high-end customers in
Europe, the US and Japan, who have significantly contributed to the

sales, shipment volumes and gross profit of this business segment.

After a decade of rapid growth, the smartphone market in developed
countries and certain developing countries (e.g. China) has become
saturated with little room to grow. What is left for smartphone brands to
pursue the replacement demand. Since 2018, handset consumption has
seen negative growth worldwide with shipment volume declining amid
fierce market competition. In the end of the Year, China’s real economy
encountered unprecedented challenges, with many consumer handset
businesses collapsing, thereby seriously affecting raw material suppliers
in the handset supply chain. With the capital flow disrupted, many raw
material plants were unable to make delivery and some even stopped

operation.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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Although the Group’s application terminals are not involved to a large
extent in the consumer handset market, with a supply chain catering
heavily to the consumer handset sector, the Group had difficulty securing
the raw materials it requires to produce different products. The Group
was thus unable to deliver a large number of customer orders on time,
and as such saw notable reduction in both annual shipment volumes
and sales when compared with 2017. During the Year, the supply chain
market was in chaos, with capacitor and memory chip prices rocketing
and sometimes, with no supply at all. The Group, affected by its original
suppliers failing to deliver the materials it needed, had to turn to other
channels and acquire more expensive materials. All these put together
pushed up raw material costs of terminals products considerably and the

Group’s gross profit fell short of earlier projection as a result.

Looking forward to 2019, with the overall operating environment
overshadowed by the Sino-US trade conflict and slowing economies, the
Group expects to see further consolidation of handset brands and models
and market competition will become more intense for manufacturers.
Therefore, 2019 will be ridden with uncertainties. Collapses will be likely
in the supply chain and some customers of the Group may face capital
and operating risks. In conclusion, the operating environment in 2019 will
be tougher still, stifling consumption and investment activities to some

extent.

Despite the foregoing, the Group has on hand ample R&D contracts and
product orders. The row between China and the US as well as the industry
reshuffling are also working in its favor in securing new quality customers

and projects overseas. There is therefore cause for optimision.

In 2019, bearing in mind the need to keep operating and customer
risks in check, the application terminals will step up adjusting and
strengthening its supply chain management capability to ensure the
quality and timely delivery of existing orders. Furthermore, it will expand
sales channels in the 10T/industrial application market in Europe, the US
and Japan, so that it will be able to secure more new and high quality 10T/
industrial application customers while providing more diverse products

and services to existing customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHE

EMS business

This business segment, a wireless communication modules business
that was started in 2017, underwent transformation in 2018 and is
focusing on provision of EMS now. The segment achieved revenue of
HK$561.6 million in 2018, representing a decrease of 61.4% when
compared with last year. Gross profit was down by 96.1% year-on-year
to HK$4.9 million and gross profit margin also shrank notably. In the
first quarter of 2018, the Group completed the disposal of the wireless
communication modules business and the original brand manufacturer
(“OBM”) business model was replaced by the EMS operation model. In
August 2018, Shenzhen Sunsea Communication Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Sunsea”) established its own supply chain team and started
procurement of various materials by itself. Hence, materials procured on
its behalf by the Group reduced. As, according to international accounting
standards, incomes derived from different business models are required
to be recognized differently, the procurement made by the Group on
behalf of another operation is not counted towards its revenue, thus the
turnover of the segment for the Year nose-dived. But, on the other hand,
the Group will no longer have to bear the huge costs and operating risks
associated with the R&D team. Moreover, with the bike sharing market

turning for the worse, modules business volume also decreased.

In terms of profit, disposal of the modules business brought handsome
profit to the Group, but not without a price. Having to make appropriate
arrangements for staff and incurring losses from slow-selling inventory
(markedly larger than expected a year ago before Shenzhen Sunsea
had started independent procurement), the Group’s gross profit was
squeezed. Excluding the non-recurring impact of the business disposal,

EMS business still contributed reasonable profit to the Group in 2018.

In 2019, the Group will cooperate with Shenzhen Sunsea via the EMS
business model and it expects to derive a total turnover smaller than
that in 2018. However, the Group is confident of its EMS capability as
its factories boast a superior level of automation and intelligence and its
quality control system is also top-notch in the industry. The Group will
focus on exploring new customers bases and new processing product
categories in the coming year to compensate for the drop in turnover and

gross profit resulting from transformation of the modules business.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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10T system and 020 business

In 2018, this business segment continued to record loss. The loss
stemmed mainly from settling of some fundamental issues in relation to
the winding down of the cloud service platform of the offline automatic
vending machine business. Regarding the segment, the management is
of the opinion that, while new retailing is a hot area for 10T applications,
offline business is not a suitable focus for the Group compared with online
business as the latter matches the Group’s strengths, requires smaller
investment and has easier risks to control. Online business is therefore a
healthier choice for the Group to delve in.

Looking ahead, in 2019, the Group will steadfastly develop and expand its
online business. Taking into account the various types of I0T intelligent
terminals it offers and heeding the application needs of the different
terminals markets, the Group will strengthen the design and R&D of
its data platform, so that it may provide “cloud” system solutions and

services to customers.

Intelligent manufacturing business

Turnover of this business segment amounted to HK$142.5 million in
2018, representing a surge of 40.5% when compared to that of last year.
Gross profit rose by 2.7% year-on-year to HK$40.3 million, whereas gross
profit margin dropped.

The turnover and profit of the business are mainly driven by the industrial
robot products capable of automated testing of printed circuit board
assembly. In 2018, the revenue attributable to the robot products with
automated testing functions increased and a profit was successfully
made. In particular, the robot products’ superb quality, affordability and
stellar reputation have enabled the Group to serve three of the leading
handset brands in China. The robot products have been able to capture
a certain share of the market.

As for non-standard equipment business, the Group’s plan at the
beginning of the Year was to provide customised automated equipment
to a famous handset raw material supplier. However, after the first set of
equipment had been delivered, the supplier was not able to secure orders
from its handset brand customers as expected and it cancelled the order
for few-dozen sets of the equipment it originally wanted to buy eventually.
As the Group had made huge investment in developing the equipment,
it inevitably incurred serious loss. Such loss was the main reason for the
profit and overall contribution of the segment falling short of expectation
despite the notable revenue growth it managed to achieve.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHE

Although it is clear to the Group that its machine vision and Artificial
Intelligence (“Al”) product line and intelligent IOT product line have
huge value for its customers, they are still in investment stage requiring
optimisation and marketing support. They generated a relatively small
turnover and their overall contribution to this business segment was also

small for the Year.

In 2019, although the demand for robotic and intelligence transformation
remains strong, the operating environment will continue to be tough for
the manufacturing industry. Enterprises will be more conservative with
making investment. Given that the automated testing robot market is near
saturation, the Group’s next focus will be exploring new products and
markets. The Group expects the product line to still generate profit. On the
other hand, the Group has halted related investment for the non-standard
equipment business. In 2019, the machine vision and Al product line, the
intelligent 10T product line, are expected to bring profit. The dedicated
efforts made by the Group in the past few years have paid off and it has
built up a strong technological know-how and a solid customer base.
Hence, for the Group, 2019 will be a year full of both opportunities and

challenges.

Property development

As at 31 December 2018, “The Riverside Country” (2 o E#k/KE), in
Shenyang City, the PRC, has a total of 1,842 residential units in all of its
four phases, of which 1,827 units has been sold.

As at 31 December 2018, “Seven River in Sweet” (+EBZ&ZX), in
Taizhou City, the PRC, has a total of 748 residential units, 9 shops and
22 commercial units completed in all of its two phases, of which 747
residential units,7 shops and 22 commercial units have been sold and

delivered to the buyers.

A significant amount of the above properties was sold and delivered to
buyers in the year 2018, resulting in a significant increase in revenue to
HK$409.4 million (2017: HK$306.4 million). Although the gross profit
margin dropped to-5.2% (2017: 16.9%), a large portion of tax refund will
be applied and confirmed in 2019.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

HEEMPIHEREEA LS R E LY
WOEMBHEEAEE  BNBMHER &
E—FTEMINET ISR - il ErE
ERURRNERENERAZ -

T

BEZT—NF - BATISEEBIRATIE L
ftaiieéﬁﬁ%22032§%£§u~ BREMRETS -
EMRERRTBIRT - R EREEHE
AR ARTIEBN T - AEEKEIFER
MERKN™S - NEETEHZE DR’
MeB—HHE  AEEBEIBEAIZEEE
e ZE—NF REBMALIEEERSE &
BEMIE R E AR A EEIRFE o SR
FHHz - ASED 2BLEORITNEEL
B M- NFREBMKEILFRN—
F o

e S

BEZ- \F+-A=+—H  uRhE%
(B [RE o« SMOKER | IBE ~ TIHIHA 1,842
EE=EM - HPREHETH1 Q27 EFEE

fif o

BE_Z-)\F+-A=1+—8 URHEE
MECEFRITEE - “HH T 748EIEE
B - OfEm s M 22 MR EEML - A 7478
EEEBA - 7TEEH R 2B EEMLEBERR
MHEER -

%:%*Aﬁii'ﬁﬁﬁtﬂ%¥aﬁ%

RHHER SRHEEELEAFRAA
@Lﬂimwmwm&d_— +F
306,400,000 7T ) - A EF X THZE —
52%(=ZF—+t%F :169%) * BRAFDSHIE
MR =T —NEFHBRER -



Property management

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of property
management was mainly derived from the leasing of SIM Technology
Building Block A and Block B in Shanghai and factory units in Shanghai
and Shenyang. A total area of approximately 41,000 square meters
was leased out. To utilize our resources more efficiently, the Group is
developing the property management business by leasing out the spare

space at its factories and other buildings.

The revenue of property management for the year 2018 amounted to

HK$50.0 million and the gross profit margin of leasing was 93.0%.

Prospects

Going forward, 2019 is expected to be an even more difficult year for the
Group than the last and filled with uncertainties. The Group will adhere
to the direction of vigorously developing the 10T/industrial application
terminals business. It will push for steady growth, seek opportunities
albeit adverse circumstances, and grasp development opportunities while

keeping risks under good control.

Fortune favors the brave. With all staff members of the Group now
embracing an entrepreneurial mindset, motivating themselves with
pressure and making concerted efforts towards a common goal with
determination and confidence, the management adamantly believes
that although the external environment is hard, the Group will find rapid
growth and triumph in adversity and ultimately establish itself as the

industry leader.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation to
all members of the management and the employees for their efforts and
dedication throughout the Year. Finally, | would like to thank the financial
institutions, Shareholders and investors for their continuous support and

confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2019
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue from handsets and
|OT terminals business, EMS business, 10T system and 020 business
and intelligent manufacturing business (“Core Business”) decreased
by 37.2% to HK$1,852.9 million (2017: HK$2,952.1 million). The
revenue from the sale of residential units in Shenyang and Taizhou, PRC
amounted to HK$409.4 million (2017: HK$306.4 million). The Group has
a new reportable and operating segment named as property management
in 2018 which generated revenue from leasing of properties. In 2018, the
revenue from leasing of properties in Shanghai and Shenyang, PRC was
HK$50.0 million. The total revenue of the Group for the Year, included
revenue of Core Business, properties development and properties
management, amounted to HK$2,312.2 million (2017: HK$3,258.5

million).

The gross profit for Core Business of the Group for the Year decreased by
55.8% year-on-year to HK$151.8 million (2017: HK$343.5 million). The
gross profit margin for Core Business decreased to 8.2% (2017: 11.6%).
The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was 7.7% (2017:
12.1%).

EREH RS

3 el
HEZZ-/\F+-A=T—HLFE  #HE
FH - RR TR MR - BT RIS IRASH
JERZET - MM AEEBREREREEL (1
NER ) Z AR 4 37.2% % 1,852,900,000
Bo(=ZZ —+ & :2952100,0007C ) °
REHEMRPEES KEIMN 2 EEEN
2 WA 409,400,000 T( = T —+ 4
306,400,000 ) e RZZT—\F + KAEH
A AMEMEERNTILREEED
Bk BENRARKREHEENME KT
—N\FE - RPEEEREGHEEMERA
#550,000,0008 7T » REBMPNAFE 2 81
AN BEZROES MEZERMEREERE
MU ) A2,312,200,00058 78 (= Z —+4F -
3,258,500,000787T) °

REBRKNFEZZOEBHEFIZF D
55.8% % 151,800,000/ ;L ( = T — £ 4
343,500,000/87T) © O EBHEFERIE
82% (=T —+4F : 11.6%) - REEMUAEE
BREMERET TN (ZT—HF 1 12.1%) °
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The Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of the Company
which increased year-on-year by 113.2% to HK$238.0 million (2017:
HK$111.7 million) for the Year. The basic earnings per share for the Year
was HK9.33 cents (2017: HK4.36 cents).

Research and development expenses

In 2018, the Group mainly focused on the development of handsets and
|OT terminals business. The number of design and development team
members was 530 (2017: 840) in 2018. Total R&D expenses of the
Group, which amounted to HK$52.2 million (2017: HK$90.6 million),
represented 2.3% (2017: 2.8%) of the Group’s revenue.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the Year decreased
by 20.7% to HK$114.5 million (2017: HK$144.4 million). The ratio of
the selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2018 was 4.9% (2017:
4.4%).

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for 2018 decreased by 0.8% to
HK$121.2 million (2017: HK$122.2 million), representing 5.2% (2017:
3.8%) of the revenue.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EREHBRAN

RAFE  REBSEANRHEE AEERT
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12.8%) °

HERDHERA
REBAFERNHEE R HERARD20.7% %
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EREHHRAN

Segment results of core business

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-E-N\E+-A=1+-HLEE

AVE ST P e

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_E—+&+-fA=1—-RItEE

Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
['ON e EFiES YA E7 EF=
HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %
BEET BEET % BEST BEBT %

Handsets and 10T FREMEARRES
terminals business 829.9 73.3 8.8 1,076.9 136.4 12.7
EMS business BT RUERGHERRY 561.6 4.9 0.9 1,454.9 127.7 838
I0T system and 020 business WIS Z G RiBE K 318.9 333 10.4 3189 40.2 126

Intelligent manufacturing
business B BUERT 142.5 40.3 28.3 1014 39.2 38.7
Total @5t 1,852.9 151.8 8.2 2,952.1 3435 116
Handsets and 10T terminals business FREYB AL RER

The revenue of this segment decreased significantly year-on-year by
22.9% to HK$829.9 million (2017: HK$1,076.9 million) in 2018 due to

the unexpected situations experienced by upstream suppliers and some

major projects could not be delivered on time. In addition, replacement

of some raw material suppliers added to the increase in cost of sales

and the decrease in gross profit. The overall gross profit margin of this

business segment decreased sharply to 8.8% (2017: 12.7%) for the Year.

The revenue of ODM business contributed to approximately 88% of the

revenue of this segment in 2018 (2017: 72%).

B EFEERLEE - LR EROK
N BRZEEZHEE BEEOHZA
ZE-NF RSB WARERNER D
22.9% % 829,900,000 ;w( = T — + F:
1,076,900,000% 7T ) © 1 oh - EpH R B E
RS SR A EFER T - ZEHHE
RNENBEEF R E88% (=T —+F ¢
12.7%) - RZ=Z— )\  ODM EB U AL 1L
DEUAL)88% (—FE—+1F : 72%) ©
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EMS business

On 21 December 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party under which the Group has
conditionally agreed to dispose of two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely
Shanghai Simcom Electronic Limited and Simcom Wireless (collectively
referred to as the “Target Companies”), in relation to its wireless
communication modules business (the Disposal as defined below). The
disposal was completed and consideration was received in full during the
Year, in which the Group lost control in the Target Companies. According
to IFRSs, the gain from disposal of subsidiaries is HK$518.5 million.
However, the Group has incurred professional fees of approximately
HK$2.9 million, additional staff bonus of approximately HK$12.5 million,
redundancy cost of approximately HK$4.1 million, inventories write-
off of approximately HK$71.0 million and EIT on capital gain from the
Disposal of approximately HK$64.4 million. As stated in the circular of the
Company dated 18 January 2018, after deduction of these expenses, the
actual net gain from the transactions contemplated under the sale and
purchase agreement would be approximately HK$363.6 million. Please
refer to the section of “Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries
and Associated Companies” in this annual report for further details of the

Disposal.

Due to the completion of Disposal (the Disposal as defined below) in
2018, the business nature of this segment was changed from OBM to
EMS provider. After the completion of Disposal (as defined below), the
Group does not have to bear the R&D and sales expenses of the modules
business, however the gross profit of EMS is lower than the OBM. In 2018,
the revenue of this segment decreased year-on-year by 61.4% and the
gross profit margin decreased to 0.9% (2017: 8.8%).

10T system and 020 business

During the Year, the revenue of this segment stayed at HK$318.9 million
(2017: HK$318.9 million). However, the gross profit margin decreased to
10.4% (2017: 12.6%). That was mainly due to the winding down of the
cloud service platform of the offline automatic vending machine business

and the Group had to deal with some historical problems and losses.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
ERE S LD

Intelligent manufacturing business

During the Year, due to the excellent quality, good reputation and
reasonable price of the Group’s automatic test robot products, favorable
comments and a large number of orders were received. However, due
to the unexpected failure to obtain the order in non-standard equipment
business, serious losses were incurred. The loss is the main reason which
caused the gross profit and gross profit margin to be less than expected
even though the segment revenue increased significantly during the
Year. The revenue for the Year of this segment increased by 40.5% to
HK$142.5 million (2017: HK$ 101.4 million), while gross profit increased
by 2.7%. The gross profit margin decreased to 28.3% (2017: 38.7%).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$647.8 million (31 December 2017: HK$417.1 million), among which
46.9% was held in Renminbi, 52.8% was held in US dollars and the
remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December
2018, the Group also had pledged bank deposits of HK$57.6 million (31
December 2017: HK$30.1 million) in Renminbi for the purpose of the
Group’s Renminbi borrowings. The Group intends to finance its working
capital and capital expenditure plans from such bank balances. The
Group has pledged certain of its assets (including property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, land use rights and notes receivables)
to secure the bank borrowings. The total bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to HK$83.9 million as at 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: HK$84.1 million), all of which was denominated in Renminbi. All
of the bank borrowings were at floating interest rates and repayable within

one year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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Operating Efficiency
The turnover period of the inventory, trade and notes receivables, trade
and notes payables of the Group for the Core Business are presented

below:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEES BRI
EENER
AEEXTLEB2HFE  BREZERARE

& BNESRFALFENBEM25/0T

2018 2017

—E-N\fF = t5F

Days Days

X PN

Inventory turnover period FEiRE 121 105
Trade and notes receivables turnover period JEWE 5 RN R A HY 55 37
Trade and notes payables turnover period JERTE SRR R B 58 48

In the Year, due to the significant decrease in sales volume, the purchase
and cost of sales of the Group decreased significantly. The inventory

turnover period thus increased as compared to that of year 2017.

The trade and notes receivable turnover period increased for the Year as
compared to that of year 2017 due to the significant decrease in sales for
the Year.

The trade and notes payables turnover period increased for the Year as
compared to that of year 2017 due to the increased in average balance of

trade and notes payables for the Year.

As at 31 December 2018, the current ratio, calculated as current assets

over current liabilities, was 3.1 times (31 December 2017: 1.9 times).

The Group reckons that inventory turnover period, trade and notes
receivables turnover period, and trade and notes payables turnover
period help the Group to understand its ability to convert inventory
into cash and sales and cash conversion cycle. Through reviewing the
turnover periods, the Group can improve its operational efficiency. The
current ratio can help the Group to understand its ability to pay short-term

and long-term obligations.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
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Treasury Policies
The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The Group’s
surplus funds are mainly held under fixed and savings deposits in

reputable banks to earn interest income.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are denominated
in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and bank borrowings are denominated in US dollars,
therefore exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars. As at
31 December 2018, the Group did not use any financial instrument for
hedging purpose but it will consider entering into non-deliverable foreign
exchange forward contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposures

in US dollars when necessary.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 2,520,254,300 ordinary

shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

No shares of the Company has been issued during the Year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis S N
EE ERE SR
CASH FLOW STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS BERERFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E
HK$’million HK$'million
BEAR BEAT
Net cash from operating activities RELETH RS FE 250.4 380.2
Capital expenditure = ZNE RS (45.6) (53.5)
Development costs FAEEA A (166.0) (201.1)
Net increase (decrease) in bank borrowings SRITEEEMCRD) F58 4.4 (236.6)
Net decrease in entrusted loan receivables EEEE R FEE - 76.6
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BELREMBHIE
plant and equipment 5.5 2.4
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEERBARZFRESRA 536.7 =
Bank interest paid SAHERITHIE (6.2) (9.0)
Dividend paid XATIRE (143.3) (25.6)
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders BIEMTE A TR AR R 2 58
of subsidiaries - (35.6)
Deposits received from disposal of subsidiaries 2 W HEHBA T 214 - 62.4
Consideration received from disposal of Bl E—RHBE AR ZRE
an associate - 10.1
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities Hih & & O 150 (109.8) 141.2
Purchase of license BEAE (26.2) -
Purchase of financial asset at FVTPL BEERATEFTABREZ
BREE (25.9) -
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI BERAVEFAREMET
Was 2 AT A (7.5) -
Repurchase of shares A (11.8) -
Others Efth 3.4 9.9
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents e RIS EEEB BINFRE
(including pledged bank deposits) (BREEERRITENR) 258.1 121.4
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2018, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$2,972.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$3,630.4 million) and the
bank borrowings was HK$83.9 million (31 December 2017: HK$84.1
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank

borrowings over total assets, was 2.8% (31 December 2017: 2.3%).

The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
the capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue
for shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital structure
is being constantly adjusted according to changes in the operational

environment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

On 21 December 2017, the Company, Simcom International (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), Shenzhen Sunsea (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), Simcom Electronic
and Simcom Wireless entered into the sale and purchase agreement
(“Sale and Purchase Agreement”) under which Simcom International
has conditionally agreed to sell, and Shenzhen Sunsea has conditionally
agreed to purchase, 100% of the equity interest of Simcom Wireless

(“Disposal”).

The transactions as contemplated under the Disposal have been
completed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

On 23 May 2018, the Board has resolved to declare a special dividend
of HK4 cents per Share, amounting to approximately HK$102.4 million
in total, from the net proceeds of the Disposal. On 21 March 2019, the
Board declared another special dividend in the aggregate amount of

approximately HK$25.0 million from the net proceeds of the Disposal.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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Further details of the Disposal are disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 21 December 2017, 13 February 2018, 10 May 2018
and 23 May 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 18 January
2018.

Please refer to the section of “Special Dividend and Final Dividend” in this

annual report for further details of the Second Special Dividend.

On 28 December 2018, # B BEEZFZENXK(LE) ER QA
(Shanghai Simcom System Limited*) (“Shanghai Simcom”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Tang Yuanyi (JE7T3&) (“Mr.
Tang”), entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Shanghai Simcom has agreed to sell 81.25% of its entire equity
interests in BB ERAEEEEKARR AT (Shanghai Boshen Vending
Machine Limited*) (“Shanghai Boshen”) at the aggregate consideration
of RMB6.0 million. On the same day, Shanghai Boshen, /82 & #7849
B AR 23] (Shanghai Yunmao IOT Limited*) (“Shanghai Yunmao”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Tang entered into
the instalment payment agreement in respect of the repayment of the
aggregate sum of RMB9,588,566.68 by Shanghai Boshen to Shanghai

Yunmao.

Further details of the above mentioned disposal are disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 28 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, the Group did not have any

material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
As at 31 December 2018, the equity instrument at FVTOCI represented

the Group’s investment in 2.73% of the shares in Shanghai Guao
Electronic Technology Co.,Ltd (“Shanghai Guao”) (“Investment”) and
the Investment cost was approximately HK$13.5 million. During 2016,
Shanghai Guao became listed on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. The fair value, based on the quoted market price, of the
Investment at 31 December 2018 is approximately HK$38.6 million (31
December 2017: HK$80.3 million). The Group received dividends in the
amount of HK$146,000 from Shanghai Guao during the Year. Shanghai
Guao specializes in the research and development, manufacturing,
marketing and service of innovative financial equipment. The Group
noted the development strategy of Shanghai Guao as stated in its annual
report for the year 2017 issued on April 2018, that Shanghai Guao will
focus on new financial products based on its existing production system
and technology reserve. Shanghai Guao will continue to develop its
technology so as to improve its sales and after-sale service. Shanghai

Guao will develop projects in relation to automated cash treatment.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 1,760 (2017:

2,540) employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme for all of its employees in Hong Kong, and
provides its PRC employees with welfare schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group also offers
discretionary bonuses and may grant share options under the share
option scheme of the Company to its employees by reference to individual
performance and the performance of the Group. Total staff costs incurred
by the Group amounted to HK$303.1 million (2017: HK$308.0 million)
during the Year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of the

employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board,
having regard to factors including the Group’s operating results,
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management and comparable

market statistics.

The Company adopted a pre-listing share option scheme to recognise
and reward the contribution of certain Directors and employees of the
Group to the growth and development of the Group. The Company
has adopted share option scheme, the primary purpose of which is to
motivate the eligible persons referred to in the scheme, which include
executive Directors and employees of the Group, to optimise their future
contributions to the Group and to reward them for their efforts. Details of
the share option schemes of the Company are set out in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
As stated in the circular of the Company dated 18 January 2018, the

Group intends to use part of the net proceeds from the Disposal in the

following manner:

- as to approximately HK$201.5 million for purchase of the land
for the Group’s operations centre in Dongguan, the PRC and the

construction of the operation centre; and

- as to approximately HK$115.1 million for (a) upgrading the
production facilities of the Group in Shanghai and the above
operations centre and development of an automated intelligent
3D-warehouse; (b) further implementation of the digitizating,
networking and intelligent processes by Industry 4.0; and (c)
enhancing the competitiveness of the high-end handsets original
design manufacturing (“ODM”) and Electronics Manufacturing

Services (“EMS”) businesses.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EREIRRAN

R BUR

A B2 EEFMEREANERDES - &
SEIRBIER 2N - B8 RN TR EH B
il -

EXLEREREZMEERARRHMER
GE2EARERERE EEREREREMN
APEZ B ERAMELLER Z GG BURIRETT
=R -

RABEHRN— T8 E XA E R R ERT
2 AR RERAEERE THAEBIER R
EEEHEMNEZRES - ARREHRM—
T ARRERT S - EEE M AEETEIFT R
REBATEEREBTEANNEERATRA
B BAREMERERER - WEIHRESATEL
M5 ) - EEARRER 81 2 SR E RS B TS ek
MizE37 -

AREAREE
EARRZE—N\E—A+/\RZBRHH
AEBERA TR ER S FE 2 BHHE
g

—  #9201,500,0007%8 7T A 1E & B L 7A /R B
Ree E’Jﬂ%ﬁ/\@i@zﬁ‘il#i%bé’\]im
FRARZEERLREE &

—  #)115,100,000& TR E(a) EXAKE

R EBREERER DREERL - KA
REEBBLEEIDAE  (DE—FE
= i
iR

il

BEZXAOHBHBL )RR RMmTH#
[REAFRETBLE (ODM) R E FRUERFH
e (EMS) ETSE i Z 7] -

RANMBZEBGRAE —F/FFH

.‘ 4
-

25



26

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
ERE S RO

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any plans for material

investment or capital assets during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 3 January 2019, Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited (“SYRE"), a non-

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and /824 R EBR A7
(Shanghai Chenyu Investment Limited*) (“Shanghai Chenyu”), entered
into a loan agreement, pursuant to which SYRE shall provide a loan in
the principal amount of RMB33.0 million to Shanghai Chenyu. The loan
bears interest at the rate of 4.35% per annum and is repayable on 31
December 2019. Details of the above are disclosed in the announcement

of the Company dated 3 January 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no significant events of the

Group since the end of the Year.
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Development Concept of SIM Technology
EARERNERES

HEXTN
B B |

e

oy

EDERN: KT KITEFTR
| KX TR
= ' BEI%{%EH:E« =

BlsE

p-L o i Xl

B4

LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term values for our customers,
shareholders and employees.

TARGETED AT MARKET LEADERS

Our target is to make the Company the leader in global wireless
communication terminals product solutions and services. All employees
of the Group are fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the
target.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED WITH CONTINUOUS
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We attend to, in a timely manner, and
continue to satisfy customers’ needs, through continuous innovation in
technology and management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as
employees.
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Care for our Future
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MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision, the
Group aims to provide the world with a light of betterment through our
continuous efforts.

Support from the community is vital to corporate development, thus giving
back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of our
limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take up
our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group) should
not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich ourselves
spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can share our
charitable culture and carry it out so as to create a better and more

harmonious future together.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and started
from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENERERBAER

DIRECTORS

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), aged 74, is the chairman
of the Company and an executive Director and a director of
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited. Mrs Wong is responsible
for developing direction and strategies of the Group. Mrs Wong
together with her spouse, Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong"),
an executive Director, were the founders of the Company.
Over the years, Mrs Wong and Mr Wong had established a
number of companies which engaged in the electronics and
telecommunications business including Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”), one of the
Group’s main operating subsidiary which was established in
November 1993. Mrs Wong has over 20 years of operational
and management experience in the electronics and
telecommunications industry. Mrs Wong lectured at the Electrical
Department of the South China University of Technology in 1977.
Mrs Wong has been a guest professor at Tongji University since
2003. Mrs Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently known as Beihang
University), specialising in electrical engineering.

Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong"), aged 74, is an executive
Director and the president of the Group. Mr Wong is responsible
for participating in formulation of the direction, strategies and be
responsible for the development plan of the new business of the
Group. Mr Wong is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM Technology
Limited (“Shanghai SIM Technology”), a director of Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom and SIM Technology HK Limited (“SIM
Technology (HK)”). Mr Wong is also the director of Info Dynasty
Group Limited and Intellipower Investments Limited, both of
which are the substantial Shareholders. Mr Wong together with
his spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive Director, was the founder
of the Company. Mr Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently known as
Beihang University), specialising in electrical engineering. Mr
Wong has decades of experience in the electrical, electronics and
telecommunications industry.
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Ms Tang Rongrong (“Ms Tang”), aged 65, is an executive
Director, vice president of the business operation headquarter
(located in Shanghai, PRC) of the Group and a director of
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited,
Shanghai Mobile Phone Public Testing Platform Co., Ltd and
Shanghai SIM Technology. Ms Tang has nearly 20 years of
experience in human resources management, administration
and corporate operation. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, Ms
Tang was a physician of JTFAE /T E— ARE (Jiangxi
Ganzhou First People’s Hospital) and the head of technology and
deputy chief physician of & m#t&E|4FEERT (Nanchang
Birth Planning Institute). Since then, Ms Tang has served as
the manager and deputy general manager of the personnel
and administration department of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom.
Ms Tang graduated from % & 2= RIZ4T (Gannan Medical
College) in 1978.

Mr Liu Jun (“Mr Liu”), aged 46, is an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Group. Mr Liu is fully
responsible for the overall management of the Group. Mr Liu
graduated with a bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering
from FKEAZ (Tianjin University) in 1994 and was awarded
a master's degree in information technology from Fg R & E 22
B (unofficial English translation being Nanjing Institute of Post
and Telecommunications) (currently known as FJRESE AL
(Nanjing University of Post and Telecommunications)) in 1997.
Mr Liu has extensive experience in the field of telecommunication
technology and software programmes development. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr Liu has worked for the mobile research
and development centre of Motorola in Beijing and was
responsible for the development of telecommunication software
programmes. Mr Liu has also worked for China Techfaith Wireless
Communication Technology Limited, a company listed on the
NASDAQ of the United States of America (“US”), from August
2002 to March 2007, in various positions including as a director,
chief operating officer and executive senior vice president. Mr Liu
was appointed as an executive Director in June 2015.

Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr HH Liu"), aged 56, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee
of the Board and the chairman of the remuneration committee
of the Board. Mr HH Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong and also a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. Mr HH Liu now runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over ten years of
experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and corporate
finance. Mr HH Liu is also an independent non-executive director
of Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (stock code: 887), a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) from May 2017. Mr HH
Liu was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
September 2008.

Mr Wang Tianmiao, aged 59, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr Wang Tianmiao has been a professor at Beihang
University in the PRC since 1995. Mr Wang Tianmiao was (i) a
member of the Academic Subject Assessment Expert Panel of
the Academic Committee of the State Council of the PRC; (ii)
the expert panel leader of the national “863 Programme” on
robotics technology; (iii) the deputy leader of the Expert Panel
Meeting of the Manufacturing Industry Informatization Project of
the China Automation Association; (iv) a member of the Robotics
Professional Committee of the Ministry of Science and Technology
of the PRC; (v) the honourary department head at the Graduate
School of Robotics of Beihang University; (vi) a supervisor of each
of the major laboratory of the mechanic industrial service robot
and the artificial intelligence and robotics engineering technology
centre of Beihang University; and (vii) the deputy councillor
of the Academic Committee of Beihang University. Mr Wang
Tianmiao’s research areas mainly focus on advanced robotics
technology, and he has achieved outstanding results in the
research development of medical robots, bionic mechanical fish
and embedded intelligent control. Mr Wang Tianmiao obtained
a bachelor’s degree from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1982, a
master’s degree from the Northwestern Polytechnical University in
1987, and a doctoral degree from the Northwestern Polytechnical
University in 1990 in the PRC. From 1990 to 1995, Mr Wang
engaged respectively in the postdoctoral surface mobile robot
programme for the State Key Laboratory of Intelligent Technology
and System in Tsinghua University and the postdoctoral surgical
robot programme for the National Biomimetic Laboratory in Italy.
Mr Wang Tianmiao has been an independent director of Goertek
Inc. (MEAXDEMRAR]), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002241), since April 2016. Mr Wang Tianmiao has been an
independent director of Shanghai STEP Electric Corporation (
JEFEREERIRM AR AR]) (stock code: 002527) from June
2017.Mr Wang Tianmiao was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in April 2017.
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Mr Wu Zhe (previous name Wu Aihu) (“Mr Wu"), aged 62, is
an independent non-executive Director. Mr Wu has been the
professor at Beihang University in the PRC since October 1993
and the deputy principal at Dongguan University of Technology
in the PRC since 2015. During the period from May 1991
to October 1993, Mr Wu was the lecturer and the associate
professor in aircraft design of Beihang University. From 1997
to 2004, he was the deputy principal of Beihang University. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Wuhan Institute of Construction*
(EUEZEMEPT) (currently known as Wuhan University of
Technology) in 1982, a doctoral degree from Harbin Institute
of Architecture* (RSFR/EZE T2t ) (currently known as Harbin
Institute of Technology) in 1988 and a postdoctoral certificate
from Northwestern Polytechnical University in 1991 in the PRC.
Mr Wu was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in April 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Chan Chi Yin (“Ms Chan”), CPA, aged 40, is the chief
financial officer and company secretary of the Company.
Ms Chan joined SIM Technology (HK) in April 2017 and is
responsible for the financial reporting of the Group. Ms Chan
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 28
June 2017 and appointed as the chief financial officer of the
Company on 29 June 2018. Ms Chan is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over ten
years of experience in the field of accounting. Ms Chan obtained
a Bachelor of Business Administration degree with majoring in
Accountancy and a Master of Science Programme in Finance
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors
EEIWE

The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year (“Report”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 74.

The Board does not recommend the payment of the final dividend to the

Shareholders for the Year.

There was no arrangement with any Shareholder under which he/she/it

has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2018 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 are set out on page 243 of

the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and land use rights of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year

are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES

During the 12 months ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
repurchased 51,136,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange.
The repurchase shares were cancelled subsequently in August 2018,
September 2018, October 2018, December 2018 and January 2019.

Details of the repurchase were as follows:

Month of
repurchase

BmE R

July 2018
August 2018
September 2018
October 2018
November 2018
December 2018

Other than the shares repurchased by the Company disclosed above,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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2,400
3,420
15,718
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51,136
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
31 December 2018 were approximately HK$372,180,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and accumulated
profit of approximately HK$178,332,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)
Ms Tang Rongrong
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard
(resigned with effect from 28 September 2018)
Mr Liu Jun (Chief executive officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wang Tianmiao

Mr Wu Zhe

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors

and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571,

Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise

notified to the Company and Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)

as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of director

E=pR

Mr Wong Cho Tung
FERALE

Ms Yeung Man Ying
BB+

Ms Tang Rongrong
ERmt

Mr Liu Jun
AERE

Nature of interest

EEME

Corporate interest (note 1)
ARV (H5E 1)

Personal interest

fEL AR

Total
B

Corporate interest (note 2)
NEfER (Hit2)
Personal interest
EAER

Total
B

Personal interest
AR
Personal interest

fEL AR

Total number of
ordinary shares
of the Company
YN
BERAY

1,209,084,000

3,098,000

734,857,000

3,418,000

1,000,000
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EBITRABRAA RS E T ARRERZ
- BRER D RIES (EE R &5 MR
EXVER(FREDIFS71E) ([BHRPE K
1)) BB AR AR B 5 S B R AR SR 3521 F 8%
RARRATHFZELMT - SUREH A
KPR EmAR (T EMARAID) K% 104 £
METABFETESIHORETA (1R
STRID) ARG AR B R P 2 s SR B TR
I

BEXRRARRGZHFR
Approximate
percentage of
Underlying interest in
shares of the Company
the Company Total  {EAAFER
HER 5 By BAESH
(note 3)
(K15£3)
1,209,084,000 47.97%
3,098,000 0.12%
1,212,182,000 48.09%
734,857,000 29.16%
3,418,000 0.13%
738,275,000 29.29%
4,446,000 4,446,000 0.18%
936,000 1,936,000 0.08%
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Notes:

1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting power
of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr Wong is therefore deemed to
be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty in the Company
by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Mr Wong is the sole director of Intellipower
Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited (“Simcom (BVI)”") is
wholly-owned by Mr Wong. Therefore, Mr Wong is deemed to be interested in all
the 454,227,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares held by Intellipower and Simcom
(BVI) respectively in the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO respectively.

2. Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls more than
one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore deemed to
be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty by virtue of Part
XV of the SFO.

3. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share
capital of 2,520,254,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

Share option schemes
Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options are set out in note 37 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year nor at the
end of the Year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,

or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined in
the Listing Rules), to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was

entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling Shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and there is no contract of
significance in relation to provision of services to the Company or any of

its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors nor the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business apart from the Company’s business,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with

the business of the Company during the Year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 28 December 2018, #IBEEEFRHEN (LE) BR AT (in
English, for identification purpose only, as Shanghai Simcom System
Limited) (“Simcom System”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as vendor) and Mr. Tang Yuanyi (B7t3) (“Mr. Tang”)
(as purchaser) entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“SP
Agreement”), pursuant to which Mr. Tang agreed to purchase and
Simcom System agreed to sell 81.25% of the entire equity interests
in bBEEHABEE#ARAE] (in English, for identification purpose
only, as Shanghai Boshen Vending Machine Limited) (“Shanghai

Boshen”), at the consideration of RMB6.0 million.

Shanghai Boshen is principally engaged in the operation of vending
machines in the PRC. Due to fierce competition in the market for
the operation of vending machines in the PRC, the disposal was an

opportunity for the Group to realise its investment in Shanghai Boshen.

On 28 December 2018, Shanghai Boshen (as the debtor), /&%
BRI AR AR (in English, for identification purpose only,
as Shanghai Yunmao 10T Limited) (“Shanghai Yunmao”) (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the creditor) and Mr. Tang (as the
guarantor) entered into the instalment payment agreement in respect
of the repayment of certain trade related due amount in the aggregate
sum of RMB9,588,566.68 by Shanghai Boshen to Shanghai Yunmao.

Immediately before the signing of the SP Agreement, Shanghai Boshen
was owned as to 18.75% by Mr. Tang. In addition, Mr. Tang is a
director of a subsidiary of the Company. Upon completion of the SP

Agreement, Shanghai Boshen has become an associate of Mr. Tang.
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Therefore, each of the SP Agreement and the Instalment Payment
Agreement constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and was subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but was exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’ approval

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong) was and is

being in force for the benefit of the Directors.

The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of substantial
Shareholders and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Total number of
ordinary shares

percentage of
interest in the

of the Company Company

Name of shareholder Nature of interest RAEATZ A D TR

BRRES ERME ZERROEE ZBHANBED

(note 1)

(Btat1)

Info Dynasty (note 2) Personal interest 734,857,000 29.16%
(Krzt2) E AR

Intellipower (note 3) Personal interest 454,227,000 18.02%
(K15%3) 8 A
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Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share
capital of 2,520,254,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr Wong and the relationship between
Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong is disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares” above.

3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr Wong is disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares”
above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, there is no other
substantial Shareholders or persons who had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in

note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the five largest customers and suppliers accounted for less

than 30% of the Group’s total sales and purchases respectively.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall

offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the

preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication
of future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion & Analysis” in this annual report. That

discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties
A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the

Group. Major risks are summarized below.

1. Concentration of brands in consumer communication terminals
and overcapacity resulted from the drop in demand have led to
the risk of a substantial number of design companies moving
towards the downstream of the industry, as well as the risk of
interruption of supply due to the close down of enterprises at the
upstream supply chain:

In recent years, saturation of smartphone market has made the
handset market turns from the increment market to the existing
market in a short while. Handset manufacturers including those
well-known handset brands have recorded decrease in sales
volume, leading to merger, winding up, bankruptcy and transfer

occurring from time to time among companies in the upstream
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and downstream in the industry chain. Overcapacity occurs
immediately, which means too much supply in relative to demand.
Meanwhile, production capacity adjustment will inevitably lead
to certain risks such as diluted profits, and increasing marketing
and channel’s cost. People that previously engaged in ODM are
moving towards the downstream of the industry, resulting in a
more competitive downstream and a lower profit margin. Moreover,
some of the upstream custom parts suppliers were closed down
or suspended operation due to liquidity problem, as a result,
our production has been interrupted and we need to seek for
an alternative suppliers, all these have exposed us to the risk of

supplies delivery.

The Group has accelerated the transformation with more
involvement of developing industrial application terminals.
Currently, products applied in industry contribute more than a half
of the whole telecommunications and terminal segment. We strive
for first-mover advantage and a bigger market share. We have also
put more effort on managing the supply chain and have deployed
more resources on monitoring the delivery capability and quality
of our upstream suppliers, all these have alleviated the operational

risk of our downstream business.

Risks related to the expansion of automated intelligent
manufacturing business:

In terms of the automated intelligent manufacturing business,
we focus on the automatization of the production line of
communication terminals. The Group is familiar with such
modification. However, given that more enterprises are equipping
themselves with auto test, our modification business is shrinking
accordingly. For those manufacturers that do not have auto test,
they do not feel the need to modify their production lines as
their communication terminal business is also going downhill.
The risk of a shrinking business volume for our automatization
business emerges. Thus, we are expanding our business towards
both the upstream and the downstream of the supply chain of
communication terminals. By offering automatization services
to component suppliers, we are expanding our business and
diversify the product line of our automated products, especially for
the expansion of the product line of industrialized automatization

project based on visual identity Artificial Intelligence.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

BEHERBAR  HEEARFER B
MERNBELNTERABHEE £
KEBRANIEINERR - E5H &
DRBFHODMILEE BERRTTEL
R BT RAITTRERIRBA L
FH - BETERN - RIS LFER
HHECXHRESAEIE - AR
¥ ERBRALETE  FRERSK
¥RV —(HIER - TR R

REBMMAEINNE  BZHBETE
ERBBERMOFME  BATTERE
M E RO AR EBRGERMIREE
BE—FA L AHFREED  EX
TTREENTIZEAE - RARMAHE
BER  RAEZNEEE FHER
R RENMmE - MR T RimE
IR E RS -

B BL EREREF B ERR R -

BEMLEREREXHRMTIBEETES
B L B AR A B A A R A AR R B BL
MEER - BREZEAECFE MBS
AR RAENEFES T - MAPLE
BRBEREES EENESCARAZNT
TR B A AN B B AR AR o RS RO AR - 08
BERNELEGNBEE - EEMEKT
HEMEBUEXRBE TRMRAR - R
P95 22 HE 3 765 THD [ 38 AL A% s O | T 3
EEER - AL FRERER B
Mg BEREBENRT - AKEER
PMEBERMERS  FHREEX
ANRBEBIATEZANITEASL
BUEEREMR - FEITEEE -



3.  Risks related to management of receivables from the Internet of
Things operation service:
In terms of the Internet of Things operation service, we are engaged
in the wholesale and logistics services of beverages and food.
Currently we offer credit for payments for goods to small and
medium automated vending machine operators in general, and
there are risks that we are unable to collect payments for goods
from such small operators. Fast payments are expected when sales
are robust in peak seasons, however, payments can be slow or
are even delayed when sales are sluggish in off seasons. We have
a relatively large number of small and medium operators as our
customers, which causes risks related to receivables.

In respect of controlling receivables of 10T, we adopt quota
management system and warning management system, and
require responsible divisions to maintain responding invoices
properly to control risks to the reasonable limit.

Key Relationships

The Group'’s success also depends on the support from key relationships
with employees, suppliers and customers.

1.  Employees

The Company is committed to value every talent and emphasizes
that excellent employees are valuable assets for the Company. We
pay attention to self-improvement of staff and give them a working
environment full of fairness, openness, sincerity, warmth and
opportunities. Our competitive remuneration system brings long-
term and stable return for staff and also takes into account the
long-term and stable development of the Company. We determine
staffs’ remuneration and promotion based on their capacity and
contribution to the Group. The Company recognizes staff with
outstanding performance and the same values with the Company
as valuable assets. We keep trying our best to provide promising
career prospect and a platform for them to display their talents
fully. Therefore, the Company not only helps our employees to
improve their knowledge, skills and experience through performing
their own duties, but also creates good conditions in facilities and
environment suitable for their development. To facilitate the proper
allocation and development of high caliber talents, the Company
has set up an employee career development system which focuses
on both management and technical skills. Through this system,
each outperforming key member can seize the opportunity to
improve overall abilities by various ways. The Company aims to
create conducive conditions for talents to demonstrate themselves
and grow through career, and also build solid team with talents.
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2.  Suppliers
The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation with
suppliers with good reputation in accordance with the principle
of mutually beneficial cooperation and international standards
such as 1SO9001, 1SO14001 and OHSAS18001. We use a strict
social responsibility management system to manage our suppliers,
ensure that the quality of materials provided by the supplies meets
our requirements and their production management systems also
comply with requirements on environment, occupational health
and safety management system as stated in relevant laws and
regulations. We also make cost and delivery plans in advance to

meet delivery demand.

3. Customers

We establish complete management systems in compliance
with national standards and abroad, as well as well-known
clients’ requirements, which cover product quality, environment,
occupational health and safety, information security and product
safety management. Through survey on clients’ satisfaction we
conduct every year, our clients express their positive feedback on
quality, logistics, cost and service. Among our clients all over the
world, both new and old well-known clients supervise and inspect
each management system of the Company every year. Apart from
this, our Company also implements Key Performance Indicator
(KP1), internal control scheme, management appraisal program
in every aspect. In order to continuously enhance management
systems of the Company, we set up a specific department to
supervise operation and pass the results to the management on a

regular basis to review.

Environmental policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of our business,
but the responsibility of each of us. We initiate and strive to minimize our
environmental impact by using water saving facilities, saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. We also
operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations
and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval from the
PRC regulators. The Group also has environment policies to reduce

emission, raise efficiency use of resources and reduce pollution.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Our operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws.
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have

significant impact to the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In particular, as the Group’s business involves manufacturing, the
Group’s operation is regulated by environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the year under review, the Group did not

have any material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.
On behalf of the Board

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong

21 March 2019
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to the
Shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasise a Board with high quality, sound internal control,

transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Save as mentioned below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during
the Year.

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the then prevailing Corporate Governance
Code requires the chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least
annually with the non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) without the executive Directors present. As Ms Yeung
Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, is also an executive Director, the
Company has deviated from this code provision as it is not applicable.
Currently, the chairman of the Board may communicate with the non-
executive Directors on a one-to-one or group basis periodically to
understand their concerns, to discuss pertinent issues and to ensure that

there is access to adequate and complete information.

In respect of code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company does not have a nomination committee. At present,
the Company does not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new Directors
from time to time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company, and the Board as a whole is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and reviewing
the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the chairman of the
Board.
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According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer

questions at the annual general meeting.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2018
(2018 AGM"), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to an unexpected business engagement. Mr Chan
Tat Wing, Richard, an executive Director and the chief finance officer of
the Group, chaired the 2018 AGM on behalf of the chairman of the Board
pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company and was available to answer
questions. Mr Liu Hing Hung, an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Board and the audit
committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”), was also available at the

2018 AGM to answer questions from Shareholders.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the Company
by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and effective
manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its

Shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

—_

setting the Company’s mission and values;

formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate
performance;

4. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members; and

5. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial

reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that

appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices
As at 31 December 2018 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised four executive Directors and three independent non-executive

Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wang Tianmiao

Mr Wu Zhe

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on

pages 30 to 33 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business or family relationship) with each
other as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing

Rules.

During the Year, the roles of the chairman, president and the chief
executive officer were separated in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility in compliance with the
requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. During the Year, the role of the chairman was performed by Ms
Yeung Man Ying who was responsible for developing direction and
strategies of the Group. During the Year, the role of the president was
performed by Mr Wong Cho Tung who was responsible for formulating
the direction, strategies and the development plan of the new business of
the Group. During the Year, the chief executive officer of the Group was
performed by Mr Liu Jun, during his tenure, he took up the responsibility
of the overall management of the Group’s product and business planning,
including management of product definition, sales, procurement,

production and delivery.
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The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management including
the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by the Board
and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board before public
reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Bye-laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. Directors shall have full access to information on the
Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. No request was made by any Director
for such independent professional advice during the year. The Company
Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of matters discussed
and decisions resolved at all Board meetings, which will be available for

inspection by Directors upon request.
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The Board held four meetings and the Company held two general
meetings in 2018. The following is the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company for the
Year:

Number of general Number of Board
meeting attended/  meetings attended/

Number of general Number of Board

Name of Director meeting held meetings held
Ms Yeung Man Ying 0/2 4/4
Mr Wong Cho Tung 0/2 4/4
Ms Tang Rongrong 0/2 4/4
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard

(Resigned with effect from

29 September 2018) 2/2 4/4
Mr Liu Jun 02 4/4
Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/2 4/4
Mr Wang Tianmiao 02 4/4
Mr Wu Zhe 02 4/4

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board is
responsible for nominating appropriate person, either to fill in casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors for election by

Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

In December 2018, the Company adopted a nomination policy which
sets out the selection criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate as Director. Such criteria include but not limited to academic
background, qualifications, relevant experiences in the industry,
character and integrity of the proposed candidate. Suitable candidate
can be nominated by any Director. The Board should evaluate the
personal profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria as set
out in the nomination policy and undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of each proposed candidate. After comprehensive assessment,
the nomination committee will then make appropriate recommendations
to the Board for approval. All appointments of Directors will ultimately be
based on merit while taking into account the measurable objectives with

regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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As and when circumstances required, the Board will meet to discuss
nomination of new Directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Board will base on objective criteria, with due regard
to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the board diversity policy of the
Company (“Board Diversity Policy”) as well as the requirements under the

Listing Rules and the nomination policy of the Company.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years at each annual general meeting
of the Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. During
the Year, the Board had in place the Board Diversity Policy in accordance

with the Corporate Governance Code.

According to the diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company,
the Board takes into account various elements of diversity including
but not limited to age, gender, cultural and educational background,
skills, professional knowledge, and industry experience in determining
the appointment and reappointment of the Directors and proposed
candidates. All Directors appointments are based on meritocracy and due
regard is given to the Board’s diversity to ensure the Company can obtain

the benefits of such diversity.
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During the Year, the Board was satisfied with the diversity of the existing
Board composition and did not, for the time being, set up any measurable

objective regarding board diversity.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a

regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board has reviewed the
policies and practices and compliance by the Company and has reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development of

the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory

requirements.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company has provided regular updates to the
Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest
business development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that they
have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Ms
Yeung Man Ying, Mr Wong Cho Tung, Ms Tang Rongrong, Mr Chan Tat
Wing, Richard (resigned on 29 September 2018), Mr Liu Jun, Mr Liu
Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe, have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors
such as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics related to

telecommunications industry.

During the Year, the company secretary of the Company has fully
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15
hours of professional training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its goals of providing
packages which can attract, retain and motivate Directors with required

qualities for running the Company successfully.

Corporate Governance Report
EEARME

HEBERE

RAFERN - NARTEHBERREZESREHRE
ARESERARFZHRERTE L EANE S &
AR TERAEER{BEARARFE
BERZER -EEHR  KEDETEEE
JASTRIZ SFRAHEX B A6SIEBEBESEIZ
HE -RAFER  2BESH XL F
HREE - FERpa Lt RERKTE(RZE
—N\FNAZTNBEE)  BIFEXE BE
ik THEAEERRELEEEBHEH
He  NEpEme  HEsEERz 28
REEEERE NEELENBHMEERES
ZAE - Bt R E T2 A R R -
HXER ETERTERMLKBETEMABER

o

J

RAFE K

NAElZ
FAI3.29 - ZEXA

NAWMEEEMEEST LT
DRSNS R FE LT o

ESETRESR S 2RESA

ARRERMFESTH  (FAEESEEAR
AEAFHTANEX - KRMAESEL AN
[ - B ESHCERRAFEETIRESTR

PTIRTE 2 1R 2E -

FMESES
ARARL—RBOEERER TR EESHA
HBpgSEZFHNERE - FHZEGZEE
EMPHEFSHIE AW - FE AR ARBK
NEEARRMTERZESMH 2FMEF
HEZBRE -

RANMBZEBGRAE —F/FFH

4
) -

55



56

Corporate Governance Report
hEEARME

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee which have been adopted by the Board are available on the

websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee had one meeting in 2018 and
had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Group. The members and attendance of the meeting

are as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/1
Mr Wang Tianmiao 1/1
Mr Wu Zhe 1/1
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1

No Directors took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang
Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe, and one executive Director being Mr Wong Cho
Tung. They have substantial experience in human resources management.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung.

Executive Directors, assisted by the Group’s human resources
department, are responsible for reviewing all relevant remuneration
information and obtaining market conditions in addition to considering
the performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and
approval, remuneration packages for Directors and senior management.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.
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The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

Directors has completed 12 months of services.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options to executive
Directors in accordance with the share option schemes adopted by the

Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the
Remuneration Committee by reference to the performance of the Group

and the Director.

Each of Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an independent
non-executive Director for one year commencing on the date of
appointment and subject to the right of the independent non-executive
Director or the Company to terminate the appointment of the independent
non-executive Director at any time by giving at least one month’s notice

in writing.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and code
provision of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review
of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process and

other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met twice in 2018 to review with senior

management and the Company’s external auditors the internal and
external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and discussed
auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial reporting
matters (including the 2017 annual financial statements and 2018
interim financial statements before recommending them to the Board for

approval).

The following is the attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr Wang Tianmiao 2/2
Mr Wu Zhe 2/2

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu
Zhe. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has

professional qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$1.9 million as audit fees and HK$0.3 million as non-audit
fees for reviewing the interim financial report of 2018.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 65 to 73 of this

annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review them

at regular intervals.

The Group'’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect fraud
and protect Shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under review, through
discussions with the management and external auditors the Board has
conducted assessments and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system in various perspectives,
including, among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal control
systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review covers a

whole financial year.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic risk
management process. The bottom-up approach is supported by key
business units to identify and prioritise risks while the topdown approach
reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively identified, prioritised,
and properly addressed by key business units to accomplish the Group’s

objectives.

Corporate Governance Report
EEARME

SRR BB
EREERC BN « WER BIHITR

REBIMRFBMEZ RGEE - LEARDQF]
ZHNERZ BN IEE) « BIEIRT SRTADITRITE
& Rl S AR

%Vxﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁm%%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$
SRHESR - AFE - ARRRAREZIME
V%%%ﬁ-%ﬁﬁﬁ ﬁ%”iﬁ%ﬂ%%
1,900,000 7% 7t &2 &6 — L — )\ F H HIBT 753k
%Z?E%EJFEZ%I%OO,OOO)%TE °

TR PR R N AFRECHE73H °

MERES 12 I L 2R
EFHE RN BREIERABELHE

WEMETRNREEEZEME -

REBRIEREERABEZERS - 5HER
EER - REAEEEE - [ L RIESRFFR
RIBMCRIER @ REREFEE Grtais - &
BIEERLRG - ROEFE  EESEER
BIEERINEZBENETRI R TR - KA
BEZTFE AR AR ERREERAEE

ERGZBRE - P EREMFEE  gER
ABREZEAREREIRE - AREERARPEE
e rhEEesnAeRENEEEAY
BEE -

SEMNAETMLERE EM TSR - BRE

B-ExRENRREEEF - A TM LR

VARZ 0 2E 755 BE (02 780 0 o e 2 T e LB R AR A
B A b T A7 SRIRHE R ARa A0

$um TIRAEEN B RS E 2 EARIR
- REBREI D BRI R T IAZZRIE o

RANMBZEBGRAE —F/FFH

59



60

Corporate Governance Report
hEEARME

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under the authority
of the Board and the guidance of the Audit Committee. It regularly
reports to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and

recommendations on internal control.

During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the Company
continuously optimised job responsibilities and functions of different
departments according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board.
Such audit work covered financial, operation, statutory compliance and
risk management of the Group at all levels and functions, taking into
account of the manpower cost-effectiveness. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and material internal controls system and is of the opinion
that the resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate and sufficient.
Based on information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
Board is satisfied with the present risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and considers them effective and adequate. During
the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, nothing has

been found which requires substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors
(who are also the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information
disclosure from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest

information.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group was responsible for
conducting internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective and the risks associated with the
achievement of business objectives are being managed properly. The
department also conducts other projects and investigation work as
required. The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system
had been in operation having reviewed the material controls and all other
major components of the internal control system of the Group for the

Year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds to
requests for information and queries from the investment community by

the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to provide clear and full information of the Group
to Shareholders through sending the Shareholders the Company’s interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and when
appropriate and providing additional information to Shareholders in the

“Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

Annual general meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”)
provides a good opportunity for communications between the Board
and Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting. Notice of the Annual General Meeting and related
papers are sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and the said notice is also published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and of the Company. The Chairman and Directors will
answer questions on the Group’s business at the Annual General Meeting.

External auditors will also attend the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions

put to the vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.
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The poll is conducted by the Company’s registrars and the results of
the poll will be published on websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. Financial and other information is made available on the
Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific enquiries and
suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in Hong Kong at
Unit 1206, 12th Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun
Tong, Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING/PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

A.  Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

1. Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office in Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition.

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those Shareholder(s).

3. The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing Rules
to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a special general
meeting will not be convened as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the
nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical
amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at lease fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as Director
The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 1206, 12th Floor,
Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong,
the registered office of the Company in Hong Kong, for the attention
of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution

and not less than one week in the case of any other requisition.
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The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
Proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements and
the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, (i)
the proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the
Annual General Meeting; or (ii) a special general meeting will not

be convened as requested.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional

documents.
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
RARKEEERAR
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM Technology
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 241, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,

were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as
a key audit matter because of the significant
judgement exercised by management
in determining the appropriate levels of
allowance.

The carrying amount of inventories is
approximately HK$372,846,000 as at 31
December 2018. The management of
the Group reviews an ageing analysis of
inventories at the end of the reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use in production or
sale. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such finished goods and
raw materials based primarily on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period and
makes allowance for obsolete items.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of inventories included the
following:

o Obtaining an understanding of
how allowance for inventories is
estimated by the management;

o Testing the ageing analysis of
inventory, on a sample basis, to
goods receipt notes;

o Discussing with the management
and evaluating the basis of obsolete
inventories identified by the
management, based on the current
market conditions, product life cycle
and marketing and promation plans;

o Assessing the reasonableness
of allowance for inventories with
reference to historical sales records,
current market conditions, product
life cycle, ageing analysis and
subsequent selling and purchase
prices of the inventories; and

o Tracing a selection of inventories
with subsequent selling prices to
sales invoices.
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Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because
of the significant judgements required
to determine the fair value of investment
properties.

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s
investment properties amounted to
HK$479,282,000 as at 31 December 2018.
Gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$7,665,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for
the year then ended.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was determined by adopting
the valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs, assumptions of
market conditions and judgements based
on the valuation performed by independent
qualified professional valuers. Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 15 in the
consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of investment properties included
the following:

C Obtaining the valuation report from
independent qualified professional
valuers and discussing with
management and independent
qualified valuers to understand
the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions
applied;

o Evaluating management's process
in respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by independent
qualified professional valuers;

. Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of
independent qualified professional
valuers;

o Challenging the valuation
techniques and reasonableness
of the significant inputs adopted
by the management of the Group
and the independent qualified
professional valuers based on our
knowledge of the property industry;
and

o Performing market research and
analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment
properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and
consistent with market trends to our
knowledge.
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Key audit matter
Valuation of trade receivables

We identified impairment assessment of
trade receivables as a key audit matter due
to the involvement of subjective judgement
and management estimates in evaluating
the expected credit losses (“ECL") of the
Group's trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s
net trade receivables amounting to
approximately HK$199,035,000 and out
of these trade receivables of approximately
HK$46,030,000 were past due. As
explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, in the current
year, the Group adopted International
Financial Reporting Standard 9 “Financial
Instruments” (“IFRS 9”) and recognised an
additional impairment of HK$4,000,000 as
at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the
transitional provisions of IFRS 9.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

o Understanding key controls on how
the management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables;

o Testing the integrity of information
used by management to develop
the ECL model, including trade
receivables ageing analysis as at 1
January 2018 and 31 December
2018, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the
analysis with the relevant sales
agreements, sales invoices and
other supporting documents; and
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Key audit matter
Valuation of trade receivables (continued)

As disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of
the Group estimates the amount of lifetime
ECL individually for trade receivables with
significant balance or credit impaired,
and the remaining balances are based on
provision matrix through grouping of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns,
after considering internal credit ratings of
trade debtors, ageing, repayment history
and/or past due status of respective trade
receivables. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
The loss allowance amount of the credit
impaired trade receivables is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of
expected future credit losses.

As disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group recognised
a reversal of impairment of trade receivables
of approximately HK$1,098,000 for the
year and the Group’s lifetime ECL on
trade receivables as at 31 December
2018 amounted to approximately
HK$24,031,000.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

o Challenging management’s basis
and judgement in determining
credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 1 January
2018 and 31 December 2018,
including their identification of
credit impaired trade receivables,
individual trade debtors
with significant balance, the
reasonableness of management’s
grouping of the remaining trade
debtors into different categories in
the provision matrix, and the basis
of estimated loss rates applied in
each category (with reference to
historical default rates and forward-
looking information).
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of

the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Wan Chi Lap.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2019
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Revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Other expenses

Impairment losses, net of reversal
Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (HK cents)
Basic

Diluted
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HaE

39

22

11

12

14

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
2,312,230 3,258,517
(2,135,339) (2,863,306)
176,891 395,211
36,084 73,736
(90,499) =
(13,287) 854
483,821 36,824
(52,240) (90,641)
(114,450) (144,433)
(121,201) (122,238)
770 (1,527)
(6,243) (8,990)
299,646 138,796
(84,607) (36,190)
215,039 102,606
238,012 111,651
(22,973) (9,045)
215,039 102,606
9.33 4.36
9.33 4.36




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBEmkEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
SR \VF T A=+ B
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit for the year REZ A 215,039 102,606
Other comprehensive (expense) income Emzm () W
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified ~HEEHDIEE
to profit or loss during the year: AEEESZIER ¢
Fair value change on available-for-sale AT E 2 IR E A EEE)
investment - (107,195)
Deferred tax arising from fair value At E Z IRE N EE
change on available-for-sale EERERIE
investment - 26,799
ltem that may not be subsequently B TeEHoER
reclassified to profit or loss AEEESEZIER ¢
during the year:
Surplus on transfer of land use rights 1 1 s LA Ko 3k -
and property, plant and equipment BE R EEREERATE
to investment properties at fair value ARZIRE Y 2 Kk 48,974 =
Fair value loss on investment in equity FEN R AT ERT AEA
instrument at fair value through other EAEWEHRATA
comprehensive income 2 ANFEEE (28,561) -
Deferred tax relating to items that AR EH Y EEEE/IEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss B EERIA (5,104) -
Exchange difference arising on MEZEZ25|EEESE
translation to presentation currency ZIERZETS (59,644) 93,628
Other comprehensive (expense) income HEmzm () ke (44,335) 13,232
Total comprehensive income AEEEEWEERE
for the year 170,704 115,838
Total comprehensive income (expense) TS IBEER2 RS
attributable to: (Fsx) %8z
Owners of the Company RARHEB A 198,170 118,777
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A A (27,466) (2,939)
170,704 115,838
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2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HaE FET FAT
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties BEME 15 479,282 384,949
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B KRB 16 306,179 399,258
Land use rights T AR 17 68,104 86,793
Intangible assets M\ EE 19 147,950 188,765
Deferred tax assets R IR & B 20 44,606 47339
Finance lease receivables FElRmERE 18 328 705
Interests in associates NI - Lo 22 3,044 2,274
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 23 - 80,253
Equity instruments at fair value through RN AR AR E RS
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) ([BAFEFAEMEE
Witk 1) 2 BRART A 23 39,149 =
Other receivables A e YR IE 27 8,793 =
Consideration receivables FEWRRAE 39 4,796 1,738
1,102,231 1,192,069
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 24 372,846 758,531
Finance lease receivables ElEERE 18 432 2,097
Properties held for sale FHEHE Y 26 41,683 502,998
Trade and notes receivables JEWE SRR N Z 27 231,499 344,208
Contract assets BHEE 27 36,353 =
Other receivables, deposits and E AR - e
prepayments SENE S 27 423,913 331,579
Consideration receivables FEURAE 39 4,601 723
Amount due from an associate JiE U — R Bt & A R FRIE 27 4,400 3,200
Amounts due from non-controlling JiE LA B BB 2 )
shareholders of subsidiaries FEAE AR AR R FRIE 27 4,496 11,633
Financial assets at fair value through BEATER AR
profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([ZAFEFAEZE]D
2 EREE 23 18,278 =
Entrusted loan receivable BUWETERK 21 25,946 36,150
Pledged bank deposits BEHEIFIRITIE R 28 57,557 30,125
Bank balances and cash RITER KRB 28 647,776 417,092
1,869,780 2,438,336
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Current liabilities REEE
Trade and notes payables BB SRR REE
Contract liabilities BHEE
Other payables, deposits received HAbEBERIK
and accruals BYIR S KBTI
Other liabilities Hih B &
Bank borrowings RITEE
Tax payable FESREE
Net current assets REEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABAERE
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital &N
Reserves &

Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 &#EH AFE(RHERS

Non-controlling interests FEIE MR RS

Total equity AR

Non-current liabilities E135 b =K
Deferred tax liabilities RETIBE E
Deferred income EIEURA

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 241 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2019 and are
signed on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG
FHEE

DIRECTOR

EF

Notes

R IB
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g

LIU JUN
2=
DIRECTOR
EF

Kzt

29
30

29
29
31

32
8§

20
29

2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaxT FAT
184,822 393,750
219,345
50,498 599,012
29,692 141,154
83,887 84,104
43,931 37,992
612,175 1,256,012
1,257,605 1,182,324
2,359,836 2,374,393
252,025 255,955
1,907,009 1,865,855
2,159,034 2,121,810
63,405 101,481
2,222,439 2,223,291
98,200 99,151
39,197 51,951
137,397 151,102
2,359,836 2,374,393

EAZFEAMBRERER -F
HEE=giE  YHUTERERRE

RABBEBERAE —F—FFH

—h

77



78

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

== N\ 7 Z_

EE B %

Frh ,\ ar ended 31 December 2018

ﬁ/\

N

= \F+-A=+—AILFE
Attributable o owners of the Company
RAERARE
Statutory Share ~ Properties Rssets Capital Non-
Share Share surplus Other optin ~ revaluation revaluation redemption  Translation  Accumulated controling
capital -~ premium Tesene Tesene Tesene Tesene Teserve Tesene Tesere profits Total  interests Total
b R ik 1 B b
Br  BBEE  EHRE At B EMRE EfBR BERE ABRE  EOMA &if i &
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS'O000  HK$'000
i A TR TR fAr fhr TEm TER TR TR TR TEm TEm
(Notea) ~~ (Note)
(¥e) (i)
At 1 January 2007 NE-YE-A-A B LR 803 97001 0512 102827 127930 208 10048 1484 2006746 106801 2105
Puitlos)fortreyesr  AERAA (52) - - - - - - - - N 11 O 13 B 11 I 711
Otercomprehensive experse) - FEEf

income forte ear AM(FR)hE - - - - - - (B8 - g - 11% 606 3%
Toal comprefensie (experse) R (%)

income forte year YieE - - - - - - (8039%) /2 )Y N Y /] (2039) 11583
Tensfrupmenecied.  RGEERES

share opfons £ - i - - ) - - - - - - - -
ssieofnewshaesupon BTTEEERER

eeckeoshareoptons BT 165 406 - - - - - - - - il - o7l
Stre apions lapsed BiERT - - - - (75l) - - - - 7l - - -
Disposalofsubsiciries HERBAT - - - - - - - - - - - 1% 1%
Aoquition of adtona inerets BRI

I subsares Bilka - - - 1 - - - - - - 13 (1) (116)
Tansertosautoysups~ EBEEE

Ieene BHEE - - - - - - - - - - -
Reoognitonofequiysefed ~ EZpEREE 7

<tare-uased payments e - - - - 18 - - - - - 1% s 18
Dividend paid Effts = = = - = = = - - () (BA) - (B
At31 December 2017 NE-tE

TRt B% 80 50,084 97104 N6 10287 47534 28 18790 b6 2121810 101481 22391
Adjusiment (ke 2) FR(E - - - - - - - - SR 1) )
M1 lenuay 008 (estated) ~ H2E-\E

-A-AED 25595 832,066 50,084 97104 2746 102827 4753 280 187950 512262 2117810 101481 2219291
Proft (lss) forthe year RER A (EE) - - - - - - - - - 8RO 2012 (22973 215039
Otercomprehenshe ncome.~ REEEf

(expense) for the year F(ERME - - - - - %70 (21420) - (5515]) - (308D (4493 (433)
Tota comprefienshe come.~ RER2 ()

(expense) or the year it - - - - - 6730 (21420) - (515 238012 198170 (27466) 170,704
Stere opons epsedforted  ERERA/ 2N - - - - (10515 - - - - 10515 - - -
(e on pertel isposl ofequiy SPAHERATE3

instuments &t FVTOC! A e

BATE - - - - - ) - T - - -
Diposlofsubsirs ~ ERBA - - ) - - - - - -4 Y )
Aequiston of addtionl inerests YERB AT

insubsidiares Bils - - - (1822) - - - - - - (1.822) (6,148) (7,970
Tensertosatoysupls~ BEEEE

Iesene EhGE - - T9% - - - - - - %) - - -
Repurchase of ocnary shares BI85 (3,930) (7.859) - - - - - 3930 - (3930 (11,789) - (11789)
Divdend paid Bfifta - - - - - - - - - (14333)  (143335) - (143339)
At31 December 2018 A5

SRR 05 RMN ORI M D 1SS DM 6 DI Gl 2IBOM 6 20049
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each
year, the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of
their net profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund
(except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval
by the board of directors of the relevant subsidiaries and by the
relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and the difference between the
considerations paid and the relevant non-controlling interests upon
the acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries.

Hraz:

(a)

(b)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

V=AY T o = 8= ==
NA I A F) L]

For the year ended 31 December 2018
5 —N\F+Z—A=+—HIEFE

HMhEARLMBE(THE D ERRERBRE - R
PRI B B A B B RN IR 3% AT 2 B Bt B AR AR0% A
0% EREEBMBFERES (REBESHEB R REMEAR0%1E
TERSN) - ZERBSETAREHERFBRIEMER -
HRESHENBRARESE MAAMEERE 2 1E -

REBARBABEOREBBARZMARABER EHmE
TEAEEZHMbEE  RENKEERKENE A RNE
SME R MRS FIE R R E 2 MM ER -
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of an associate
Dividend income
Share-based payments expense
Impairment loss on financial assets
Reversal of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts
Write off of inventories
Share of results of associates
Allowance of (reversal of allowance
of) inventories
Changes in fair values of investment properties
Fair value change on financial assets at
FVTPL
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in properties under
development for sales and properties
held for sales

Decrease (increase) in trade and notes receivables

Increase in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Increase in contract assets

Decrease in finance lease receivables

Decrease in trade and notes payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

Increase in other payables,
deposits received and accruals and
deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Interest received

PRC tax paid, net

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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BEKA

e R s
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SREERERSE
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FEAEE (BERD)
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EERSEBH
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R ERE R
ENESEFREERD
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RELEZRE
EHAE
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2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fax FHT
299,646 138,796
6,243 8,990
208,874 231,161
2,352 1,836
(519,135) (118)
- (8,736)

(358) (171)

- 1,282

13,287 -
- (854)

71,022 -
(770) 1,527
17,207 (11,706)
(7,665) (9,565)
5,486 -
(7,315) (11,714)
88,874 340,728
257,463 28,669
426,360 86,191
25,877 (72,845)
(143,672) (76,390)
(18,677) -
1,896 4,385
(105,618) (2,717)
(256,223) -
35,473 71,360
311,753 379,381
6,408 12,061
(67,809) (11,217)
250,352 380,225




INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of

—financial assets at FVTPL

— equity instruments at FVTOCI

Purchases of
— financial assets at FVTPL
- equity instruments at FVTOCL

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of license
Development costs paid
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Investment in entrusted loan receivable
Receipt of entrusted loan receivables
Dividend received
Injection from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
Consideration received from the disposal of
an associate
Deposits received for disposal of subsidiaries
Advance to an associate

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

(Decrease) increase in other liabilities

Interest paid

Dividend paid

Repurchase of shares

Repayment to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Net proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of shares options

Cash used in acquisitions of additional
interests of subsidiaries

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

REZH
BEWE  BEEE
HETRIBATEFIA
—BAFEFANESCSREE
—BAFEF AEMEERS
ZBARTA
BE

—BATFEF AR EREE
—BATEAEBEEKE
ZBRARTA
HEME BB REHE
FrSA
BEEFE
ERIEARA
FABETRITER
BB EERITER
RERETERZIRE
WERE R Z B
S UL S
BB AR 2 FHER AR R T E

HEMBLARRSRAFE
REHE-FABEARZERRE

EWHEHBARCRE
B —RBE DR A

REFEAE (TR 2REFE

REEE

HERITEE
ERRITIEE
Hiw&E ) m
ERALE

ERRE

BEEdD

BRI B R BRI R
IR
RERTTEBBRERETRN
SRR % A

IR UREE I 2 ) SME
ZHEE

ARREESRERE

RERAELEEER
BEE

FORERBLEEER
EXxEH o 28

FRASRRESEEER
BNRITHEER IR E

Note
k3

39

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHL
(45,573) (53,544)
2,150 -
17,851 -
(25,914) =
(7,468) =
5,498 2,398
(26,225) =
(165,985) (201,056)
(101,702) (85,535)
71,095 132,046

- (36,150)

- 112,700

358 171
6,889 -
536,691 2,577
- 10,059

- 62,419
(1,200) (1,200)
266,465 (55,115)
88,515 232,465
(84,104) (469,114)
(109,824) 141,154
(6,243) (8,990)
(143,335) (25,579)
(11,789) =
- (35,613)

- 571
(7,970) (116)
(274,750) (165,222)
242,067 159,888
417,092 249,132
(11,383) 8,072
647,776 417,092
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018

- \F+-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

—RER

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of
the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB™). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), as the Directors
consider that it is a more appropriate presentation for a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and for the convenience of the
shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are disclosed in note 43.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”)

ARRDRBARE-NN—FR T&(ﬁ%
uT)BAE§3ii_ufﬂﬁﬁkgL#%?EEAﬁééiﬁi o AR

RAZEMPERRTEE %m%EEﬁZA
AEH —EARKE

ARABZNEEERARE (AR ]) - AR
BMBHRAETES  DREER/IER—
WE%%A“%%EE Bl ([B32A]) By BT

RAMGERRBBRR - BBHRAETZT
ERIRE -

ARBR/—RKREERAT - EMBARZE
REBNIEA3RKE

FE P 75T Bl B B 7 o5 22 A ([ B
BRI R EEA |) RESET

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs for the first time in the current year:

RAFERFERZHTEABRHBHRELENR

HAETT

$%IEF$¢?§K%%MT%%E%%%
SERIREERT

IFRS 9

BRI B 5 ¥ S5 2R R 28 9 8%

IFRS 15

BEPR B 5 ¥R 5 2R RIS 155%

IFRIC-Int 22

BERMEHRERERZRE
—2 R 225

Amendments to IFRS 2
B B s S e 2R B SR 2 5% 2 18 5T
Amendments to IFRS 4
B B T e 2E RIS 4 5% 2 A8 FT

Amendments to IAS 28
BIFR & 5T 2ERIZE 28 57 2 1S ET

Amendments to IAS 40
BIFR & 5TXERIZE 40 5% 2 18R]
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Financial Instruments

SMIA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related Amendments
B a R RABREET

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

SNER 5 R IBNHE

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
R RERE 2 XN G D AR E
Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
FEFRBIRR B s i 2RI O 5% [ mh T A | R EIFR B s %Al

F45 [{RBER)
As part of the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
RERMGERERE —E-—NFE T FRAZFESE 2 —H5
Transfers of Investment Property

REMEZE



New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (conTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 “Revenue”,
IAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening accumulated profits (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under IAS 18 “Revenue” and
the related interpretations.

RS FERE ARz H T BRI B REEAR
HAEHT (8)

BRAAA T RTALsN - A Z R 3 AT BIRR B 75
BEEREBITHARBERAFEFBEF
B 2 T RB RN K Shr & B TS Sk AP
B REYBEATE -

21 EMHBHREENTISHIESSON
#
REENREE S RERRBSHRE
B2 155 - BRSBTS ERIE 155
EERA B & HERIE 185 [z -
e EHERIE 119 [ REAL ] RABMR
-

AEBECDEYERBERMEHREENE
155% » M EXERERENRFTZE
RERERABBH_-_ZT—N\F—HA—A#%
R NBRERBMNEMZREGERN
HUMRE G (R E ARSI @
)RR EYEH L RERETE
5l o tesh - RIRBEBRB I REERIE 15
TRBIRIEX  AREDEREEN -
T \E—A—BHRZTKNELDER
FERAEER] - FIt - BT HLBREF ATAE
RUBESEAR R BIFR @ 7RIS 1855 Uk
& | R R MR Z LB RETTH

RABEEBARAR —F |55

83



84

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MRS IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
S i‘ £

TZA=T—HIFE

s — T

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2. FERAFETEBIRMEREZER([E
BREA RS A ) R EAZE] (

33

)

M

2.1 IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(CONTINUED)

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

o Sale of handsets and IOT terminals
° Own-branded products manufacturing

° Electronic manufacturing services

o Sale of goods to vending machine customers and
franchisee

° Equipment finance lease service

° Procurement agency service

o Sale of intelligent manufacturing products
o Sale of properties
° Property rental

The revenue sources of equipment finance lease
service and property rental are not within the scope of
IFRS 15.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations

and the accounting policies resulting from application
of IFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2. ERAMETEIRIBREZER ([ H
BRI E R ) REMEET (4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE=T—\F+=A=t+—ALFRE

2.1 IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(CONTINUED)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 15
The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Current assets RBEE

Trade and notes receivables [EWE SRS R R

Contract assets BHEE

Current liabilities k=R

Contract liabilities ENEE

Other payables, deposits HAnE RN - B
received and accruals Be RIERTFIE

*

The amounts in this column are before the adjustments
from the application of IFRS 9.

2.1

Notes

M

B BB EERE ISR [ FEFEHOWR
= ()

B AR B HEERE 15 HEL
HIZEHE
ATREDRR_FT-N\F-HF—HZ
FEMBIRA KRR SEMIEL -
BEXEHTEZAEARABRREENA -

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported IFRS 15 at
at31 1 January
December 2018*
2017 i
FERTR —EN\F
—T—tF —A—H
+-A i il
=+—H Reclassi- BsEmE
wEz fication — 2ERIZE 155

REE ENNR  ZRmEE*
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT THET TRT

344,208 (19,681) 324,527
= 19,681 19,681

- 487,668 487,668

599,012 (487,668) 111,344

* AP 2 & BRI At N P B R B 75 3R
ERRE IR TE o

RABBEBERAE —F—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4RE BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-—T—\F+-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.

FE P 75T B B B 75 3 o5 22 A ([ ]
BREA RS A ) R EAZE] (

&)

2.1 IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

(CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

IFRS 15 (continuED)

(a)  Atthe date of initial application, unbilled revenue
of HK$19,681,000 arising from the sale of
intelligent manufacturing products contracts are
conditional on the completion of retention period
as stipulated in the contracts, and hence such
balance was reclassified from trade and notes
receivables to contract assets.

(b)  As at 1 January 2018, deposits received from
customers for sales of goods and properties
of HK$487,668,000 in respect of the sale of
handsets and I0T terminals, own-branded
products manufacturing, sale of goods to
vending machine customers and franchisee and
sale of properties contracts previously included
in other payables, deposits received and accruals
were reclassified to contract liabilities for
HK$487,668,000.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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BB R EERE ISR [ FFEHNR
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BKPEF BB R B 3 A B R 15 B4
HIZEBE ()

(a)

REXERBH RAEHEER
HEEEMAENZAABERA
19,681,000 LB & £INET BE 2
{REBEARR FEAERFIABEARR + Bt -
EREREST D EAGHNEEY
EUE SRR R ZIE °

R-ZE-\F—H—RB #EEF
HEMBER S  AEEREF R
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BHMATFRIZHEEY K
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2.1

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 15 (conTinuED)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
IFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 and its
consolidated statement of cash flows for the current
year for each of the line items affected. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not been
included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position

Current assets REBEE

Trade and notes receivables O ES

Contract assets BHEE

Current liabilities nRBEE

Contract liabilities AHBRE

Other payables, deposits HEERER - Bl
received and accruals Re KRR

2.1

Notes

it

B BHERERE ISR [ FEF SR
= ()

BRPEF BB R F 3R 15 L
HYSZEHE ()

TRBANRAERD -_Z—-N\F+=A
=t HZHEEPBHRRKRNARANEFEE
HZ QB M E R E R BRI % HwE %
AIFE I ERFERA CFE - T
KEFEZHB Y TEREEA

Y MBRRRNZE

Amounts without

application of

IFRS 15

As W4 e FAEIRR
reported  Adjustments  BHESEREEER|
e AR EHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL THT
231,499 36,353 267,852
36,353 (36,353) =
219,345 (219,345) -
50,498 219,345 269,843

RAMEEBERAR —F—/(FFH
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N 4 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MRS IR M R

ar ended 31 December 2018
NE+ZA=+ L&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAXNGIBIRMZEHEZEL ([ B
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL PR # R 2E Al ) REASET (&)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (coNTINUED)

2.1 IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 2.1 EIBRMBEREEAEISHEIZEFEHAK
(CONTINUED) = (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of BEXERER IR EERIE 15 5 EE
IFRS 15 (conTiNuED) W EHE ()
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows e BBk E
Amounts without
application of
IFRS 15
As 4% e A BIRR
repored  Adjustments  BRESHRE %8
e AR F1HEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
izt FHL FEL FHL
Operating activities REES
Increase in trade and [EWE HEHR
notes receivables SR (a 25,877 (18,677) 7,200
Increase in contract assets AHEEEN () (18,677) 18,677 =
Decrease in trade and other payables ERESK
it F0ap s (b) (105.618) (256,223) (361,841)

Decrcase in contract liabilities ANEERD

S5

(256,223) 256,223 -
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2.1

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

(CONTINUED)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 15 (conTinuED)

(a)

Without application of IFRS 15, (i) retention
receivables from the sale of intelligent
manufacturing products of HK$8,222,000
would have been classified as trade and notes
receivables instead of contract assets as the
sale of intelligent manufacturing products has
completed in the current year; and (ii) the sale
of raw materials of HK$28,131,000 in EMS
would have been classified as trade and notes
receivables instead of contract assets as risk
and reward on the underlying raw materials
have been passed to the customer before
physical delivery of relevant finished goods to the
customer.

Without application of IFRS 15, deposits received
from customers for the sale of goods and
properties would have been included in other
payables, deposits received and accruals.

There is no material impact of applying IFRS 15 on the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2018.

2.1

B BHERERE ISR [ FEF SR

= ()
BEAEFERR R B EERIF 15 55 EE
HIZEHE ()

(a)

W32 75 FE FR B B B 7 R 5 2RI 5E
155% - BI() R ESHE S e R E
w2 FEUW(REE 4 8,222,000/8 L&
WHBAEREZERRARER -
MIEENEE  LITAREES
BERSERDEAFTEANTLE
K (i) HE B FRIERERMEL 2
28,131,000 C &1 B A IEUE
FERRERE  MIESHWEE It
ThER A AERE R R Z B R EHRE
REBR R B RBRAK M TR AT
BERF -

AR 7 e P BRR B 7S ¥R S 2R RIS
155% - RlAEF KR ZIHEEY
KR @ AR MENERR
EdizE Mg FOR

NN

R R T AU 15 R AR
BE-2—\F+-A=+—ALEE
AR R 2 ERSRBEREA

By 488
2 o
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2.2

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and other
items (for example, contract assets and lease
receivables) and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL model)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018. The difference between carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the
opening retained profits without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under |AS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2. FERFE] BIRR B SR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR

ded 31 December 2018
T—HIEFE

=R ([
BRE RS A ) REEET (&)

2.2

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (coNTINUED)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities and
other items subject to ECL under IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

2.2 BEBMBHELERFORIERMITAEI(H)
BKKE GBI PR AT 7 3 SRR B 9 iy 5
ES
TREARBEREMEREERFE IR
KB ERE 0 FRERRNEMEE
BENTHEE REBENNREMIE
AR—Z—\F—A—B(BEREMAHE

H) D ERETE ©
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
(previously
classified as
loans and
Equity receivables)  Financial
intuments ~ BEAK  labiliies
ARTC 2EREE at
Mvailable- ~ FEEH (%a  amortised Defered ~~ Assels Non-
forsdle  2EWE 28R cost fax  revaluation contoling
ivestment ~ RAFE  ERR BAA  Conlract labilies,net  reseve Accumulated interests
TiEE  SIEN BY BN asets  EERA EBE ity FER
RE  BRAIE  BR)  GRBE ANEE BETE  EhBE  ZniE B
Notes HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
i TRr TR TR TEn TEm TEn TEm THEn  THR
Closing balance at NZ—tE
31 December TZA=1-1
17-1A539 LERER-
BB gt
£39% 80,253 - 879,008 720,444 - 51812 4753 516262 101481
Fffectarisng from M ERERH
il applicaton REENZ T
ofIFRS 15 FELHZE - - (19,681) - 19,681 - - - -
Effectarsing fom i
el applcaton FEENZ0R
of RS 9: FELNTE
Reclassficaton from B
avalable-orsale BAENERE
investment (a) (80,253) 80,253 - - - - - - -
Remeasurement o BHEEE
impaiiment under BAETZRBER
ECL mod! (b) - - 4,000) - - - - (4,000) -
Opening balance NE-)\E
at 1 anuary 2018 -f-Bz
Efles - 80253 855327 720444 19,681 51812 4753 512262 101481

RABBEBERAE —F—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR e TG ERER MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-TN\F+-A=+—AILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

FE P 397 5T B B B 765 g 5 2R A (
BRI R ) REEET (&)

B

33

2.2 IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (CONTINUED)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 9 (conTINUED)
(a)  Available-for-sale investment
From available-for-sale equity investments to
FVTOCI

The Group elected to present in other
comprehensive income for the fair value changes
of all its equity investments previously classified
as available-for-sale. These investments are not
held for trading and not expected to be sold
in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial
application of IFRS 9, HK$80,253,000 were
reclassified from available-for-sale investments
to equity instruments at FVTOCI. The fair
value gain of HK$47,534,000 relating to those
investments previously carried at fair value
continued to accumulate in assets revaluation
reserve.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

2.2

BRI HREERFEIR ERMT A I(H)
BKHE S B PR A 7 2 SRR E 9 I
HE ()
@ HROERE
B AR ERAIREZZBRME
Bz 15 2 FIESER

AEERBRATEARMETR
Wak 25 R0 BRI SRR
AERE - ZEREVIFFHEEEN
% AN RBRTEHE - 1
BB B EERIE 95R
& H - 80,253,000 T 1% & B Al
HERARESM O BER/RATE
AR EEKEAEARE - B
BAZFRELNRAFEAENRD
FEUF47,534,000/8 TTHE N E
EBHARHERE -



2.2

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (conTINUED)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 9 (conTINUED)

(b)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a lifetime
ECL for all contract assets, trade receivables and
finance lease receivables. To measure the ECL,
contract assets, trade receivables and finance
lease receivables with significant balances or
credit impaired have been assessed individually,
the remaining balances are grouped based on
past due characteristics. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade receivables for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for the trade receivables are
a reasonable approximation of the expected loss
rates for the contract assets.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised
cost, including entrusted loan receivable, other
receivables, notes receivables, consideration
receivables, pledged bank deposit, bank
balances and cash, amount due from an
associate, and amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, are measured on
12 months ECL (“12m ECL") basis and there had
been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, the additional credit
loss allowance of HK$4,000,000 has been
recognised against accumulated profits. The
additional loss allowance is charged against the
respective asset.

2.2
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2.2 IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

IFRS 9 (conTINUED)

(b)  Impairment under ECL model (conTINUED)
All loss allowances for financial assets including

contract assets, trade and notes receivables and

other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31

December 2017 reconciled to the opening loss
allowance as at 1 January 2018 are as follows:

At 31 December 2017
- IAS 39

Amounts remeasured through
opening accumulated profits

At 1 January 2018

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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REREEBRANEERBKE
ZEARFBERE SR EERE
HRAFENBREGN T+
FH_A=+-—HBHHBEE_T

—\F—A—BrBIERH RN

T:
Opening loss
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87 8 87
N/A REA 22,455 -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2.3 Amendments to IAS 40 “Transfers of Investment
Property”

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from,
investment property necessitates an assessment of
whether a property meets, or has ceased to meet,
the definition of investment property, supported by
evidence that a change in use has occurred. The
amendments further clarify that situations other than
the ones listed in IAS 40 may evidence a change in
use, and that a change in use is possible for properties
under construction (i.e. a change in use is not limited
to completed properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed
the classification of certain properties based on
conditions existing at that date. There is no impact to
the classification at 1 January 2018.

2.3
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2.4 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of 2.4
financial position arising from the application of all

new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of
financial position had to be restated. The following table
shows the adjustments recognised for each of the line
items affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

FERmEHIEREE 2 HBMAEAS M

BkRR2ZE

2D ab N ST 6- v
HFEMBIRAKRAEED -

AXEBETE AR °

rrrrrrr 28 - B
TEBIIE

XYEHEBZCHERAE - LTI EHE

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) IFRS 15 IFRS 9 (Restated)
—E—+F B B B 7 BB —T-N\F
+=A=+-H HRELER HEER —A—H
(RE%) F15% EIH (E51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET FET FHL
Current assets RBEE
Trade and notes receivables JEUWE FERA K ZE 344,208 (19,681) (4,000) 320,527
Contract assets BHEE = 19,681 = 19,681
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables, deposits At FEfBERR -
received and accruals Bl MERT A 599,012 (487 ,668) = 111,344
Contract liabilities BHaE = 487,668 = 487,668
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,182,324 = (4,000) 1,178,324
Total assets less HWEER
current liabilities REBEE 2,374,393 - (4,000) 2,370,393
Capital and reserves BEXK
Accumulated profits Sl 516,262 - (4,000) 512,262
For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating MERHE—"T— ) \E+-_FA=1+—HItF

activities under indirect method for the year ended
31 December 2018, movements in working capital
have been computed based on opening consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 as
disclosed above.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements N - -
Ra MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—RLFE

FE P 75T Bl B B 5 o 5 22 A ([ =]
BRE R ) REEET (&)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IFRS 16 Leases!

B B B 75 s 5 E B 8E 1657 HE!

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
BB B T A2 RI SR 17 5% REREX3

IFRIC 23

BRI E R EE B g R EE 235
Amendments to IFRS 3

BB B 7 i 5 MR RSB 3 5% 2 185 T
Amendments to IFRS 9

BURR B T R A2 RI SR 9 5% 2 (&R T
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Xz ER"

B MR AR E 140 AR 25 B2 5T B AR5 5T B PR B 3 3
HEER

AEE AR R EA T EBMIE R RERZ
e BRI R BB AT

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments!
FriST R IR 2 MEE 1 !

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation!
BEEREBRNFIERE!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

I A B 75 i 5 E B SE 10 5% %

Bl & 5T 24E RIS 28 5% 2 (5T
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
BIRR @ a AR5 1 9% R B | 5T 4R

E R ZAEET
Amendments to IAS 19
BURR & 5 T2ERISE 1957 2 85T
Amendments to IAS 28
BIpR @t 4RI 3 28 5% 18R]
Amendments to IFRSs

BRI 3RS R Z (& RT

Definition of Material®

BEAZERS

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

REEREBZENRHA

EEERMCBEEREITA?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement!

Bl Z 18R] ~ BIREAER !

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures!

REE R R REERHE 2 REER!

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle!
B HmE £ S —AFE T —tFRB . FEUHE!

—FE-NF-A- B ERFABZFERRLE

FEEE A Hisk 2 1R R 2 SFE B AR

7

3 R_F—_—F—H-HIZERRABRZFERRE
53

¢ HWBEABRAR T -TF — A —H 2 &K

M EEFERHERZRARNEB S REER
BB AL

g R_FE_FF—H-HIZERRAANFERRE

53
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New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(CONTINUED)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned
below, the Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to IFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will
supersede |AS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified assets is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for leasee accounting, and is replaced by a single
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group,
upfront prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented
as investing or operating cash flows in accordance to the
nature, as appropriate.
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IFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of IFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitment of HK$17,314,000 as disclosed
in note 34. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid and refundable rental deposits received as
rights and obligations under leases to which IAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under IFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered
as additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as advance
lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above.
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Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture”

The amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial
statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in associates and
joint ventures” deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains
or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction with an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 may have an impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting periods as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Basis of consolidation (conTINUED)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group'’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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Basis of consolidation (coNTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs).

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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Interests in associates (CONTINUED)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant associate.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Groupperforms;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation in electronic manufacturing services contracts
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer, as in contracts for sale of handsets and 10T
terminals, own-branded products manufacturing, sale of
goods to vending machine customers and franchisee, sale of
intelligent manufacturing products and sale of properties.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, as in contracts for electronic
manufacturing services and procurement agency services, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission
to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided by the other

party.
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Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Taxation (coNTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset. Other than investment properties measured under fair
value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
where primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and other providing
similar services as employees

The fair value of the share option determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for those transferred
from property, plant and equipment and land use rights which
are measured at fair value at date of transferred. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair value using the fair value model. All of the Group’s
property interest held under operating lease to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purpose are classified and accounted for
as investment properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.
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Investment properties (CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “land use rights” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Intangible assets (coNTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(CONTINUED)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value is determined based on
price ultimately expected to be realised less applicable selling
expenses.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are intially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the assets revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other
income” line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9
(including trade and notes receivables, other receivables,
consideration receivables, entrusted loan receivable, finance
lease receivables, contract assets, amounts due from an
associate and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets and finance lease receivables. The ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances or credit impaired and the remaining
balances are collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 180 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 360 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a finance lease receivables, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the finance lease receivables in
accordance with IAS 17 “Leases”.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade receivables, contract assets and finance
lease receivables are each assessed as a
separate group. Amounts due from related
parties, entrusted loan receivable, other
receivables and consideration receivables
are assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature and size of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, contract assets and consideration
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified to financial assets
at FVTPL, available-for-sale investments and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other gains and losses. Fair value
is determined in the manner described in note 42.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or are not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of assets
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the assets revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate,
trade and notes receivables, entrusted loan receivable, other
receivables, consideration receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments and an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (coNTINUED)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of assets revaluation reserve.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (conTINUED)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (conTiNUED)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities and is
included in other gains and losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables, other
payables and accruals, other liabilities and bank borrowings)
are initially measured at fair values and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are critical judgements involving estimations,
the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials based primarily on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of the reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete items. If the market condition was to
deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials, additional allowances
may be required. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying
amount of inventories is approximately HK$372,846,000
(2017: HK$758,531,000). During the year ended 31
December 2018, allowance of inventories of HK$17,207,000
was charged (2017: reversal of allowance of inventories of
HK$11,706,000 was credited) to profit or loss.
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Collectability of entrusted loan receivable

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on
entrusted loan receivable, the Group estimates the future
cash flows of entrusted loan receivable for impairment testing
purpose. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the entrusted loan receivable’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise in
future financial periods. The carrying value of entrusted loan
receivable at 31 December 2018 was HK$25,946,000 (2017:
HK$36,150,000) (net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$8,314,000 (2017: Nil)).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract assets

The Group calculates ECL for the trade receivables and
contract assets. The provision rates are based on past-due
status of individual debtors or as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The individual assessment
and provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables and contract assets with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in notes 42 and 27
respectively.
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Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether development costs included in
intangible assets are individually impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use calculation by reference to
the cash flow projections prepared in accordance with the
signed sales contracts of respective projects. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of development costs is approximately HK$121,219,000
(2017: HK$183,872,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation of development costs are disclosed in note 19.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst
different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and
certain projects of the Group have not yet finalised their land
appreciation tax calculations and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of land appreciation
and its related income tax provisions. The Group recognised
the LAT based on management’s best estimates. The final
tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and the related income tax provisions
in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.
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Estimated fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period using income capitalisation approach by
independent qualified professional valuer. Such valuation
was based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the valuation, the Group’s management has made
estimates concerning rental yield for rental income to be
generated by the investment properties. The assumptions
used are intended to reflect conditions existing at the end
of the reporting period. Where there are any changes in
the assumptions due to the market conditions in the PRC,
the estimate of fair value of investment properties may be
significantly affected. As at 31 December 2018, investment
properties of approximately HK$479,282,000 (2017:
HK$384,949,000) were revalued.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.
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A.  For the year ended 31 December 2018 A BHBEEZ-\Ft+-A=t+—HLEFE

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers () DHEEFEAIM
Electronics
Handsets and manufacturing 10T Intelligent
10T terminals services  systemand manufacturing Property Property
Segments business business 020 business business  development management
FHRUBA STRERY WBRHRLER
28 KinER  MEEEE 0 BEEK SREERY 0 VEER YXHEER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THL THL THL TEL TEL

Types of goods or services ERoR%ER

Sale of handsets and HE T L A 829,868 = = = = -
0T terminals

Own-branded products BAmiEskE = 154,112 = = = =
manufacturing

Electronic manufacturing services & T 2UE IR ER = 407 507 - - - -

Sale of goods to vending machine ~ AIEEME P REHHIE - - 284,527 - - -
customers and franchisee BHEED

Equipment finance lease senvice  RIGRETHERE - - 294 - - -

Procurement agency service FERERERS - - 34,101 = - -

Sale of intelligent manufacturing ~ SHEBREEER - - - 142,465 = -
products

Sale of properties HEME - - - = 409,389 =

Property rental ELH = = = = = 49,967

Total st 829,368 561,619 318922 142,465 409,389 49,967

Timing of revenue recognition WARZEE

Ata point in time RE-ERE 829,868 499,241 318,628 142,465 409,389 N/A
TEA
Over time Faksf - 62,378 - - - N/A
TEA
Total 5] 829,868 561,619 318,628 142,465 409,389 N/A
TEA
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Geographical markets

The Group’s revenue is substantially generated from the PRC,
the country of domicile from which the group entities derive
revenue. No further analysis is presented.

(if)  Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sale of handsets and |OT terminals, own-branded
products manufacturing, sale of goods to vending
machine customers and franchisee and sale of
intelligent manufacturing products

For the sale of handsets and IOT terminals, own-
branded products manufacturing, sale of goods to
vending machine customers and franchisee and sale
of intelligent manufacturing products, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery). Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of usage, distribution and price to sell the
goods, and has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit term
is 0-90 days upon delivery.

Electronic manufacturing services

The electronics manufacturing services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced, except for
the sale of certain materials as owned by the Group to
the customer for use in the electronic manufacturing
services, which is recognised at a point in time upon the
transfer of control of the goods to the customer during
the year. The normal credit term is O-15 days.
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Geographical markets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(continued)

Procurement agency service

In the provision of procurement agency service,
revenue is recognised when the agency service has
been completed, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
The normal credit term is 0-90 days.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
at a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtains the control of the completed property
and the Group has present right to payment and
collection of the consideration is probable.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All sale of handsets and IOT terminals, own-branded
products manufacturing, electronic manufacturing
services, sale of goods to vending machine customers
and franchisee, procurement agency service, sale
of intelligent manufacturing products and sale of
properties are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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B.  For the year ended 31 December 2017
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as
follow:

B. HBE-ZE—+tHF+-A=+—HLFE
AEERZFEZWRADTAT :

2017

—tF

HK$'000

FAT

Sale of handsets and 10T terminals SHE F I N W A A o 1,076,853

Sale of EMS SHEB T RIERY 1,454,923

Sale of goods to vending machine REBRREF &

customers and franchisees B EmEEEm 299,749

Equipment finance lease service HEMEHERE 1,965

Procurement agency service RERIERS 17,228
Sale of intelligent manufacturing HEEERIEE M

products 101,428

Sale of properties SHEWE 306,371

3,258,517

Information reported to the executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was
organised into six (2017: five) reportable and operating
segments, being Handsets and internet of things terminals
business (“Handsets and |OT terminals business”), Electronic
manufacturing services business, Internet of things system
and online-to-offline business (“IOT system and 020
business”), Intelligent manufacturing business, Property
development and Property management (2017: Handsets
and 10T terminals business, Electronics manufacturing
services business, 0T system and 020 business, Intelligent
manufacturing business and Property development).
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During the year, Property management has been regarded as
a reportable segment of the Group. Property management is
principally leasing various investment properties of the Group,
including office premises and factories, to customers in the
PRC under operating leases.

As a result of the changes to reportable segments and
segment presentation, the segment revenue and result
and segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2017 have been re-presented to conform to the revised
presentation. Segment profit of the Property management
segment for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounting
to HK$27,059,000, including segment revenue amounting
to HK$28,187,000 and changes in fair value of investment
properties amounting to HK$9,565,000 were reclassified from
“other income and other gains and losses”; and segment
expenses amounting to HK$10,693,000 in aggregate were
reclassified from corporate expenses; segment assets and
liabilities under the Property management segment as at 31
December 2017 are reclassified from “unallocated assets”
and “unallocated liabilities”, respectively, under the revised
segment reporting.

The Group has changed its segment names from “Wireless
communication modules business” to “Electronics
manufacturing services business” during the year ended 31
December 2018. However, the underlying business of the
segment is same as prior year.

These reportable and operating segments are the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the executive Directors in
order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.
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Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue
External sales

Segment (loss) profit

Other income and other
gains and losses

Share of results of associates

Corporate expenses

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

YA
HiEE

HR(BR)EN

EARESE
k&R

NEBELRRE

AFRR

BARA

BRALR
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Pkl ONSE S

TRAAEREZAZHNEEDRZWMARE
BT

BE_F—-\F+-A=F+—HILFE

Handsets
and 10T Electronics
terminals  manufacturing 10T system Intelligent
business services and 020  manufacturing
FHE business business busingss Property Property
R ETRERE  UBEZR B8 development  management  Consolidated
RiEgl  WEERE  REERR HEEH EL I &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tién TiEn TEn Tién TEn Tén Tién
(Note)
(W)
829,868 561,619 318,922 142,465 409,389 49967 2,312,230
(4922) 401,048 (18,765) 983 (27,402) 30,318 381,260
(51,619)
770
(24,522)
(6,243)
299,646



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

+=A=+—AL4

0 W

6. 27REHR (&)

Segment revenue and results (coNTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (re-presented)

e L ONES ¢ )
BE —E—F 1 H=1—HIFFE ((ES])

Handsets
and 0T Electronics
terminals manufacturing 10T system Intelligent
business services and 020 manufacturing
FER business business business Property Property
nER TTRERE  MEEES 8 development management  Consolidated
Rmsl  MEEEE  RERER REET NEEE NEHEER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tt T B THx T
(Note)
Wit)
Revenue WA
External sales HIMAE 1076853 1454923 318942 101,428 306,371 28187 3,286,704
Segment profit (loss) AR (B8) 26,394 57,478 (9,188) (12,453) 34543 27,059 123833
Otherincome and other ~ E-fit A R E iz
gains and losses RE#E 43,555
Share of results of assaciates PG E &1\ A EE (1,527)
Corporate expenses N[5 (18,075)
Finance costs BERA (8,990)
Profit before taxation BF AR 138,796

Note: Biet - DR S REEEBDENERER - 208
M AERERERERE R AETERES R
AHSERHE R R - A REHEERIERSAE

ERHA o

The 10T system and 020 business is still at a developing stage.
The revenue of this segment represents the income generated from
equipment finance lease service, sale of goods to vending machine
customers and franchisees and provision of procurement agency

service.
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Segment revenue and results (coNTINUED)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss,
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, fair
value change on financial assets at FVTPL, certain other
income, corporate expenses, share of results of associates,
finance costs and taxation (2017: without allocation of
interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss, loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, gain on disposal
of an associate, fair value change on derivative financial
instruments, certain other income, corporate expenses, share
of results of associates, finance costs and taxation). This is the
measure reported to the executive Directors for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

e L ONES ¢ )
AE2/RMEEN B SRR AN E3P ATl
ZAREHEGBERAR - 2 EEERRE—D
BERDEMEBA ~ RO EEN BB
B mEME  BERREER  HE—EH
ERRZHE  TESRTARRATFERTA
BEMeRMEEZAFEZD BT HMK
A~ REIRAX  DEMERREE  BEX
ARRBZBERTHEE )G MNHER(ZF
—EF  ROBEMBWA - ROBCHE Z sk
BE - HEYE  BEMRBER  HE—RH
ERR W TESRTAEZ A TFESE
B HETHAMEA - AR - ShBE QA
B BERARBRIA) o B ERD B M
REFEMARTERERBE 27X ©



Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2018

Segment assets NBEE

Property, plant and equipment 0% BEREE

Land use rights THERE

Deferred tax assets BLiEaE

Entrusted loan receivable FNZTER

Interests in associates RBEARER

Equity instruments at BATE AR 2 ENE
FVTOCI pd v

Financial assets at BATEABRL
FVTPL SREE

Amounts due from non-contralling~~ FEUHEB A AIZERR
shareholders of subsidiaries S

EY-ERE TR
AftfelE  RER

Amount due from an associate
Other receivables, deposits and

prepayments B3

Pledged bank deposits BEREIER

Bank balances and cash BIEREAE

Consolidated assets TREE

Segment liablties HEAR

Other payables and accruals AR
RFE3E

Bank borrowings HiTlE

Tax payable EfiHE

Deferred tax liabiies EiEREEE

Consolidated liabiites GaRfk

Handsets
and 10T
terminals
business
FHR
i
RinEH
HK$'000
TiEn

703,120

336,631

Electronics
manufacturing
services
business
ETHERK
fEBEH
HK$'000
TiEn

395,041

19,927

PHEERGE
TREFIAEFRAIZHRLEESFENNE
ERBEN

R=-F-NF+=HA=1+—H

10T system Intelligent
and 020  manufacturing
business business Property Property
NBRZS BHEE  development  management  Consolidated
REEEH £ NERR  MEHEER &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TR TR TR TERL

154,458 179,853 46,633 511,633 1,990,738
92,142
41,123
44,606
25,946

3,044

39,149

18,278

4,49
4,400

2,756
57,957
647,776

2,972,011

22,067 44,252 25,538 7,517 515,932

7,622
83,887
43931
98,200

749,572

BANBEEERAT —F - FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4RE BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-—N\F+=-RA=1+ e

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. ZEEHR (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (CONTINUED) PEEERAE(E)
At 31 December 2017 (re-presented) R-FE—FF+ - H=+—H(#&E%)
Handsets
and 10T Electronics
terminals  manufacturing 0T system Intelligent
business services and 020  manufacturing
FHE business business business Property Property
MBS ETRERE  MEEER BESE  development  management  Consolidated
mingn  HEEEE  REERH % nEER NFEEER fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT AL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Segment assets PEEE 891,788 653,297 163,19 214891 554,350 419931 2887453
Property, plantand equipment 1% - BE R 76,656
Land use rights iR 35,135
Deferred tax assets BERERE 47339
Entrusted loan receivable URZTER 36,150
Interests in associates REE DR MRS 2274
Available-for-sale investment AfELERE 80,253
Consideration receivable R E 245
Amounts due from non-controlling B A FIZEER
shareholders of subsidaries H&?j 11,633
Amount due from an associate ke ARTE 3,200
Other receivables, depositsand ~— EAEMERT - ZE R
prepayments BNZE 639
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 30125
Bank balances and cash BIERERS 417,092
Consolidated assets GREE 3,630,405
Segment liabilities PEEE 506,278 174713 15,699 84,328 397,630 4362 1,183,010
Other payables and accruals EfbRERER
REs5E 2857
Bank borrowings FOEE 84,104
Tax payable FEfRE 37992
Deferred tax liabilities ENLHEEE 99,151
Consolidated liabilities GABE 1,407,114
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Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain land use rights, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, entrusted loan
receivable, interests in associates, equity instruments
at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, consideration
receivables, deferred tax assets, certain other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
and an associate (2017: certain property, plant and
equipment, certain land use rights, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, entrusted loan
receivable, interests in associates, available-for-
sale investment, consideration receivable, deferred
tax assets, certain other receivables, deposits and
prepayments and amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate). Assets
used jointly by operating segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenues earned by individual operating
segments; and

° other than liabilities specifically identified for reportable
and operating segments on 10T system and 020
business, Intelligent manufacturing business, Property
development and Property management, the remaining
liabilities jointly consumed by reportable and operating
segments are allocated between Handsets and 10T
terminals business and Electronics manufacturing
services business and corporate liabilities. Corporate
liabilities include certain other payables, accruals, tax
payable, bank borrowings and deferred tax liabilities
(2017: include certain other payables, accruals, tax
payable, bank borrowings and deferred tax liabilities).
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R EERRITER RITEHRR
Be BUEZEER RBEQRZE
@ BAFEAARMEEREZ R
ATE - RAFEFABZZEHE
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Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Amounts included in the
meastre of segment profit
0r loss or segment assets:

Addtions of property, plant
and equipment

Additions of intangiole assets

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation of infangible assets

Amortisation of land use rights

Impairment losses on trade receivables
recognised in profit or loss

Reversal of impairment losses on
entrusted loan receivable recognised
in profitor loss

Impairment losses on other receivables
recognised in profitor loss

Impairment loss on consideration
receivable recognised in profit o loss

Allowance of inventories

Wrie off of inventories

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Change in fair value of investment
properties

Handsets
and 10T
terminals
business
FER
i
RRER
HKS$'000
TR
EENEERINE
HEVRMEE:
RENE BER
B 31219
REBVAE 130933
% BRRREL
i 21,829
N 105,814
THERER 49
MNERT R NS S
BN AERE (1,098)
IERT R B ZT
SHZRRERRR
RERR BT bRl
EHZnERE -
REamEm RIKE
LHEER -
FERE 10,547
ks -
LENE - B ke
ERE) 2,334
RENELTESY

Electronics
manufacturing
senvices
business
ETHERY
HEBER
HK$'000
Thn

8,990
8,493

10,91

8978
107

11,022

131

0T system
and 020
business
LR
REEEH
HKS$'000
TERL

7515
8

3,198

1213
116

19

Htvn BEHR

BE—F-/\F+-A=F—HIFE

Intelligent

manufacturing
business Property
B8 development
PERR  DEER
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Thn AR
766 -
56,633 -
2,389 37
42,088 -
55 -
6,660 -
8 (145)

Property
management
NEREER
HK$'000
Tin

1,798

03

7,665

Unallocated
ESI
HK$'000
Thn

28

7,000

1332

Consolidated
&4
HK$'000
ThR

48,518
196,144

47,792
158,153
2,929

(1,08)

8,314
3,615
2,456
17,207
71,022

2,352

7,665
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mAM
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE=—F—N\F+-A=t+—Ai4
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. DEER (&)
Other segment information (CONTINUED) Hib o B|ER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (re-presented) B - F—Ff+ = A=1+—HIFEEZ)
Handsets
and 0T Electronics
terminals - manufacturing 10T system Intelligent
business Services and 020 manufacturing
FHER business business business Property Property
e ETRERE  VBEZR B8 development management  Unallocated  Consolidated
Rkl HEEEE  REEER  BEER NEER MFAEER AR b
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Fhr Thr ThL Thn ThL Thr ThL Thr
Amounts included in the BEHERRINE
measure of segment profit BESRASE
0r loss or segment assefs:
Additions of property, plant RENE  BER
and equipment B 40,437 9239 1,170 2142 - - 46 h3.034
Additions of intangible assets NEEVEE 85,313 78408 803 41410 - = = 205,93
Depreciation of property, plant % BEREEL
and equipment g 28938 9487 3829 2391 163 1,756 5144 51,708
Amortisation of infanglle assets ~ EF/AEEH 90497 42,034 4134 39677 - - - 176,342
Amortisation of land use rights TR 924 914 152 3% - 218 869 3111
Netreversal of alowence forbad ~ REBRAEEEFE
and doubtful debts (854) - = = = = - (854)
Reversal of allowance of inventories  FE&EER (11,706) - - - - - - (11,706)
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HENE - BER:AE
and equipment LER 1,03 R 642 127 - = = 1836
Change in fair value of investment ~ RENEATEEH
properties - - - - - 9,565 - 9,565
Geographical information wEER
The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are substantially REBWARIERBEEEEZRE RARFAE - A
generated from and located in the PRC, the country of AEEERBEEWARFEEE ZFER - Bt -
domicile from which the group entities derive revenue and WHEZIHE— DT o

hold assets. Accordingly, no further analysis is presented.
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Other income:

Refund of Value Added Tax
(“VAT") (Note 1)

Government grants (Note 2)

Interest income earned on bank
balances

Interest income earned on entrusted
loan receivables

Rental income (Less: outgoings
of HK$nil (2017: HK$2,661,000))

Dividend income from available-
for-sale investment

Dividend income from equity
instruments at FVTOCI

Dividend income from financial
assets at FVTPL

Others

Other gains and losses:

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange (loss) gain

Changes in fair values of
investment properties

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Fair value change on derivative
financial instruments
— forward contracts

Fair value change on financial
assets at FVTPL

Gain on disposal of an associate

Others

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

HpA -

gER ([HEERD

BB (A1)
BURFIE B WA (Bt 2)
RITAREBRIRELZ M B A

e FEE SR 2 F B YA

TS WA Gt - THZHET
(ZZ—+% :2,661,000/87T))
B HERE ZREWA

BREAFEFARMEEEER
BARTRZBREKA

BEAFEFFABRN
TREEZREWA

Hith

Hipsm R g8 -
HEWE - BB MR EE

SVEE (518 s F
BEMEDTFER

S B AT 2 OEE
PitEEMIANATEED

—2HEH
BAVERABRZ SR
BENFEZD
HE - =R F W
Hith

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fax FHET
8,478 9,652
19,933 22,863
6,408 4,693
907 7,021

- 25,526

- 171

216 -

142 -

- 3,810
36,084 73,736
(2,352) (1,836)
(46,156) 30,223
7,665 9,565
519,135 118
- (9,982)
(5,486) -

- 8,736
11,015 -
483,821 36,824




OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES
(CONTINUED)

7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—RALF

HWA ~ WaKEE (&)

Notes:

(1)

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) (2017: Shanghai
Simcom and Shanghai Simcom Wireless Solutions Limited
(“Simcom Wireless”)) is engaged in the business of distribution
of self-developed and produced software and the development of
automated test equipment and software. Under the current PRC
tax regulation, they are entitled to a refund of VAT paid for sales
of self-developed and produced software and the development of
automated test software in the PRC.

The amount includes HK$7,787,000 (2017: HK$4,262,000)
unconditional government grants received during the year ended
31 December 2018, which was granted to encourage the Group’s
research and development activities in the PRC.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group also received government grants of HK$9,391,000 (2017:
HK$13,143,000) towards the cost of development of Handsets
and 10T terminals business (2017: Electronic manufacturing
services business and Handsets and |OT terminals business) in
Shanghai and Shenyang. The amount received is deferred and is
transferred to other income to match actual expenditure used in
research and development activities and HK$12,146,000 (2017:
HK$18,601,000) was recognised in the profit or loss during the
year. As at 31 December 2018, an amount of HK$43,035,000
(2017: HK$55,445,000) remained to be amortised and is included
in other payables (for current portion) and deferred income (for
non-current portion) (Note 29).

Bt

(1)

(2)

ARAz2BMBRARREBESEM(LE)AE
RAR(LEFBAED (ZF—+F: LEFB
BRSEBESRE (L) AR AR ([THAEE
BRI ORESHETREREEZ ST -
VAR PR3 B B Lifl iR o RIBH BRT 2B
R BT R E BTRE REEZRME - A
R BBRARBERNZIEET I ZAR
i e

heEeERBEE—T—\F+-A=1+—HI
FREWE 2 E R BUTIE B %A 7,787,000 7T

ZZT—+ 4 : 4,262,0007) © I AREAER
R E IR ES M o

boh  AEBREBEE-T—N\F+=-A=+—H
1EEFE IRERS BT IE B YA 9,391,000 T (=
T —+ 4 : 13,143,000 ) * FA{ER /8 Rt
GRZEFRERMBBRRES (S5 8
B 3 AR 7 A P R 5 S B T T e 4 AR i 2
BRI o FTEZ @ FEBIETENE - WEH
BEHMRANREAHZEDNERMASL - WE
RERIERE TR 12,146,000 T (ZE—+
F :18,601,000 L) R=ZFE—-—N\F+=A
=+—H ' —%43,03500#& (=T —+tF:
55,445,000 7T ) BRI DA KRB B 5t A K
o FEABR X (BEBNER S D M 5 ) RIEE A (BEIE
BNERER M = ) (FifaE29) ©

RABBEBERAE —F—FFH

(:) 7/
\ -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RM

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE—Z-\F+-A=1T—HILFE

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF

BERRE - HIRRE

REVERSAL
2018 2017
—E-N\E B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Impairment losses recognised R BIERER
(reversed) on: (#E[E) RE RS
— Trade receivables —EWE BRI (1,098) (854)
— Consideration receivables — KRR E 2,456 =
— Entrusted loan receivable —ERETER 8,314 =
— Other receivables — H b EUERFK 3,615 =
13,287 (854)
9. FINANCE COSTS L=y %N
2018 2017
—E-N\E& —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Interests on bank borrowings RITIEEF B 6,243 8,990

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018




10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

+=A=+—AL4

0 W

EX AFYTEREEMS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms Yeung Man Ying

Mr Wong Cho Tung

Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (Note 5)
Mr Liu Jun*

Sub-total

The executive Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs of

ufgs
e e
THR%E
ERRLL
REREE W)
HERL

I

the Company and the Group.

Independent
non-executive Directors

Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wu Zhe (Note 4)

Mr Wang Tianmiao (Note 4)

Sub-total

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of the

Company.

Total

BuiHTES
BERSE
RE%E W)
ImEREWE)

bt

EEREEITENS

RIEEA _ ETRA R ES QARG E 2 A
FERNRNSEESRERNTECHEMNZ
[l U NE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-8-\F1-A=1-RBLEE

Retirement
benefits
scheme
Directors’ Salaries and Share-based contributions Total
fees allowances Bonus payments BAER emoluments
E=he e iz DV HE i ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
(Note 1)
(1)
- 506 362 - - 868
- 1,170 120 - 54 1,344
- 868 337 - 136 1,341
- 2,544 819 - 190 3,553

LRHTEEREFHITEME T Z@RE AR
RARAEEEH2ERE -

156 - - - - 156
156 - - - - 156
156 - - - - 156
468 - - - - 468

468

2,544

BRBTIFRTEEZ M T BANREEE
RABEE -

819 - 190 4,021

RABBEBERAE —F—FFH

(:) 7/
\ -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#REe SRR T

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

10.

EX AFYTEREEME

(&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (CONTINUED)

ESRERUTEMS (B

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-T+tF+-A=1+ALFE

Retirement
benefits
scheme
Directors’  Salaries and Share-based  contributions Total
fees  allowances Bonus  payments  R{KER  emoluments
EXHe HekEh T BBROER RIS et e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THET
(Note 1)
(Hiet1)
Executive Directors BTES
Ms Yeung Man Ying BXER T = = = = = =
Mr Wong Cho Tung THEREE - - - - - -
Ms Tang Rongrong ERmZL = 489 350 = = 839
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard ~ BRiZE58 % A& = 1,560 = = 72 1,632
Mr Liu Hong (Note 2) 2R (fr22) - 839 186 = 102 1,127
Mr Liu Jun* EE o - 839 326 - 121 1,286
Sub-total et - 3,727 862 = 295 4,884

Being the chief executive of the Company.

The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

* RAREERHIITE °

FRATEEREFEATENEERENE AR
RARAREEHCERE -

Independent BUFHTES
non-executive Directors

Mr Dong Yunting (Note 3)  EZERESLE (17#3) 47 = = = = 47
Mr Liu Hing Hung BEETE 156 = = = = 156
Mr Xie Linzhen (Note 3) SBIREAE (F:23) 47 = = - - 47
Mr Wu Zhe (Note 4) RALE(Wiit4) 110 = = = = 110
Mr Wang Tianmiao (Note 4) EME &£ (A4) 110 = - - = 110
Sub-total INaF 470 - - - - 470

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of the
Company.

Total @t 470

3,727

BT FRITEE e T BN K EEE
RAREE -

3

862 = 295 5,354

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018



Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)
Notes:

(1) Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance and
duties of Directors and the Group’s operating results.

(2) Mr Liu Hong resigned on 31 December 2017.

(3) Mr Dong Yunting and Mr Xie Linzhen resigned on 18 April 2017.

(4) Mr Wu Zhe and Mr Wang Tianmiao were appointed on 18 April
2017.

(5) Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard resigned on 29 September 2018.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included two (2017: three)
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2018, whose
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2017: two) individuals are as follows:

ESREFRIITEME (H)
Bt

1) FERBEMEATHFHZEGLEEESL
RERBBEIARAEE 2 QEREMETE

(2) BREER—E—tF+-A=t+—HEHE-

) EEEALERSBREENR_Z—EFHATN

BEHT -

4 REEERFHEEEONR _Z—EFHATN

HEZRE -

(6) FEXREER-_Z-NFAA-THBEHE-

BEME

BE-T-\F+-A=t+-ALTE I%
ERFMALBEMA(ZF—£5  =4)
¥ AMOER EXBE - HT=R("F

—tF  mB)ALZHEMT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F I
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx THIT
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 2,480 1,643
Bonus T4 325 460
Share-based payments LABRAD ST 5R - 25
Retirement benefits scheme RIRFEFIETBI R

contributions 208 153
3,013 2,281

Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEZMEEA TS EE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE EE AEK
HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000 T L= 1,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /7T = 1,500,000 7T 1 1

RANESEERAR —F /17 FH
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Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for both years.

EEME (&)

REE  AEFBYARRAENEEH AR RS H
A X EABE - (ERFBEREMARSE
I 2l 7 1% S 0 A S 52 R B 1) 982 35 32 < 2 (R AT 5R
B RERBBMHE KMEFEHEESK
RYARBHREMHE -

2018 2017
—E-N\f§ ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) PR EAST ([REMER]) (83,753) (18,673)
LAT in the PRC R+ IR (E RS (7,858) (5,797)

Overprovisions on PRC LAT in B b B - I (A R R R
previous years 9,834 -
(81,777) (24,470)

Deferred tax expense for current year ~ ANFEIREFIIAR S (#72£20)

(note 20) (2,830) (11,720)
Taxation for the year AEFEEHIE (84,607) (36,190)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
districts of the PRC and taking relevant tax incentives into
account. Simcom Wireless, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom
Limited (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”), Shanghai Simcom
and Shenyang SIM Simcom Technology Limited (“Shenyang
SIM Simcom”) are classified as New and High Technology
Enterprise and is entitled to adopt a tax rate of 15% (2017:
15%). The relevant annual tax rate used for PRC EIT for the
Group’s subsidiaries ranged from 15% to 25% (2017: 15% to
25%). In respect of capital gain from the Simcoms Disposal
(as defined in note 39(c)), capital gain for EIT purpose is the
difference between the consideration received from the equity
transfer and the net value of equity of the transferred entities.
The tax rate used for EIT on capital gain is 10%.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

HRANEEERELBELRRDGH - LE
SR EFEELEBNIS TR -

EMBHRT MEEHEESRR  EHEE
iR 2 BITH R E - BHBRER - LER
EAEWBEFREARAR( LERERFE
B bEsBBERLBENSEBREER
AR (LA EE ) WA [ Stz
WHERERA15% MR (ZT—+F : 15%) °
AEEWBRARFKAZHECEMSHIEHE
FEMENTF15%E25% Z2E(ZF—+4F :
15% £ 25%) ° ghitaflim & F1H (EE R
39(c)) FTBEAWEME « (ELEAMEH AR
2B B EE R N (BT EEE S
B2 FEZERE - EARGEEEMBRETA
ZREAR10% °



The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant tax laws and regulations
of the PRC, which is charged at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% (2017: 30% to 60%) of the appreciation value,

with certain allowable deductions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

as follows:

Profit before taxation

Taxation at the PRC income tax rate
of 25% (2017: 25%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Income tax effect on
capital gain tax

Overprovisions on PRC LAT in
previous years

Income tax on concessionary rate

LAT

Income tax effect on LAT

Tax charge for the year

T (E R B O AR IR B A B RO B A A 2 A
ERFTE AR E [GETEL - BT ER IS E S
DIREER R 30% £ 60% (= F—+4F : 30%
£60%):TE  WAIEETHIR -

REERBNGEG A BRERPITR 2GR
BRI
2018 2017
—E-N\E “E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
BrEE RT3 A 299,646 138,796

R EATERI R R 25%
(ZZ—+%F : 25%) T8 2 FiE

A 2 A 2 T 2

BAERR 2 WA Z IS 2

RERREEIR R E
BRIBERER BHEEE

AERA NGRS EZR I MBETE
BARWSB FIEHE &

B FE P B IR E TR R
REBMEFTE ZAEH

IR ETH

THRERZAEHEE

REFHIBR

(74,912) (34,699)
(13,846) (1,349)
11,508 26,735
(40,497) (32,415)
4,141 6,102
(15,924) =
35,369 =
9,834 =
8,072 3,784
(7,858) (5,797)
(494) 1,449
(84,607) (36,190)

RANESBARAR —F /1755
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2018 2017

—E-N\E& —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTiERr FAT
Profit for the year is arrived at AEFERFE B (GEA)
after charging (crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration 2% EREM B & 2,200 2,200
Amortisation of intangible assets mI A ERH
(included in cost of sales) (FFASHERKA) 158,153 176,342
Less: Amount capitalised in B BB R
development costs (1,787) (1,085)
Less: Amount capitalised B BEEMMENEFEE
in inventories (156,366) (175,257)
Amortisation of land use rights - Hb {50 R R §H 2,929 3,111
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 47,792 51,708
Less: Amount capitalised in B BEEA bR
development costs (5,060) (3,279)
Less: Amount capitalised B BEERMENTEFEE
in inventories (28,427) (29,769)
14,305 18,660
Allowance (reversal of allowance) of FEREE (BERD)
inventories (included in cost of sales)  (FF ASHERAN) 17,207 (11,706)
Write off of inventories (included in WMETFS (Bt AHMREY)
other expense) (note 39(c)) (#12#39(c)) 71,022 =
Cost of inventories recognised as an ERAERY 2 FERA
expense (included in cost of sales) (FFASHERKA) 1,678,326 2,621,764
Cost of properties sold BEEMERKA
(included in cost of sales) (FFASHEKA) 430,739 241,542
Cost of manufacturing services SLERS RIS
(included in cost of sales) (FFASHERKA) 26,274 =
Staff costs: BT :
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) BE2ME (M 10) 4,021 5,354
Other staff costs Hb B TRKA
— Salaries and other benefits —T&REMER] 250,621 252,206
— Retirement benefits scheme —RINEFIFT B
contributions 48,481 49,172
— Share-based payments — AR 3R - 1,282
303,123 308,014
Less: Amount capitalised in B BB R
development costs (108,146) (119,998)
Less: Amount capitalised B BEEMMENEFEE
in inventories (28,494) (29,621)
166,483 158,395
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During the year, (i) a final dividend of HK1.6 cents (2017:
HK1 cent) per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017; and (ii) a special dividend of HK4 cents
(2017: nil) per share were declared and paid to the owners of
the Company. The aggregate amount of the final and special
dividends declared and paid in the current year amounted to

HK$143,335,000.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the purposes of basic
and diluted earnings per share
(profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company)

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares-share option

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted earnings per share

27
STEERERNEERT

Z B8R (RRBHEE A
PG H)

R&H2E

RN EESRERERNEN
BT E B

RAEE  BEERIKEMN()RBEE=—tF
TZ AT —BLEFEZREKRESR16E
WZZT—+F : VBW) : R>O)EFRIKR ST
BI(ZZE—+F ) FTARAEEA - KA
FEEEIR KRN Z R E REFRIIRE 242
%85 143,335,000/8 7T °

EEUWTERREE—_T—N\F+_A=1—

B IEFEIRMN RIS

A DA AR SRR R RFIT
TR E

BREE TRk e —BE

RN E SRR NN
EREE IS8 B

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
238,012 111,651
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
'000 ‘000

FB T
2,550,366 2,558,338
- 4,756
2,550,366 2,563,094

RABEEBARAR —F |55
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the computation of
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options because the exercise
prices of these share options were higher than the average
market price for shares for the year.

FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+tF—H—H
Increase in fair value recognised Rz TER 2 A FEE M
in profit or loss
Exchange differences ERZ=H
At 31 December 2017 RZEB—+F+-A=+—H
Transfers from property, plant and EREYE  BEKEE
equipment
Transfer from land use rights BEELE £ b A

Surplus on transfer of land use rights ~ #5§ + Hi{3 FRREA R 42 -
and property, plant and equipment S T /N
to investment properties at fair value ~ ABRZIREWVE 7 Btk
Increase in fair value recognised RIBETER 2 A FEE N
in profit or loss

Exchange differences PEXRER
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N\FE+=A=+—H
Unrealised gain on property ST ABE 2 RE R YRS E R

valuation included in profit or loss

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium-
term leases in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2018 and 2017 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not related to the Group.
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E_T-N\FT_A=T—BLFE HE
FREERNY BRRDITERAR BN HRT
R BERE  ARZEBRENTEESNA
FRERMDEOFIIHE -

HK$’000
TR
350,779

9,565
24,605

384,949
52,070
11,991
48,974

7,665
(26,367)

479,282

7,665

AEBUNTEZ ZREMERDRE S BEOR

il

—NFR_F—tF
ToA=t— EZ”A%UE : BLAE@Z@‘%II%
FE B ERABRAEMBIRITEEN G
BERERQRNZAETZHERKESE -
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i
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5
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5
HE
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The fair value was determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
existing lease and reasonable and supportable assumptions
that represent what knowledgeable willing parties would
assume about rental income for future leases in the light of
current conditions. The rate is determined by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial and industrial properties in Shanghai and
Shenyang. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. At the end of the
reporting period, the chief financial officer of the Group works
closely with the independent qualified professional valuer to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the management of the Group.

RDFETIRBEABNMOEEE @ Bt - &:F
EMENMBNEAEML 2 THES - WiKKR
BEUIEYEMAMZ T5EHREFEIR - H
BHEE HREBEFARRRSRE - WARE
HEMrAERENZBRZ(AAMEERETE
BATHER T H AR P 2 RER) B o
Wk Q2E DT LB BB RB T HYEH
EXHHHZWARETE - AERDEBESF
EFERAE R

Rt R THER - M2 &mR&IER
BREBAAR NREMR - AEEMKLE
EEBVAERERMAEMELAIE - RS
REEAENBERTD RBARE - HEEZ
RFELRERED) @ BRAAEEETIEEER
HEK R REA -
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Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and

unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2018

Fair value
hierarchy

DATPERRE

Level 3
F=8

Valuation
techniques

HERTD

Income
capitalisation
approach

WAER L

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Fair value

AFE
HK$'000
T

479,282

EREATUHRGARMBETAVENEZ
'®
TRETEEREMERTHEMMA 2 AERT
KALEEATA 2 T R A SR -

R-B-N\F+ZA=t+—H

Unobservable inputs

ETIE 1PN ¢

(i) Capitalisation rate

() EAfe %

(i) Market rent
(i) 5

(iii) Growth rate
(iil) R

Range of
unobservable inputs

FaHE
BABEHE

5.3%-7.0%

RMBO0.4-RMB8.6
per month
per square meter
BAGTAA
AR#04TE
ARHE86TT

1.2%-3.2%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TAEE
BAHBE
AFHEZBRE

A significant increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
Versa.

B EMERLES -
REHAFEHER
B - RZ A o

A significant increase
in the market rent
would result in a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

MHHENEALS
SBRYATENEXR
B RZMA

A'significant increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

HEENEANE
SBRYNTENEX
B RZIA o



Information about fair value measurements

significant unobservable input (continued)
As at 31 December 2017

using EREATNTERHABBETAVETEZ

&P (|
RZE—tF+=ZA=+—H

Relationship of
unobservable
Range of inputs to fair value
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs  RATERER
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs TR BAHEE
ATERE fHERT AYE TABREARIR BAHEEE AHEZ BE
HK$'000
THET
Level 3 Income 384,949 (i) Capitalisation rate 5.5%-7.0% A significant increase in
E= capitalisation () B = the capitalisation
approach rate would result in
WAB AL a significant
decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
BERMEENEALS -
RN TENEN
IR - RZIA o
(i) Market rent RMB3.7-RMB8.2 A significant increase in
(i 5L per month the market rent would
per square meter result in a significant
BRAGFAK increase in fair value,
ARE3TILE and vice versa.
ARH827T msHeNEAES
SEHNTENEN
B RZIA
(i) Growth rate 2.5% A significant increase in
(iif) SR % the growth rate would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
BRENEARE -
FEHATENER
e RZIA
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years HE_T—)\FER_ZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. IFEE - mesER e SR s =4 o
All of the Group’s property interests held under operating NEBEMARECEHEFA W /ERIES 3
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are BRI ERSHYERES  HERAAEEER
measured using the fair value model and are classified and HE2 RO ERARY A EYE -
accounted for as investment properties.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged RZE—N\F+-_A=+—8 "  ~x&EBLAFE
investment properties having a fair value of approximately #7174,885,000/8 0( —ZF—+4F : 112,658,000
HK$174,885,000 (2017: HK$112,658,000) to secure BIT) ZIEYED TIRW - (EAREERES

general banking facilities granted to the Group.

—MRIRTTRUE 2 HE IR ©
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CoST

At 1 January 2017
Exchange differences
Additions

Disposals

Disposal of Subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

Exchange differences

Additions

Disposals

Transfers to investment
properties

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018

DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2017

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

Eliminated on disposals

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

Eliminated on disposals

Transfers to investment
properties

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

KA
R=Z—+5-A-H
ExzE

E

e

HERBAA

S

CAS

I
B
i

EE =4
TfF e

BRERANE

HENBAR

2zl

RZE-\E+-A=1-H

HERAE

R RS

LERBAR
RZE—tE+ZA=1-H
EXzE

REEAR

R EREHH
ERERANE

HEHBAF
R=E-\E+-A=1—H

REfE
RZE-\$t-A=+-H

RZE—tF+=A=1—H
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Equipment,

furniture
Leasehold and Plant and
improvements fixtures machinery Motor Total
Buildings nENE BB &R BER vehicles
BF &8 RiE HE RE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR T
430,759 5,553 247835 230,014 11,940 926,101
29,813 373 17,079 15921 788 63,974
869 - 15,362 36,216 587 53,034
- - (5,010) (11,176) (365) (16,561)
= = (376) = = (376)
461,441 5926 274,890 210975 12950 1,026,182
(20,042) (302) (13,4%) (14,165) (648) (48,653)
24,668 - 9,708 12976 1,166 48518
= = (9,247) (25,366) (2,746) (37,359)
(78,098) = = = = (78,098)
- - (27,627) = = (27,621)
387,969 5,624 234,228 244420 10,722 882,963
169,968 4,698 219411 146,243 8867 549,187
12,407 314 15,083 10,164 601 38,569
18,752 - 11,562 20,444 950 51,708
= = (2,710) (9497) (110) (12,317)
= = (223) = = (223)
201,127 5012 243,123 167,354 10,308 626,924
(9,981) (254) (12,369) (8452) (435) (31,991)
15,840 - 13,029 18,063 860 47,7192
- - (3476) (23,733) (2,300) (29,509)
(26,028) = = = = (26,028)
= = (10,404) = = (10,404)
180,958 4758 229,403 153232 8433 576,784
207,011 866 4825 91,183 2,289 306,179
260,314 914 31,767 103,621 2,642 399,258




16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.

(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

g NETZA=+—BLFE

M - BB (E)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost less
their residual values on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings gF
Leasehold improvements THEMEEE

Equipment, furniture and fixtures &% f&  RMEEE
Plant and machinery BB K ihEs
Motor vehicles B

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged buildings
having a carrying value of approximately HK$204,203,000
(2017: HK$128,762,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

ME - BERRETIZERARERIGERE
WIABAOE R T HIFRITE -

5%

The shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
HEBRRERSFrBEE

20%-25%

10%-20%

20%

RZE—N\F+ZA=+—HB A5EEK
85 M {8 49 204,203,000/ T (B — L4 ¢
128,762,000 87T) 2 #EF - tEAASBFERS
—MRIRITREE 2 HEIR o
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COST
At 1 January 2017
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2017
Exchange differences
Transfers to investment properties

At 31 December 2018

AMORTISATION

At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2017

Charge for the year

Exchange differences

Transfers to investment properties

At 31 December 2018

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

il
|1

N

25— A—H

5

A

FtE+=A=1—A

[
B |1
B 4
pii

WRERANE
W=E-N\F+=A=+-A
1

N=E—tF—A—A
AT

ERER
W=B—tF+=A=+-A
AT

ExER

BEZRANE

R=F—N\F+=—A=+—H
BREE
R=ZF—N\F+ZA=+—H

R_ZE—tF+-H=+—H

The land use rights of the Group are held under medium-term
lease in the PRC and amortised over the term of the lease of

50 years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged land
use rights having a carrying value of approximately
HK$32,785,000 (2017: Nil) to secure general banking

facilities granted to the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

HK$'000
TR

104,123
7,206

111,329
(5,040)
(14,970)

91,319

19,938
3,111
1,487

24,536
2,929
(1,271)
(2,979)

23,215

68,104

86,793

AR BN Bz T3 (E AR B HE AR
B WIRSOFHAFIM

R-B-N\E+-A=+—0 XEEDER
ARMEI{E%) 32,785,000 8L (=2 —+tF : T)
THFE AR - (EAASBEMES —RIRITHE
ZHER -



2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Current finance lease receivables mERVERE 2 B EIE 432 2,097
Non-current finance lease receivables  JERBIREETE & 2 FE N FIE 328 705
760 2,802

Leasing arrangements

Certain of the Group’s storage equipment are leased out
under finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB.
The average term of finance leases entered into is 3 years
(2017: 3 years).

Amounts receivable under finance leases

Not later than one year —F AR
Later than one year and
not later than five years —FUERFUAN
Less: unearned finance B AR A A A W
income
Present value of minimum W SERERIERE

lease payments receivable

Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance
leases at the end of the reporting period are estimated at
HK$760,000 (2017: HK$2,802,000).

HEZH
NEBETHREEENREREHERH - F7
ERENUARKNE  EREZ FHFHA
3F(ZF—LF :3F) -

R EHE 2 R RIE
Present
Minimum value of
lease payments lease payments
BEHESR HENRRE
2018 2017 2018 2017

—B-N\F —FT+tF ZB-N\F T LF
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TET TR TET

501 2,340 432 2,097
365 824 328 705
866 3,164 760 2,802
(106) (362) N/A N/A

TERA TEmM

760 2,802 760 2,802

RRESR  REMEREREEEZBIE
IRFIEABEfL T4 760,000/8 7T (- B —+4F :
2,802,000787T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BAMBRENE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

18. EmEHEE (&)

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract
date for the entire lease term. The average effective interest
rate is approximately 24% (2017: 19%) per annum.

The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting
period are neither past due nor impaired.

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

HEREEER A

-

RELHBERE AR

FERF o FHERFENEROR24% (ZF—L

& 19%) °

RBEMR 2 KRB ERE W A HRE -

19. B EE

Licence  Development Technical Customer
fee costs know-how contracts Total
AR R A EER REAH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT TAT TAT AL
CoST B
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—tF—H—A 72,528 990,914 71,339 27,514 1,162,295
Additions AE 4,866 201,068 - - 205,934
Exchange differences ExzE 5,187 74,770 - = 79,957
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - (5,714) = = (5,714)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+&+-A=1—H 82,581 1,261,038 71,339 27,514 1,442 472
Additions NE 30,159 165,985 - - 196,144
Exchange differences Exz2 (5,590) (55,152) = = (60,742)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT (5,811) (372,172) = = (377,983)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZE-\F+-A=1—H 101,339 999,699 71,339 27514 1,199,891
AMORTISATION AND BERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 RZZF—+F—HA—H 71,609 843,428 71,339 27,514 1,013,890
Charge for the year REEMR 1,085 175,257 - = 176,342
Exchange differences Ekzg 4,994 64,195 - - 69,189
Disposal of subsidiaries HENERR - (5,714) = = (5,714)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t&#+-A=1+—H 77,688 1,077,166 71,339 27514 1,253,707
Charge for the year AEEM 6,847 151,306 = = 158,153
Exchange differences ExzE (4,116) (48 462) - - (52,578)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAA (5,811) (301,530) - - (307,341)
At 31 December 2018 R=E—\F+=-A=t+-H 74,608 878,480 71,339 27,514 1,051,941
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\&+-A=+—H 26,731 121,219 - - 147,950
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-A=+—A 4,893 183,872 - - 188,765

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018



Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of

the Group were acquired from third parties.

The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

period:

Licence fee
Development costs
Technical know-how
Customer contracts

1-5 years

9 months-2 years

5-8 years
3 years

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during
the current and prior years.

At 1 January 2017
Exchange differences
Charge to profit or loss
Charge to other
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2017
Exchange differences
Charge to profit or loss
Charge (credit) to other
comprehensive income
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018

RZZ—t5-A-R
Exza
B HIR
RE TR R

RZE—tE+ZA=T-H
ExZE
REEMR
REMZERER R GIA)

AEBZFAIEE  BERMREFEHEA
BE=FIE -

B EAEERFNAER - BEENERZE
RAT HAR S 5H

AR R
FEERR
BE M
EFAH

1&=54%

O AZE 24

5ZE8%F
3F

A TERAEFERBEFE - NEBFHERZ
TREEHA (AR EERERED -

Revaluation of Write-down of  Impairment of
available-for-sale  Development  inventories property, Revaluation of
investment/equity cost and trade plantand investment
instrument at FVTOCI ~ capitalised  receivables  equipment properties
ARLERE/
RAFEA
Efp2Ebiz  EEAL  HERER UF BER  REME Total
RAIBEM  HEMA BZESME  REAE Bft &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TiEn TR T TiEn
(42,643) (13,367) 28,069 14119 (54,097) (67,919)
292 (1,197) 2425 250 (742) 1,028
= (5417) (827) = (5,476) (11,720)
26,799 - - - - 26,799
(15,552) (19,981) 29,667 14,369 (60,315) (51,812)
(242) 767 (435) (581) 3,325 2,834
= (913) = = (1917) (2.830)
7,140 - = = (12,244) (5,104)
- 5783 (2,465) = = 3318
(8,654) (14,344) 26,767 13788 (71,151) (53,594)
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The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets IR IR & BE
Deferred tax liabilities BRI S F

At 31 December 2018, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$592,184,000
(2017: HK$446,760,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries.
Included in unused tax losses was HK$161,988,000 (2017:
HK$129,660,000) that will expire by 2023 (2017: 2022).
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$1,192,202,000 (2017: HK$1,127,909,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

AT IOt A 16 8 S Ve 2 IBAE B BRI AT

2018 2017
-\ —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T
44,606 47,339
(98,200) (99,151)
(53,594) (51,812)

RZZTE—N\F+_A=1+—8 BLilET
HBEERBEIIN AEERNBRARAERE
R TE E 18 49592,184,0008 t( —F —+
£ : 446,760,000 7% 7T ) A] # K 85 R 2@ ) o
R 5% Z M8 A 8] K 50& K e S AT TR - i
WEBRELEHIBEEE - RPAHIEBETRE
161,988,000/ (— & —+4F : 129,660,000
BIL)BERZEZ=F(ZT—tF: ===
F) B o HfbESIE ] MR B o

BIEFBRCERERHRE  UHRBERBARN =
ZT)\F— A —BEABIENE RO EA
BRTENF  frE B IRETR AR A 5t B S
AR RET i ) A E B 258 1,192,202,000 7 7T
—F— 44 :1,127,909,00078 7t ) & i FE
HIERE  REAAEEAEHZSETRNE5E
MR EIRRE - ARZEGREEENRAERK
AARA R -



RIBE I PrE S

Carrying amount receivable based
on maturity set out in the loan RSN 2
agreements FEW BRI E
Within one year —FR

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s wholly
owned subsidiary, Shanghai Suncom Logistics (“Suncom
Logistics”) had an entrusted loan agreement with Bank
of Communications. Pursuant to the agreement, Suncom
Logistics entrusted an aggregated amount of RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$34,260,000)
(2017: RMB30,000,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$36,150,000) to a specific corporate borrower at an
interest rate of 10% per annum. Bank of Communications
acted as the trustee of this entrusted loan. Trustee fee of 0.1%
per month is charged. This entrusted loan has matured in
March 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, interest income generated from
entrusted loans amounting approximately HK$307,000
(2017: HK$7,021,000) and recognised as other income.

As at 31 December 2018, the entrusted loan receivable has
been past due. The directors of the Company considered
such entrusted loan receivable as credit impaired. Allowance
for credit losses of HK$8,314,000 was recognised on the
entrusted loan receivable and HK$3,615,000 was recognised
on interest receivable in current year.

The Group’s entrusted loan receivable is denominated in
RMB, which is the functional currency of the respective group
companies.

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
25,946 36,150

RZB-—N\FER=F—tF+=-A=+—Q8"
AEE2EWBAR LESERINAETERA
a) ([ 72 T ) BB TIRITRI . — D&
B o BiEZinE  BiRTaE—$F6%8
AR # 30,000,000 7T (#8555 74 49 34,260,000 7%
7o) (ZZF—+t%F : AR® 30,000,000 (FH%
7 4936,150,0007T) ) 2 RIBZRE T —RIEE
NENERA - BRAFIERFENEI10EFE - £
AR ERBITEARRERZ AT ALK
MO.1%tEE - ZAXERER=ZE—N\F=H
FIHA o

RZE-N\F+ZA=1T—8  KTEEEKI
ZEEERAE £ B AL 907,000 T( =&
—+£4F : 7,021,000/ 7T) - WG EERREA
WA e

R-B-N\E+-A=+—08  BKZITER
BEf - AAREERZERRETEREE
REERE - EEE18##8,314,0008 TE
PIEW ZFEE SHER - 13,615,000 T2
PN E FEURFIB T LARERR ©

AEBRKREFEETIGUARKEE - MAR
ERHEEEERR 2R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M5

R MR

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

22. RFE QT 2 Em

Costs of investments in unlisted
associates
Share of post-acquisition losses

The Group had interests in the following associates:

Form of Principal

business Country of place of
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation
ER4R EBERT AMRIER TEEEHY
Beijing Yunyifangyu 10T Incorporated The PRC The PRC

Limited (“Beijing Yunyi")

YRESHFIEE i hE hE
ERAR(RZES)

LERENEENE Incorporated The PRC The PRC
ERDA( HERS))

AL i e

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

RIFLTBE AT
REZKA
DERIBIRE1E

Class of
share held

FER A ER

Registered
capital

ift &%

Registered
capital

AR

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
6,595 6,595
(3,551) (4,321)
3,044 2,274

REEN THIEEE DR HA s

Proportion of Proportion
registered capital of voting

held by the Group power held

AEEfE

ARERLA figer bl

% %

2018 17 2018 2017
“B-N\f EtF Z®-NF ZEtF

45 4 45 4

45 4 45 &

40 40 40 0
(Note i) (Note i) (Note i) (Note i)

40 40 40 0
W) ) ) ()

Principal activities

IEEH

Software development

Lt

Software development

LA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements N - -
iRE SRR M A
For the year ended 31 December 2018
—\F+ZA=+T—HBHIFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. REFE DT 2R ()

Note: Kt

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group incorporated (i) HE-_Z—FAF+-_A=+—HBLEFE &
185 with registered capital of RMB20,000,000. Initial SEEEMERL EERE SMEAXABARE
capital injection of RMB4,000,000 was made by the Group 20,000,0007T © 7N & B 5 & it 5K <2 B 40 5 0%
upon incorporation. As at 31 December 2018, the Group and & ARMA4000000w R=ZE—NF+=A
other investors had capital commitment of RMB4,000,000 =t+—H AEEREMBEENERNEER
(equivalent to HK$4,568,000) (2017: RMB4,000,000 A R #4,000,0007t ( 18 % 7 4,568,0007% T )
(equivalent to HK$4,820,000) and RMB 12,000,000 (equivalent —ZT—tF: AR40000007t (%R
to HK$13,704,000) (2017: RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to 4,820,000/ 7t )) & A R # 12,000,000 7T ( 48
HK$14,460,000)). The Group’s capital commitment is set out in Z£R13,704000%8 ) (ZFE—tF: AR
note 35. 12,000,000 7T (4555 74 14,460,000 70 ) ) » AN &

B 2 B AREEE N HFE3S o

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the B N R AR IR B A A S BEEEE S sl

associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash BEAEBREZERRBRZ N EZE

dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group. E-UN!$HI

Summarised financial information of each reporting period is SREHYHRENBEW AR R - BAEEAR

not disclosed as it is not material to the Group. SEMFILTERK ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEITBIMAMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B NF+=ZA=+ IEFE
23. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/ 23. RAVE AHMEE V@ AR

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL/
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

AIE "RAVEFABRNE
MEE MHEERE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI comprise :

Listed equity securities outside

Hong Kong, at fair value (note i)

Unlisted equity security outside
Hong Kong, at fair value (note ii)

Available-for-sale investment comprise:

Listed equity securities outside
Hong Kong, at fair value (note i)

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise:

Listed equity securities in

Hong Kong, at fair value

Notes:

()

At 31 December 2018, the total carrying amount of the investment
was approximately HK$38,646,000 (2017: HK$80,253,000) with
the change in fair value of approximately HK$28,561,000 (2017:
HK$107,195,000) debited to assets revaluation reserve in equity.
Upon the application of IFRS9, the available-for-sale investment
has been reclassified as equity instruments at FVTOCI.

The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares of
an entity listed outside Hong Kong. These investments are not held
for trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that
recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value
in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy
of holding these investments for long-term purposes and realising
their performance potential in the long run.
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —Tt5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET Tt
BRAFEFAEMEE RS
AT EBIE :
REBAIN ETRAE S (R AFE)
(Btati) 38,646 -
REBIAINE LT IRAE S
(RAFE) (KaFii) 503 =
AT SRS BT
REBUIN ETHRAE S (IR AFE)
(HiaEi) - 80,253
BRAFEFABSENERHEERTE
REBLEMRAES (RAFE)
18,278 =
Hst -

0} RZZB-N\F+-_A=+—H ZKELEEE
%9/ 38,646,0007% T (=& — 44 : 80,253,000
BIT) - RFEEE)4) 28,561,000 T (—F—+
4 :107,195000/8 L) B BB EEE A H
B - R BRI | E LR EIMRE - AT
ERECEENHBERBRAFEFAEBR2ER
HORATA -

bt ERRARERENE BN LT EER TR
B ZEREWFFHERE - MER/EHAUEE
MMEE - AAREFCRENZFREETERS
BAFEFARMEERSEZEATA  RERZ
BERR  REGZTERZFREAFENEH
KBEARERRFAEZFIRELTNRRAEE
FERBEB 2 RIETAT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements N - 7
BAMBRENE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\FT-RA=1T—HILFE

23. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/ 23. RAFEFAEMEE R
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL/ AIE BAFEFABSNE
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT MEE THHEERE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(i) The above unlisted equity security investment represents the (ii) I ETRABEFRE RN EBRPBEKT 2
Group's 6% equity interest in a private entity established in FLEEBZ6%RE - AEBESDRIEZRZIEE
PRC. The directors of the Group have elected to designate this EEAEATEFAREMEARSEZRATA -
investment in equity instrument as at FVTOCI.

24. INVENTORIES 24. 78

2018 2017

—E2-N\#F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

T T

Raw materials R 247,605 518,252
Work in progress R m 21,623 108,453
Finished goods Pk M 103,618 131,826
372,846 758,531

25. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25. REARWEHEWHE

FOR SALE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2017 R_ZE—+F—HA—H 359,130
Additions NE 192,086
Exchange differences ExRER 12,108
Transfer to properties held for sale HEEELEME (563,324)
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 R_E—+tFR_ZF—\F+=-_A=+—H -
The properties under development for sale of the Group were REB R A HE W E N R B & BEE N IR
situated in the PRC and located on land use rights under FRHATRAVRE A T (E MRy 3 | o
medium-term leases.

26. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 26. HEHEWE

The Group’s properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

REBFHEHEMEDMNPE - FIARHEH
EMEHUARAR AR FEHLBEETIE °
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The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating
to Handsets and IOT terminals business, Electronics
manufacturing services business and |OT system and 020
business and Intelligent manufacturing business is 0-90 days.
A longer period is granted to a few customers with whom the
Group has a good business relationship and which are in
sound financial condition. There is no credit given to sales of
properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance for credit loss, as well as notes receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition
dates:

Trade receivables FEUNE 5 8RR
0-30 days TE30K
31-60 days 31 £60X
61-90 days 61 90K
91-180 days 91 £ 180k
Over 180 days BB 180K

Less: Accumulated allowances B BEHEE

Trade receivables FEWNE 5 8RR

Notes receivables (Note) FEWERE (H1:2)
0-30 days TFE 30K
31-60 days 31E£60X
61-90 days 61 290K
91-180 days 91 £ 180k
Over 180 days HiE 180K

Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks
received from the customers.
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HERTFH R ALIRER  BTRERS
HEBEL VARG ELEBTRE SR
EXEBBRZERZ REEH/TENX -
DEEAKE A RFEFREBM BB
LEFEERRZEEY - WERHEEMRE
FEEH-

AN B S BR (B RER A Z B HIARE ) &
WE ZER (R EEBRER) A RERER
RERAHMEL 2RI DT

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT Tt
131,229 181,821
30,168 55,644
15,054 25,079
24,846 14,633
21,769 47,859
223,066 325,036
(24,031) (22,455)
199,035 302,581
25,008 35,172
828 -

958 1,514
4,756 4,941
914 =
32,464 41,627
231,499 344,208

Bt - BEREBRATPWERRITE L ZFLRE



Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. The Group has policy for provision of ECL,
which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and age
analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor with
significant balances or credit impaired and the remaining
balances are grouped based on past due characteristics and
on management’s judgement including creditworthiness, the
past collection history and forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$46,030,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$13,568,000
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as
in default because there was no historical default of payments
by the respective customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have the best credit scoring attributable
under the internal credit scoring system used by the Group as
they have no historical rate at default.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$20,512,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

EMEMHEPA  AEESHEEETPN
EEERYREEFNEERSE - EFRES
FEAMAK - AREEARER - RESHEEK
B 5 ER B 2 T m AR E A E R AR D AT
(MERGHIREEE RFRURZR RS
OB AREREZHE (RREEEFE B
EERCHERAELEEN)  HBAREEEE
BELRE

N-B-N\E+-A=+—08 KXEEHEK
B RN EHPERRE AHEaNRES
{845 46,030,000 B LU FEURBR R © FEERAE 4
# -+ 13,568,000 70 E @ HA90 K B A R I &
WRAEL  TERBER P WERE LN E
4 o REBIWERZELEHRIFTEEMEFR ©
AEBVERZSEHITEEAETR -

RoT—t&E+-A=+—8  BRAHNE
LA 2 B M 5B AR 48 S A A MO PO RS
BT HEAGRERETS  RRRELE
ELEHE -

RZB—+F+ZA=+—0  XEENER
B HRFEREREN RS e AN RmE
{B/%20,512,000# T H FE WHR TR+ 7R 5 [0 %
FRULET IR ER IR - AREY B2 SRR
BEMERR -
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Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired

90-180 days
181-365 days

Total

90 £ 180K
181 365K

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over two years

because historical experience is such that receivables that are
past due beyond two years are generally not recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year

Exchange differences
Impairment losses recognised
Impairment losses reversed

Balance at end of the year

FHNAEER
ERER
PR 2 BB &R
R(EREED

FREH

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 42.
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A ERBE R B E 5 AR 2 MRk

2017
—ET—+F
HK$'000
FHTT

14,385
6,127

20,512

AEEEHEBBRFHPTA BUGRIEREER
B AN BELRIBHBEBMER B
A REAE

RERBREZED

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FAT

21,821
1,488
1,492

(2,346)

22,455

(E—F— \F+-_A=1+—HILFE 54
U E 5 RIBRERT (4 2 B RR K42



As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables of
HK$20,619,000 (2017: HK$49,260,000) are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD”), which are not denominated in
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 42.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will be
settled within twelve months after the end of reporting period
except for amounts of approximately HK$8,793,000 (2017:
Nil) due from former subsidiaries of the Group, which are
secured, interest bearing at 7% per annum, guaranteed
by the existing shareholder of the former subsidiaries, and
repayable on 31 December every year from 2019 to 2026.
Deposits mainly represented trade deposits paid to third
parties.

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments:

VAT recoverable AT [l E R
Deposits paid to suppliers for MEEGTEXNT
purchasing inventories HEEZIES

Deposits paid for the acquisition
of land use rights for property
development purpose
Receivables from a customer for
purchasing materials on its behalf

RigEM>N2iEe

Prepayments TR IR

Other receivables Hofth FEUER R
Entrusted loan interest receivable JEUNE ST E 7R B
Government subsidy receivable JIE IR R T 22 B

Less: Amount not receivable within
one year shown under
non-current assets 258

FAURE T3 IR R R

e —H B P RIBYR 3R

B IERBEER TS
AR — AU E

RZZ—N\F+=ZA=+—H 20,619,000
TC(ZZF—+%F : 49,260,000/& ) WK E 5
BRARTTRHE @ WIFARBASE R NEE
BWEtE -

BE_ZT-/\F+t_A=t—RIEFERKE
SRR REFHEF BRI 42

Hih U BRRAEIRIF - % 8 RGN RE R
B+ EANEE  EERRAEERHBE AR
FIEX)8,793,000 B L (=ZE—+tF : &) AF
B BREFRT%ETE - pIK B R RRER
REEREBER_E—NWEE_T - FE5F
+—A=+—HEER - HEETBAIMAT
FEZHZBSEE -

AT BEMEKER R RENKEZS
e

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
58,529 101,348
87,203 154,437
- 28,920
260,000 -
4,665 12,730
22,309 31,046
- 2,772

- 326
432,706 331,579
(8,793) =
423,913 331,579

RANESEERAR —T /1755
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The following is the breakdown of contract assets:

Sale of intelligent manufacturing
products

Sales of electronic manufacturing
services

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on (i) the completion of retention period
on the sale of intelligent manufacturing products; and (ii) the
delivery of finished goods on the electronic manufacturing
services. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional. The Group
typically transfers contract assets to trade receivables within
12 months.

The significant increase in the current year is the result
of the existence of amounts from the sales of electronic
manufacturing services at the end of the year.

Note: The amounts in this columns are after the adjustments from the

application of IFRS 15.

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and an associate

Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

Details of impairment assessment of other financial assets for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 42.
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HEE TRERBHER

UTRENEEZHA :

31/12/2018 01/01/2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
+=A=+-8H —A—A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

(Note)

(BFF3E)

8,222 19,681

28,131 -
36,353 19,681

ABHEETEEAEERE TR MARZHRS
R TR ENENBR - BAZEEN
R () IHE B BEE MR BIERE © R
(i) EFRUERBH AR MmN RE B HIRN
BT - EEEZARSENE  aNEEER
ERBE SRR - AEE RN 12EARKE
HWEEERERKE SRR

RAFEEAREMDARFERFEHEEFH
ERFGFIS SRIBFTEL °

Bret - ARG 2 RO E RERBIRM GRS ENFE
155% 2 A%

FE LB Y ) e — R B B IR R IR IR SRR

BRTRAEER  REREEREE -

BE_ZT/\F+-_A=t—HLEFREEME
BEEMBEEFIBEHNMEAL2



The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. The bank balances
receive variable interest at an average rate of 1% (2017: 1%)
per annum. Included in the bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits was an amount of HK$361,322,000
(2017: HK$398,340,000) denominated in RMB, which is not
freely convertible into other currencies.

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$57,557,000 (2017:
HK$30,125,000) as at 31 December 2018 were pledged to
secure the short-term general banking facilities granted by
banks and discounted bills. The bank deposits will mature on
clearance of the discounted bills.

At 31 December 2018, bank balances of HK$342,216,000
(2017: HK$48,038,000) are denominated in USD, which are
not denominated in the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

Trade and notes payables, other payables, deposits received
and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables (other than for the construction
of properties held for sale) principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30-90 days.

Payables and accrued expenditure on construction of
properties held for sale comprise construction costs and other
project-related expenses which are payable based on project
progress measured by the Group.

AEBZRITERIBASTEUARYE BT
KFETLEHE » |ITHEBKILFE M IR - F19
FHMERIE(ZZ—1LF:12) - RITER
RRAEURBERBTERARE —FEUAR
BEEHE 2 F1E 361,322,000 L (=T — L5 -
398,340,000/87T) * EFIR TR EHEHRR
HME o

AEBR_Z—N\FTA=+—B2ZRITF
57,557,000 7t (=& —+ 4 : 30,125,000
AL ETER - ERRGRITROES R
RITEE MR RE 2 H - RITEFHREE
REBHEERIIE -

M-ZE—N\E+=-A=+—8  UETHEN
$R1T 4584 /342,216,000 T ( — B —+ 4 ¢
48,038,000/ 7T ) * A FFKIEI IELA AR B
FRNINEEETE -

BN EZERNRR - HEMERR  E%IR
ENEFFRIECRE S MG 2 RENFR
PARFSERRA

ENEZRARREE
ENESERXEER (T RERZFIEHEEY
X)IEBRAEECEFRBESH - EHK
B —REEHRIOEORX -

BRI EHE MR 2 BN R R EF X B
FREERAR R B A EIR B R FIS - BRARIR
REAKEGFEZRBERN -
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An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables AT ARREHANER  ENESEANE
at the end of the reporting period is presented based on the BIRENE SRR EE AN ENRER 2%
invoice dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes i BHATE S 2 ARk AT ¢

payables is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0-30 days FTE30K 63,336 279,846
31-60 days 31 260k 39,466 9,114
61-90 days 61 290K 51,477 2,076
Over 90 days HBiB 90K 25,172 63,551
179,451 354,587
Notes payables [ERTRIE
0-30 days TE 30K 5,371 39,163
184,822 393,750
As at 31 December 2018, included in the trade and notes R-E—N\F+-_A=1+—8 ENEZER
payables, HK$9,943,000 (2017: HK$83,110,000) are N BN B IEAZETTRHAE 2 50189,943,000 %8
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the T (=ZF—+4F : 83,110,000&7T) * BEAKIE
functional currency of the respective group entities. WIELAM A ER TN EEE o
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HiEARS SRS R ESEE
The following is the breakdown of other payables, deposits T ABEMEMED  BWRE MEZIBLZ
received and accruals: ST -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Deferred income (note) EIEIA (f15E) 43,035 55,445
Payables on acquisition of property, WM - BRE &
plant and equipment Rl 2 FETERR 2,945 54
Payables on licence fee JEREFRIEE 3,934 =
Deposits received from customers HHEEWREF
for sales of goods WER 2 =& - 203,483
Deposits received from customers HEEVMEREF
for pre-sales of properties B 2 28 - 284,185
Deposit received from disposal of BYREHERB AR
subsidiaries ZIRE - 62,419
Accruals FEst A 17,430 14,366
VAT payables JEITIEET 1,168 6,414
Other payables H b e BR IR 21,183 24,597
89,695 650,963
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Note: As at 31 December 2018, the Group had deferred income
on government grants amounting to HK$43,035,000 (2017:
HK$55,445,000). Government grants are given to support the
research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting to
HK$39,197,000 (2017: HK$51,951,000) represented the income
that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within 12 months
of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates of the related
assets and therefore has been presented to non-current liabilities.

Other liabilities

At the close of business on 31 December 2018, a subsidiary
of the Company had an arrangement with a bank in which
approximately HK$29,692,000 (2017: HK$141,154,000)
of notes receivables issued by another group entity (the
“Issuing Subsidiary”) through intra-group transactions were
discounted to a bank without recourse. The notes remained
payable by the Issuing Subsidiary and were classified as other
liabilities of the Group at the end of the reporting periods.

HE TR ER R

Sale of handsets and IOT Terminals

Own-branded products manufacturing B8 @i &8s

Sale of goods to vending machine MEERE P RS E
customers and franchisee PESHE E m

Sale of intelligent manufacturing SHE S EEEM
products

Sale of properties HEMZE

* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the

application of IFRS 15.

it - R=Z2—\F+=ZA=+—0  XEEER[E
B IR A ZIEFEUR A 43,035,000/8 7T ( T —+4 -
55,445,000 7T) - BINHEB WA T AR #FHE
EETFRE R 2 - ARKEYE - BE
B ZEHPD SR T RABHAE RS2
ERFAZ R B E 2 SR 185 o I
338 B A ZEFE A AR B35 —28 39,197,000 7
JL(ZZ—+4 : 51,951,000787T) < B © BIE
HRAEEZNEER  EHAHRETENBRER
it 1218 A ARBRFPER - EM25RERD
=l

Hitb & &
RZBE-NFT_A=+—"REXKMHE
B ARAMHEARE -—HRTILER
BBl ax—SEEB(RZNER
A D BEERARRRER S E LN ERERY
29,692,000 7T (ZZ —+%F : 141,154,000 %
T R ERENIER TR T —RR
17 RBEMKR - ARAERBRNEFRENBR
XA WABRAAEBEZEMERE -

31/12/2018  01/01/2018
—B-NE T )\F
+=A=t-8 —A—A*
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT
177,429 140,908
11,321 20,072
13,134 1,600
14,141 40,903

3,320 284,185
219,345 487,668

* ARAD 2 SR 5t RE R BRI B R E4RIE
1558 2 FH%E ©
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Contract liabilities, that are expected to be settled within
the Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current
based on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or
services to the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018, the entire balances are recognised as
revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2018 and expected to be recognised during the year ending
31 December 2019, respectively.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sale of handsets and I0T Terminals/Own-branded products
manufacturing/Sale of goods to vending machine customers
and franchisee/Sale of intelligent manufacturing products

When the Group receives a deposit before the sale of
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start
of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
typically receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of
goods.

Sales of properties

The Group receives a percentage of contract value as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. The percentage are specific to
each contracts based on the location and selling price of
the properties. The deposits result in contract liabilities
being recognised until the customer obtains control of the
completed property.
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EMENAKEEREERBNEENANA
BENREAEERFFEEE RRRBEHZE
BEESBERABAE -

RR=F-N\F—A-BR=F-N\F+=A
SH-BMAKARENE - 2BEBEHFIR
BE-F—\Ft-A=1—RILFEEHEN
R BN RSN EE T NE T A
=+ —BLLFERR -

HERRENBENSRELTENH —RNR
fERFREAT -

HEFHRYBALR BAREERHR
i MEEREFRETREEHEER ¥
EERREER

AR EREEERINKEIZE © WERERE
HWFIRENBESANARE  EERBEANM
ERZWSBBIZERELL - AEBMBER
HEERATUNE30% & 50% HiEE ©

SHEME

AEEREF R BB HRERREFRRA L
BENK-—BOLAERES - BHEHNHAR
EMENUEREERERTEMBE DL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
—\F+=ZRA=+—HItH
31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. RITHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Secured: B
Bank loans (note i) RITER(H2E)) 3,947 84,104
Discounted bills (note ii) BRIREE (et i) 79,940 =
83,887 84,104

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

At the end of the reporting period, the loans include an amount
of HK$3,947,000 (2017: HK$62,058,000) denominated in RMB,
which are the functional currency of the respective group entities
and HK$Nil (2017: HK$22,046,000) denominated in USD. The
loans carry fixed interest rate (2017: variable interest at Loan Prime
Rate (“LPR”) plus a spread). All loans are repayable within one
year. Pursuant to the loan agreements, the bank borrowings were
secured by investment properties, property, plant and equipment,
and land use rights and as disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17
respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, discounted bills included an amount of
HK$79,940,000 denominated in RMB, which was the functional
currency of respective entities of the Group, and were secured by
notes receivables. The effective interest rates of the discounted
bills at 1.9% per annum. Bills were issued through intra-group
transactions and the relevant group entities discounted the bills to
independent third parties. The bills receivable and payable issued
between group entities were fully eliminated on consolidation.

The discounted bills were secured by pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$57,557,000 as disclosed in note 28.

Bt -

(0} R|EER - AAERBEUEREEEE Y
HEEM ARBIEZER3947,000ET(=ZF
—+ & : 62,058,000/ 7T ) & PAEITTEHE 2 HKIE
AL (ZT—+H4F 1 22,046,000/870) - BHEE
FHREFEMNEFR(ZE—+F : HERERF
R ([EXERFX]) MEEZFBHFIRTL) o
FTEEZHER—FNEE - BEERIHE - §f
TREETIREME - W% - RERSERIM
5 FAREE R (DRI LS - 16 R 17H
B) -

iy MZE-NF+ZA=+—H BREEEE
UEEEEER TR AR EZEH
79,940,000 7T + WA BURSEIRIEREIR - BHR
REZERFNERIIE - 2S5 EEBBEEA
MRPET MEBREEERRRBERETEY
F=77 - KEERBMET IR RENRER
RE NRRR 280K -

AEIR IR AR I FE 28 FT i B8 2 B3 | R 1T 17 5K &Y
57,557,000 T EH I ©

RANBEBGRAE —F—/FFH
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2017,
31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018

Issued:
At 1 January 2017
Shares issued upon exercise
of share options

At 31 December 2017

Shares repurchased
and cancelled

31 December 2018
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FRE(EO.1 BT EER

SEE
R=F—tF—H—H-

—E—+F+ZA=+—HK

—T—N\E+-A=+—8H
BT :
R=F—tF—H—H
1T BB AR MRS BE 1T AR 1
RZE—tF+=—A=+—H
JERE O] K nE $E AR (9

R_ZE—\F+-_HA=+—H

Number Share
of shares capital
R BB B

'000 HK$’000

TR THETT
3,000,000 300,000
2,557,896 255,790
1,650 165
2,559,546 255,955
(39,292) (3,930)
2,520,254 252,025




HK$'000

FAT
Properties revaluation reserve MESLFHE
At 1 January 2017 and RZE—tF—-A—AK
31 December 2017 —T—+F+-_A=+—H 102,827
Gain on revaluation of properties and ~ E{h 13 K& 06 AR 2 Uz
land use righs 36,730
At 31 December 2018 RZBE—N\F+_A=+—H 139,557
HK$'000
FAT
Assets revaluation reserve BEEEMNHE
At 1 January 2017 R_ZE—+F—HA—H 127,930
Fair value change on available-for-sale  A] fit i &R & A F(HE
investment (80,396)
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+F+-_A=+—H 47 534
Fair value change on investments FHENZ AN FET AR MRS
in equity instruments at FVTOCI RBRATEZ A EEE (21,421)
Gain on partial disposal of equity o EZEAFES AL MRS
instrument at FVTOCI ZRART Az e (8,929)
At 31 December 2018 RZTE-N\FE+_HA=+—H 17,184
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Translation reserve

At 1 January 2017

Exchange differences arising on
translation to presentation
currency

At 31 December 2017
Exchange differences arising on
translation to presentation

currency

At 31 December 2018

The Group as lessee

The Group made minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$13,663,000 (2017: HK$13,245,000), in which
approximately HK$2,827,000 (2017: HK$2,843,000) were

capitalised in development cost.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

HK$'000

THETT
BERHE
R-ZT—+F—H—H 100,428
BREF 2| ERESFNERER

87,522
RZE—+F+=A=+—H 187,950
MEE2T|ERELNERER

(55,151)
R_E—N\FE+-_A=+—H

132,799

AEBEREBA
REERPAEZMEMBBRLEEREI N2 &
K S FIE4) 413,663,000/ (=B —+H4F :
13,245,000%7T) + EAR 492,827,000 7T (=
T—+4F 1 2,843,00087) ERHABEKATE
AL o

MBEHR - REBRBETIAIHBELEHREX
MZARZFERSRIBAE ZBHAMT

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and HE
rentals are fixed for an average of two years.
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2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

—F R 8,552 6,697
F_EZFEAT (BEMFERBEEN) 8,762 6,364
17,314 13,061

FHFHREE AME - MiHEE E ¥
1 R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR

ded 31 December 2018

+—BILFR

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 34. REHERH (F)
(CONTINUED)
The Group as lessor AEBERBHBEA
All of the properties held have committed tenants for 2-10 FrIERBZ MERK2E 10FEHBHRETAM -
years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RIEHBR - AEBEBARE4 2 K RKEMA
with tenants for the following future minimum lease SFRBEAT ¢
payments:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —F R 31,866 25,241
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFATF(HEMFEBREEAN) 59,975 18,591
After five years hFE 33,634 72
125,475 43,904
35. COMMITMENTS 35. &iE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Expenditure in respect of investment BRI AVERNERE B IEHRE+
in an associate contracted for but BiEz BN —HBE AT
not provided in the consolidated B (HiE22)
financial statements (note 22) 4,568 4,820

RANBEBGRAE —F—/FFH
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The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of
the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ salaries and are charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$48,671,000 (2017:
HK$49,467,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
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AEEREARFIMEATESTEKOAEMES
BRER Y —HAESE - TERBBHAR
SEESHAMARESTE - iFIREEE
SR —ADLIEL - WRERES S
2B IE T R A BRIk - 8TE
SFEIZEEEASENEMEESFRERE
H—BUEBEZESES - ERARESH ST
HE AREEIERFEZEEEREEA
B -RZE—N\FRZTE—+tF+ZA=1+—
B - WL 2 HEE AT B EHR AN S B R R 5K
FEZREAMHE -

AEERTEZHBRRERTEZERR
A 28 -IBEKEEREMRFEEHRRK
BAEE - B ARAR T EKRANIETER D
Lot R AR M ET B SR - AERBFLR KGR
a2 E—BERIERIEEHN -

FR - AEERFBMEFKEEE 48,671,000 7T
(ZZ—+4F : 49,467,000 7T) * MAFAEIE
HRIBRZERA - RERAEBIBE 28 A%
FETE L R MET BN 2 (R -



The Company had two share option schemes, including post-
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Post-IPO
Options”) and new share options scheme (the “New Share
Options”). Post-IPO Options and New Share Options were
adopted on 30 May 2005 and 1 June 2016, respectively. The
major terms and conditions of the two schemes are set out

below:

(A) Post-IPO Options

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew the
10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options was duly
passed by the shareholders of the Company. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted under the Post-IPO
Options must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at 12 December 2008 (i.e. 151,749,000 shares)
and in any event the total maximum number of
shares which might be issued or issuable upon
exercise of all outstanding options should not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

° the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

o the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

ARBEMBRBERETS - BRERAREES
rBRE S ([BRARBEERBRETS )
KBt 8 ([FEIEst &) - BRAR
BERBRESE BRI IN =T
ERFRARA=TERZZE—RESNA—BHER
o MIERTEIZ T2 HFBEENT

() BERAMBERBRETS
(i) BHERZHEERHEHE -

(iy 2EEBFEEAEEIRITES "
NNEBEGRIRER/EE I HMA
4

iy RZZTZENF+=ZA+=H &2
AIRRIEER—THREREN S
RN R & IR R B2 10%
—MREBR o BIFE XN AFEEERE
REAERT B 7] T 1% L OB AR A FT 08
NEERHEE  THBBER=
TENEF A+ _ADBTRG
2 10% (EN151,749,000 f% B& 17 )
mETTERTE M ARTTE 2 AR
AREE BTk AT BT 2 SRm AR 1D 42
& ERAITEEBIBAA BEA
RHR D BT TR AR 2 30% °

(iv) BREZEM(HEZER) BER
B BHRA R EEERRED -
AR A B/ATRER 2 B S R
{g °

v) BREZTEESERUTZES
=
. IR B HARR (D 2 Wi fE

e EERHAHANAERSH
Befn 2 FHWHE R

s EBHZEE-

RANESBARAR —F /1755
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(A)

Post-1PO Options (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015. No further option can be
granted thereafter but provisions of the Post-IPO
Options shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects.

On 19 July 2013, the Company has granted an
aggregate of 63,000,000 share options under the
Post-IPO Options to eligible participants thereof,
including certain employees and business
partners of the Group (“Grantees”). The Options
entitle the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate
of 63,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company upon
exercise in full.

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1
per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further
grant exceeding one per cent of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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(A)

BRORBERBRESS (F)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BRARBEERBRESIZFH
BEE-Z-RFRA-tTARRIE
—EAM HETABAREBK
% BEERAHEEREREE
ZIEXERBEM T EINA TR
N

R-F—=FtHt+hIB AR
AIRBEERAMEERBIRE
Mtz BER2EE (BREA
SEETREREREBBH (AR
A D H & $£63,000,000 17 B8 A%
1 o BREN BB TER T
ERAENRBBARRBRADE K
63,000,000/ & X E E0. 1078 T2
e A o

i AR AT AT 1248 A B3 Pl R 4%
M FEREMERNITEXSF
BRER 2 EBETRETETR
MERBBERDRHITRMODAR
1% - BRIFERCRN AR A S LA
ERAFTA 2 77 S - BRI
BT A AEMARARBER
1o

R MEMEE M BERIME LB
HE B I 1218 A A R AR AR
B A o] B (R B 21T ) M
BYRTEDE T REE TFZA
B AZFARERE(RECTE
AR RORTITEE) B 1T K%
T2 e ABED BTN B
1% - AIRZIRBIMNR h B A &
BARFRBRRERAE LA1TH
o MzB2EEREBEALTA

MERZHARRR °



(B)

New Share Options

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Share Options and any
other scheme of the Group must not exceed
255,789,630 shares, being 10% of shares in
issue on the day which the New Share Options
was approved by the shareholders, unless
approval of the shareholders has been obtained,
and which must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the ordinary shares in issue from time to time.
As at the date of this report, the total number
of ordinary Shares available for issue under the
New Share Options is 255,789,630 shares, which
represents 10.23% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. HK$1 is required to be paid by the grantee
an acceptance of options.

The exercise price of an option must be no less
than the highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

o the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

The life of the New Share Options was effective
until 1 June 2026, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the New
Share Options shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.

(B)

B R AER &

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

BRER2EERIAE -

2EEQRIMREINTES
AREEGAER/EBIEMA
+ o

BRI 8 R AR B (T A
Ao ET BN T 2 BT A AR T
FEma FETZERERNDEET
8RB 255,789,630 % + BN B AL
REETEER R AL EE B B3 TIRD
210% + BRIEE BS R RBLAE -
MEZERT » BT EBBT
B E BTN Z230% - MARE
BE - IREFTEEAERT B AT (81T
2 Ak a8 A 255,789,630 % -
HERAREBHERITEBRR 2
10.23% ©

BRI 2 R (TR B A WRNIR
B HEET 5 A& X R REL - &
BRARESBREAINRELE

JG °

BREZITEBVATIRATZ

= =
BX[A]

o REHAHBROZIKTHE :

s ERRHUAHNMAEARXZA
Befn 2 FHKHE : &

s RipZEE-

BRI FHEE TN
FRA-BARLE—EEXN  H&#
TeBRLBEEE - EERET
2B ERBEMTEDA TR
MR -
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(B)

New Share Options (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1
per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further
grant exceeding one per cent of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

No share options were granted, exercised lapsed
or cancelled under the New Share Options
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.
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(B)

Hig R R & (/)

(vii)

(viii)

fisd 2R A M) 1248 A BA R (R 42
A EEBEMERN TR SR
PRtERy 2 EBIT R TEITRNAE
BEBERCRITRNEE1I%
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R EREE R B IERIMNR B
P E A L 12 A RRAR AR
SN AR R B (R A BT ()
MBHATEERTRERXTZ
ER 2 R EBRE (BIEEITE
A RORTTIEE ) T2 BT R
Tzl a KB BTN E
1% RIZARIMR L BAER
ERARBABRRABERARE LS
i - M2 REREBE
ATERERZBRLR ©

EZT - \FRZF—F =
A=1+—B1LFE  BEREHNE
REAERT B4 R AT(E (R B AR AE -
DIV R RS R b SR AR B A R 8 o



37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fre G R ER MR

JIN=I

For the year ended 31 December 2018

#Hz

T N\Ft=A=t

The following table disclose details of the Post-IPO Options

held by the grantee and movements in such holdings:

Category o prticpants

S5ER

Diectors
g

Teng Rongrong
EiR

(han TatWing Richard
=

LitHong
i

L

i

Nae
of scheme

e

Pos{P0 Optons
ARDRRER
BREE
PP Opins
BRDFRER
B

Post1P0 Optons
BROFRER
B
Pos{P0 Optons
BROFRER
B

Post1P0 Optons
BROFRER
B
Pos{P0 Optons
ARDRRER
B
Pos1P0 Optons
BRORRER
B

Pos1P0 Optons
BRDRRER
i

Dae of grant

Ul

PR
55k
Byl
392009
BB
A=A

83208
HE)E
A=t/
39209
e
A=A

13112007
5
-f1=H
832008
HE
B
392009
EEE
A=A

39209
5RE
fIAz8

Evrcisabl period

/=

i
(Mot
)

154200:2732018
“ER)EMATEAR
ke g

154201029019
“5-2EMRTRAR

ENEAACR

1542092713208
ZEENEmATIRZ
- EZRotAA

154201029009
Z3-3EmATIRZ

ENEARCA

L1210
“3E)\ERA-RE
“E-tE-f1oH
154200273208
“EENERATRAE

MR-

54201029209
“E-SEMATERE
ENEACR

154210292019
Z5-SERATERE
“E-NEARCA

Erecie
pice
e share

5
ik
H
ip

0%

37. BBRAETEI (&)
TREBRARARBERAREERBRE
EIRE B FIE Rz S m s BE)
Outstanding ~~ Reallocted Outstanding ~~ Reallocated Qutstanding
i o Berised Foeited Lapsed i Ipon Foreied Lapsed it
Vaniay — changeof durng uring durng 31 December ~ change of uring durng 31 December
N7 dechnte theyear e year the ear 07 diecoate e year the ear 018
HoE-tF Ho8-tf i gl
-f-R EEAER T2Rt-R EEREA T2R1-A
Wik EEME ERGR O ERRR RN MRRR EERE EAER BRRR AR
(Mot (Nt
(5 (i)
9360 B0 (%500
3510000 3510000 351000
1872000 187200 (L872000)
3510000 390000 (510000
117000 (L1700
RE2A €MV
00 (9%00)
9360 %00 %00
22010 (1391) = - (g0 107 @SI000 (880N 446000

RANBEBGRAE —F—/FFH

199



200

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
T N\FF+_A=+—HI*

o
BHE

1=

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

37. BREE (R)

Name
Categoryof paticipants ofscheme

SEEEH bEEES

Employees of the Group ~ Post:PO Options
158ES ARAREEL
B

PostP0 Options

EROFREL

ERiEtH

Post1PO Options
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
—\F+=ZRA=+—HIt%

37. lBir T2 (8)

Notes:

(i) In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 12 May 2006
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each of the

four calendar years from 1 January 2007.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 13 November
2007 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each
of the four years from 1 April 2008.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 28 March 2008
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 3 September
2009 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of
the four year from 15 April 2010.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 19 July 2013
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2014.

(ii) Liu Hong resigned as a Director with effect from 31 December 2017

and become an employee of the Group since then.

(iii) Chan Tat Wing, Richard resigned as a Director with effect from
29 September 2018 and become an other participant since then.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2018, an amount
of share option expense of approximately HK$nil (2017:
HK$1,282,000) has been recognised with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the Group’s share option reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018

NE+ZA=+ |

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

38. BEALXRS

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management representing the
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 10 during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits ySEEp
Post-employment benefits BEBR 12 1B T

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and
performance of individuals and market trends.
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FTEEEAS 2R
RAFE - EHZ 10 HBERREEMENE
ZEBABMSAT ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
3,831 5,059
190 295
4,021 5,354

EXRIBETBRABZHMEAFHERESRKE
BAEEKEESE  EAMAEZEERER
REMGBERERE -



During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group disposed of its 60% equity interest in /&5
EEARIER AR /AT Shanghai Dingxi Internet of
Things Technology Limited (“Shanghai Dingxi”) at
a total consideration of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,000,000) to the non-
controlling shareholder (“Purchaser”) of Shanghai Dixi
(“Disposal”). The consideration was to be satisfied by
cash, of which (i) the first instalment of RMB 1,200,000
to be settled at the date of the completion of the
Disposal; (ii) the second instalment of RMB600,000
to be settled on the 90th day of the date of the
completion of the Disposal; and (iii) the final instalment
of RMB2,200,000 to be settled at the third anniversary
date of the date of completion of the Disposal. The
settlement date of final instalment of RMB2,200,000
could be delayed to the sixth anniversary date of the
date of completion of the Disposal at the discretion
of the Purchaser. Fair value of the consideration
receivable is estimated by using discounted cash
flow method with imputed interest rate of 7.345%
per annum at initial recognition and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. As at 31 December
2017, the unsettled consideration of RMB2,038,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,456,000)
was recorded as consideration receivable in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2018, the consideration
receivables amounting RMB2,038,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,456,000) was past due.
The directors of the Company considered such
consideration receivables as credit impaired. Allowance
for credit losses of HK$2,456,000 was recognised on
the consideration receivables.

REBEZE-_ZT—AF+=-A=+—HILHF
- AEER S EYHBEREER
AR EESE D OEERER(E
FDHEER EBRFEE0%E &
K18 B A R #4,000,0007T (18 & R4
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BRUBRSEN  BEROEBHARE
1,200,000 7T #§ A & = H X B #1E
= 5 (i) 38 = #9 A R 600,000 7T #5 74
EEIFEMK AR EKRER + i)
BB —H AR 2 200,000 THERHES
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A BB 8 1% — B AR 2,200,000 JTHY
ERAMEEEHESEHEER B RN
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SIEERAE -

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8  Ek
KRB AR #20380007( % RN 4
2,456,000 ) BAH - RARIEEH
EHERNRESALREERE Wit
JRE LS A {8 T 3R R 138 BR %85 5 2,456,000 78

JG °
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(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group by RBE-_Z—tF+-_A=+—HIHF

entered into sale and purchase agreements with a B AEBEEHSEBIE=H AL
few independent third parties to dispose of the share BBz LEAKERA A THEB
capital of certain subsidiaries held by the Group. The NRMEAR - REFREABRE 3,447,000
aggregate considerations were HK$3,447,000 in cash. Lo HEHBAREHR-_E—+F5%
The disposals of the subsidiaries were all completed in X o
2017.
HK$'000
FET
Aggregate considerations received: 2B WRE :
Cash received BUER e 3,447
HK$'000
FAT
Analysis of aggregate assets and REEHERNRTEERABIN
liabilities over which control was
lost:
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R 153
Inventories FE 1,967
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K E Ah5RI8 8,518
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R E A FRIA (6,927)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRS 870
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 4,581
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB AR ZEE :
Considerations received 2R E 3,447
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (4,581)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A 1,252
Gain on disposal HE 2z Es 118
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEE4EXZBEESRAZE !
Cash considerations RERE 3,447
Less: Bank balances and cash B REZRITEBRKIES
disposed of (870)
2,577
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party under which the Group
had conditionally agreed to dispose of two wholly-
owned subsidiaries, namely Shanghai Simcom
Electronic Limited and Simcom Wireless (collectively
referred to as the “Target Companies”) in relation to
Electronics manufacturing services business at a total
consideration of approximately RMB518,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$644,664,000) (the
“Simcoms Disposal”). The Simcoms Disposal was
completed in the year ended 31 December 2018 in
which the Group lost controls in the Target Companies.

B WA NRME :
BElERE

Aggregate consideration received:
Cash received

Analysis of aggregate assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets | EE

Deferred tax assets R IHE E
Inventories FE8

Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 R HMFRIA
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRERS
Trade and other payables B S REMFRIA
Deferred tax liabilities BIETRIEEE

Net assets disposed of HEEEFE

R KRR

E_E—+tF+-_A=+—HLHF
B AEEE-—FBIYE=FFIVEE
B Bt AEEEEKRGERED
EEHRETRERGEEREBROM
MEEHBARMIEHE 2B E
BHRBETERARMSMBER(FH
BAEIZEHRA])  BREABNDARE
518,000,0007T. (1HE 1A #1644,664,0007%
7)(fﬁ’§8imcomsj) & Simcoms
HEZZ—\F+ZA=+—HBLFE
SERK ZK%’%IQE%E%H%E@ Gikokel
T o

HK$’000
FET

644,664

BERBENDN

HK$’000
TERT

6,241
70,642
1,660
12,783
51,515
45,742
(56,629)
(5,783)

126,171

RANERBERAR —F /7N
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(c)  (continued)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries:

Considerations

Net assets of the Target
Companies disposal of

Net cash inflow arising
on disposal:

Cash received

Less: Bank balances and
cash disposed of

Deposit received in prior year

o 5 B B ) iz M

RE
HEZBEAR
HMEERE

HEELNF
HE2WA -

BEUERE

B EHEZRT
YN e

REFERINRS

During the year, the Group has incurred professional
fees of approximately HK$2,927,000, additional staff
bonus of approximately HK$12,460,000, redundancy
cost of approximately HK$4,090,000 and inventories
write off of approximately HK$71,022,000, which are
included in other expenses. EIT on capital gain from the
Simcoms Disposal was approximately HK$64,395,000.
In the opinion of the directors, these expenses are in

relation to the Simcoms Disposal.
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i

(c) (¢
HK$ ™ 000
THTT

644,664
(126,171)

518,493

644,664

(45,742)
(62,419)

536,503

RAFE AEENZEEERY
2,927,000/ jT~ R AN B T FE 41 4
12,460,000/ 7T * JUERRK A4 4,090,000
78 7T R AT B MR 4971,022,000 7 T E AT
AEMFS o HESimcoms EE Z A AR
U as B 1> ¥ A5 7 49 64,395,000 7 7T
EERAE  ZERIZELESimcomsE
BHE -



During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreements with a
few independent third parties to dispose of the share
capital of certain subsidiaries held by the Group.
The aggregate considerations were HK$12,271,000
in cash. The disposals of the subsidiaries were all
completed in 2018.

The consideration was to be satisfied by cash, of
which in the disposal of Hangzhou Kawo Automation
Technology Co., Limited, Dongguan New Road Mark
Automation Technology Co., Ltd and H/&EEBEEEE
EHAIR A7) (the “three Disposals”), (i) consideration
of approximately HK$2,874,000 was settled during the
year; (ii) consideration of RMB4,028,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,601,000) are expected to be
settled in 2019; (iii) annual instalment of RMB600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$685,000) to be settled
at the year end date of each anniversary year from
2020 to 2026. Considerations included discounted
interest rate of 7% per annum at initial recognition.
As at 31 December 2018, the unsettled consideration
of RMB8,228,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9,397,000) was recorded as consideration
receivable in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

HE_Z—N\FE+_A=+—HItHF
B AEBRHELBIE=HF AL
BEEW® LELEERBE A THE
NAERA - 2FFREARSL 12,271,000
BT HEWBRARIZR _ZE—N\F
FERK ©

EHRRECHRSEN  EFREEN
MRREEBERIEBRAF - REEHEE
EEBLRERMNERAR R LEER
BEEEERARAR(ZBHE])F
(i) B 492,874,000% JTL A F A E T
(iNKEAR% 4028000 (HERL
4,601,000 ) HEHR =T — L FE
=15 (i) & E 25 B A R # 600,000 7T (48
5 49685,000/8 L) THEER T T F
E_TAFEHERATHNFLEBER -
REBERVIAEREHZEE 7% FIET
WeRZZE—N\F+_A=1+—H" ' @A
FRERMAREARYS,228,000 7T (HER
#99,397,0007 70 ) INER & B IS AR L R A
SR RIEIARE o

RANBEEBGRAE —F—/FFH
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(continued)

Aggregate considerations
received/receivable:

Cash received

Consideration receivable within
one year

Consideration receivable in more
than one year

Total consideration received/receivable

Analysis of aggregate assets
and liabilities over
which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Trade and other payables

Net assets disposed of

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
Considerations received

and receivables
Net assets disposed of
Non-controlling interests

Net gain on disposal

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash considerations

Less: Bank balances and cash
disposed of

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

d (4

B ERBARE :

BiIRE
R—FAEKKE

R—FRERKE

B R aR(E

HREEHEN
REERABEND

UE ST E
BEETHIRE E

&

FEW R 5 I Bt 5RI8
RITHEBRLAE
eI E 5 K Bt 5IR

HEEEFE

HH S B ) 2 W R R
Bl U AR(E

HEEEFE
SRR e

& 2 e R
HEELENFREWA -

RefE
B EHEZRITESRKAS

puui Ty

HK$" 000
TR

2,874
4,601

4,796

12,271

10,982
805
7,130
17,817
2,686

(23,329)

16,091

12,271

(16,091)
4,462

642

2,874
(2,686)
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The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities NTREFINAEERA ST (RERE

arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- FIFEREBFH) 2BE - RESHBEBZEBE
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are DZEHBERBE BRI EBNEGE
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, REMBEFDBEARESREBAEREIT ©

classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Amounts due
to non-contolling
shareholders of

Bank subsidiaries Other Dividend
borrowings EAHEARFE liabilities payable Total
RITEE ERBRRENRE HthBfE EARE Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERr TER TEr TER
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\&E
—HA—H 84,104 - 141,154 - 225,258
Financing cash flows MERETE (1,832) - (109,824)  (143,335)  (254,991)
Non-cash changes: FRE#
Foreign exchange HNE (4,628) - (1,638) - (6,266)
Interest expenses FEZ 6,243 - - - 6,243
Dividend B - - - 143,335 143,335
At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F
+=RA=1+-H 83,887 - 29,692 - 113,579
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—t5F
—HA—H 299,991 35,613 - - 335,604
Financing cash flows MERSTE (245,639) (35,613) 141,154 (25,579) (165,677)
Non-cash changes: FHGE
Foreign exchange HNEE 20,762 = = = 20,762
Interest expenses FEZH 8,990 - - = 8,990
Dividend I8 = - - 25,579 25,579
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—t%F
+-A=+—H 84,104 - 141,154 - 225,258

RANBEBERAT — T/ FFH 209



210

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the purchase
consideration of property, plant and equipment and intangible
asset amounting to HK$2,945,000 and HK$3,934,000
respectively (2017: HK$54,000 and HK$nil) remained
unsettled and included in other payables, deposits received
and accruals as at 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group and
certain non-controlling shareholders incorporated certain
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of which capital injection
from non-controlling interests amounting to HK$3,129,000
remained unsettled and included in amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries as at 31 December
2018 and 2017.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debt, which include
the bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.
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HE—_ZT-N\E+-_A=t+—HIFE B=S
ME - WEREERETLEENRET D)
2,945,000 7T 123,934,000/ L ( — T —+
& 54,0008 TR THB L) KA - WEFTA
R-B—-N\EFE+-A=+—ANEMBERNEE
7 BUURS KR RIER ©

HE_ZE-—AE+-_A=+—HIFE &&=
B A& T IR R A E T IEREH B
ANaE] - ERREIEEREREE 3,129,000 %
THASZMN  WR_BE—NER_ZT—+F
+=—A=+—RHtARKHE R A SHERAE
FRIAA o

BEXEREE
AEBEREAZBENRERBILERERZZ
o RASEBETEERERNEE S
BEEKRE  YRBA/RRERZDER - &
SEZENEBERERFR(EBRERITE
E)RARREAAEGHED(BRDETR
A FERREN)  BEREEMNELSE
BeEZRERNKARAZRERHBZRER
Fhit - AEEREBABE - BITHRIAR
BITHERBERRGEB FERBEANERS -
REE 7 BERBRAFEARTIE -



Categories of financial instruments

ST EER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—t5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost TR AT RS R E = 1,256,021 =
Loans and receivables (including B EEWERR
cash and cash equivalents) (BHEEREERELEEER) - 879,008
Financial assets at FVTPL RATEF ABENEREE 18,278 =
Equity instruments at FVTOCI RAHE A M2 KSR A T A 39,149 =
Available-for-sale investment AMEREZIRE - 80,253
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Amortised cost B8 SR AR 339,397 720,444

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and notes receivables and payables, other receivables and
payables, accruals, entrusted loan receivable, amounts due
from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an
associate, consideration receivables, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, bank borrowings and other liabilities
(2017: available-for-sale investment, trade and notes
receivables and payables, other receivables and payables,
accruals, entrusted loan receivable, amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate,
consideration receivable, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, bank borrowings and other liabilities).
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 15% (2017: 17%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 47% (2017:
60%) of costs are denominated in the group entity’s functional
currency.

B LR R Y B AR R IR

AEEZ T 2T ABRERAFEF AR
EEREZBATAR BAFEFARRZE
BEE  BRRENEZERINER - LR
WRENERSK - BETER - BREEER &
UGBt 8 2 ) e — il Bt i A B SEFE AR AR SR ROR
EMAE - EEIFRTER  RITEBRLR
T RITEEREMCAE(ZT—EF : AIH
HERE  BUREENEZERRRE - Hit
e N AT RRAR - FERHER - RIRERFEER
& M5 Bt /B 2 B B — ] Bt & 12 B SR 43 AR RCR 3K
B RUARE  EERRITER  |RITEHRK
e RITBEREMAR) ZFERIA
ZFERERM D HE - BZE ST AN
B2 R A BB BRI R 2 SRR 2 R BN T
X BEERERERZFRAR - ARERE
R A1E RERBUE B it

BEEmpE
FEBZRMBARAIINEETEE - 4%
EEEINERRR - AEEHEELN15% (ZF
—tF 7% NEBERETEENINGEE
AN ERFHE - MA47% (—F—L5F
60%) KR AE A KB BB IIREEREHE -

RABEEBARAR —F |55
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities
are trade receivables, bank balances, trade payables and
bank borrowings and the amounts are disclosed in notes 27,
28, 29 and 31 respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of reporting period are as follows:

usb ET

The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency expose
should the need arise.
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B R EER B SEEEE (])

ErmEps ()

RMERER  AEENSEEEEBIEEE
N EBAHENEESHEERABARR
B R~ BITHEES  ENE SRR EITE
B HEEESESBIRKFE27 - 28+ 29 & 31
R o

RIMERR - AERBINETHENEEEER
ERBEMREERNT

Assets Liabilities
EE =
2018 2017 2018 2017

—®-N\E —FT+tF —B-\E T +F
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx TATT FEx TR

362,835 97,297 9,943 105,156

EEESEFIINERR  YRERERZREY
HEARINE R -



Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2017: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2017: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2017:
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where RMB
strengthen 10% against USD for the both years. For a 10%
weakening of RMB against USD, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the balances below
would be negative.

Increase in post-tax profit BR8N
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the

Group at the end of the reporting period.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and notes receivables, contract assets, other receivables,
consideration receivables, entrusted loan receivable, amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an
associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of these
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

B R EE i B R ()

Bm ks (1E)
TERFMAIIEASEENARB L EZTH
B/ B2E10% (ZE—+%F : 10%) WBRRE -
10% (ZZ—+F : 10%) AREEEFTRHE I
EEXRMREHIRMNAEEE - IRESITER
FEUINEHENREEERIAE - WAEXRH
IH10% (= —+4F | 10%) B oL E PR H
KRR ESTIENFAE - LTITHWEHERRAR
M 5 2 TTAE A S FHE 10% FIBR B 14 04 ) 32
ne tn ARME HETTHZE 10% @ BRELZ &A1
ERERAEHERNTZE  mEHREIEa -

2018 2017
—E-N\FE B S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
29,188 371

Biet - ERRREAEERREPRAERTTHEZ R E
BIRITHEER - R BN FIRARRITEE 2R

EE R R B ETE

AEENEERRERRABKESERARE
B ANEE  HtRUSRR - BEKE - &
WERTEER - UK B A7) e — e A RI3E
ERBRRHIA B ERRITEFRARBITE
8 o

REB-_NFE-_FT—tF+-_HA=+—H "
AEBRSUFHREETEEMASRCER
EMEEMARIZEANEERR - RZFE
ERNGFA BN KRAMR ZREE -
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed every year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of IFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade
balances individually or based on provision matrix. In this
regard, the Directors of the Group consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2018, five
(2017: five) customers amounting to HK$83,980,000 (2017:
HK$96,829,000) comprised approximately 42% (2017:
32%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers
are within the same mobile phone technology industry and
wireless communication modules industry in the PRC. The
management closely monitors the subsequent settlement of
the customers. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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B R EER B SEEEE (])

EEmBRR B ETE ()
JEW B 5 R

SEEREEERR  AREEEECRIK—
AR HEEEEERBEREERM - K
MERFELA > AEBERAAERTRFR
FRHABERPHNEREE - WIREPHEERE
R - EEPNRBER DS FETRE - &
SEDAFEMEERRF - MERREGHE
HEKZKREEE - i ARERESHER
1A FE PR B BR B 75 3R 5 22 R 38 O SR A AR IR TR HAME
EREER( T2 —1F: EEBEER)E
TTE RIS ARG Bt AR R E R Bt S -
AEBEERAR  AEENEERRE AER

o

REBGEEERBREFHBR  BBREFRR
ETEF -RZ=ZZT—\F+=ZA=+—8"
FBRAG(ZE—+F: AR)BFPWNZIES
83,980,000/ 7t ( —Z — 4 : 96,829,000
) hAEBENE SERL42% (=T
—+tF :32%) c RERFPURFEREKES
BEE BRI TR ERBMIEIRITE - 512
BETYERZERFPARZEERBRL - 5t
ME AARESRAAEE ZEERBEX
KRR o



Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Entrusted loan receivable

As at 31 December 2018, the Group invested into one
(2017: one) entrusted loan agreements (details are set out
in note 21). Under the entrusted loan agreement, the Group
provided funding to the loan borrowers through a licensed
bank, which acted as the trustee. The trustee bank does not
bear the credit risk of the entrusted loan receivable. Before
entering into the agreement, the Group assesses the credit
quality of the loan borrower and defines the terms of the loan.
The Group has concentration of risk on the entrusted loan
receivable as the loan is made to one (2017: one) entrusted
loan borrower. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group recognised interest income of HK$907,000
(2017: HK$7,021,000) as other income. In the opinion
of the Directors, the credit risk in respect to the entrusted
loan receivable and related interest receivable has impaired
and allowance for impairment loss has been recognised
accordingly during the year.

Bank balances and pledged bank deposits
The credit risk on bank balances are limited because the

counterparties are banks/financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by external credit-rating agencies.

B R EE i B R ()

FEmR R B ETE ()
JERZ B

R-B-N\E+-A=+—08 XEFRERN
— (Z2—tF : —p) ZREXWE (B
BRI E2]) - REBEZTERDZE - AEESE
BEIEIRIT (EAXTA) AEFERARKE
%o IRABTHEAEERESAERZEER
% o NEBEI Y Z WA - EFTEERERA
ZIEEE= WAERTEREH - AE@EMA—
B(Z2—1tF  —R) ZAERERARERE
WZAER  AmpESEERMEETER
REE-_Z—-N\FE+-_A=+—HIEEE K
£ @B RN B YA 07,0008 T(ZFE—+
#F:7,021,00087C) - EERE - BHAEKE
AERRIEBAERFEHEERBRERE B
FANE BRI AR B

RITRBREBIFRI T
MR 5T RERINMEEFRRETRIE

ARFZIRIT/ SREE - RRTESRZE
ERBAR -
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit rating

AR EEFR

Low risk

(el

Watch list

BERRE

Doubtful

L=

Loss

BB

Write-off

s

Description
L

The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
have any past-due amounts
RKHEHHENRREE - AR EETRETE

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle
after due date
EBALERIBARKER  HRFRINRERITE

=]
ZAr

There have been significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition through information developed internally
or external resources or overdue by 180 days or above
FERREEARENHNIIMNIEREHOER I
RiBEEM a8 180 Ak £

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired or
overdue by 360 days or more

BERPEENREERERRA0AFIAL

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery

BERAEBARABRENHAE - MASEUER
EIFIBR B A 8E
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B EBREE Y B R ()

EEmBRR B ETE ()

AEBHABEER
Al

Trade receivables/

contract assets/

finance lease receivables
EREZER GHEE,/
EhmEHE

Lifetime ECL -

not credit-impaired
EnREEREEER
— T EEERE

Lifetime ECL -

not credit-impaired
EnREEREEER
-~ EEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

EaEREREEESE
—TEEERE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
EnBERRREEERE
—{=ERE

Amount is written off

SRCEME

ERFEBEATHE

Other financial assets/
other items

AthemEE EH
12m ECL

12ERARBEERR

12m ECL

12ERBBEERE

Lifetime ECL -

not credit-impaired

FaBREREEES
—EEERE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
EnBERRREEESE
—f=ERE

Amount is written off

SHECEMH



Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, contract assets and finance lease

receivables which are subject to ECL assessment:

2018
ZE-)\f

Financial assets at amortised cost

FRERTARNEHEE

Bank balances and cash

RITEBEAE

Pledged bank deposits
BERRIER

Trade receivables
- goods and services
EWE SRR
—EmRR%

Notes receivables

USE

Other receivables

EftEYGR

Notes

it

28

28
28

27

27

27

27

21,27
21,27

External
credit rating

SAMEEFR

A (Aa3-A3
A (Aa3-A3
B (Baa2-Bal
B (Baa2-Bal

B (Baa2-Baa3)
B (Baa2-Baa3)

N/A
ER

A (A1-A3)
A (A1-A3)
B (Baa2-Bal)
B (Baa2-Bal)

N/A
NER
N/A
TER

B R EE i B R ()

FEmR R B ETE ()

TRFHIAEERETRMEER RGNS
BMEE ANBEERERBERENEER

Internal Gross carrying
creditrating  12m or lifetime ECL amount
ABEETR 12EARLELEREHEEFSE REARE
HK$'000
ThR
NA  12mECL 409,625
TER  1RERBGEESE
NA  12mECL 233,151
TER  12EAREHEEEE
647,776
NA  12mECL ‘ 57,557
TER  12EREBEESE
(Note b) Lifetime ECL (provjsion matrix) 47139
(Mb)  AnBEHEREESE- (REER)
Low risk Ln‘enme ECL (not credit impaired) 94,885
ERR  AHEHEBEERR(VARERE)
Watch list ~ Lifetime ECL (not credit |mpa|red) 43242
BErE EnfdRSEERE(TEEERE)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit |mpa|red) 13,773
R EnRARREESE(LEESRE)
Loss  Credit-impaired 24,027
BE GERE
223,066
NA  12mECL 24,19%
TNER D ERBRHEESE
NA  12mECL 8,268
TER  12EARBHEEER
32,464
(Notea)  12mECL 274,950
(WEa) DREABHEESE
Loss  Creditimpaired 3,615
BE RERE
278565

RANESEERAR —F /17 FH
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

External
2018 Notes credit rating
—E-N\% Mz MBEETR
Amount due from an associate 27 N/A
s eARHE 27 TR
Amounts due from non-controlling 27 N/A
shareholders of subsidiaries 27 TEA
FEWIHE A RFHER R R SR
Consideration receivables 39 N/A
FERRE 39 TEH
N/A
TER
Entrusted loan receivable 21 N/A
ERZTER 21 TR
QOther items
HitEE
Finance lease receivables 18 N/A
FEYEARE 18 TR
Contract assets 27 N/A
AHEE 27 Tigh
Notes:
a. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group

uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition.
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B EBREE Y B R ()

EEmBRR B ETE ()

Internal
credit rating ~ 12m or lifetime ECL
ABEETR L2EARLECEREHEEFSE

(Notea)  12mECL
(fisFa)  12(ARRHEEER

(Notea)  12mECL
(Wa) 12BRBHEEER

(Notea)  12mECL
(Wita) 12@ABHEERER
loss  Lifetime ECL (credit impaired)
BRE  AnRHEREHEESR(LEEERE)

Loss  Credit impaired

BRE (FERE

(Note b)  Lifetime ECL (provision matrix)
(Fith)  AnBHESEEEE (BELE)

(Noteb)  Lifetime ECL (provision matrix)
(Mb)  AwBHEREEESE (BERE)

Bat -

Gross carrying
amount

RE4E
HK$'000
T

4,400

44%

9,397

2,456

11,853

34,260

760

36,353

a. RABERAREERENS @ AREERHHER
AHEEERRE LSRR REEM



Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(continued)

Other receivables JE M5 EL B K

Consideration receivables FEWARAE

Amount due from an associate JRE W — FRIHsE & A B FRIA

Amounts due from non-controlling FELUTHT B A R)
shareholders of subsidiaries FEPEARAR R RRIE

For trade receivables, finance lease receivables and contract
assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9
to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group
determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a

provision matrix, grouped by past-due status.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for its customers because
these customers consist of a large number of small customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and contract
assets which are assessed based on provision matrix as at 31
December 2018 within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit impaired with
gross carrying amounts of HK$151,900,000 and HK$24,027,000
respectively as at 31 December 2018 were assessed individually.

MEEREEN B RERE (F)

FEmR R B ETE ()

Bz - ()

(&)
Past due Not past due Total
B I st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FExT
3,615 274,950 278,565
2,456 9,397 11,853
- 4,400 4,400
- 4,496 4,496

HELKEZRR BURERERANEEM
5 ARECRABRYEHREERF IR
FErtEEnAREREREBRNERER - KA
BEARNEEERLEERENEBEAN  RE
EFRAROMRR AN B AHEREEZSRE
MBIEERE

ERAEEEERBRERN - - AEEEA
BEBANRRTEEZFORE - TTERZS
B BEZABRRRRSHN TS - KK
EFRBAKGRNFAARISREANES - T
REHEREKEZRERRADEEEERRD
AEM REREESRIRE-_F—N\F+=
A=+—HREwBRRNPEEER(LEEER
B8) AR B ERRETTHE - ARBEEHR _-F
—NF+-A=+—HEABEAREELHRK
= &R (E (BRTE # (8 5 5l & 151,900,000 7T &
24,027,00078 7T ) BOEIS AETTERIFHE o

BRANEEEERAT 2 \EEH
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

B EBREE Y B R ()

EEmBRR B ETE ()

b. (continued) b. (%)

Gross carrying amount BRME 4 {E
Average Trade Contract Finance
loss rate receivables assets lease receivables
FYEEE FEW B 5 BRX BHEE FEhREHRSE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TER FET
Current (not past due) BUER (K@ HA) 35,470 36,353 760
1-60 days past due BH1ZE60K 0.1% 4,079 - -
61-180 days past due BH61 E 180K 2.1% 5,515 - -
181-365 days past due BH 181 365K 18.8% 2,075 - -
47,139 36,353 760

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group reversed
HK$527,000 and HK$Nil impairment allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets respectively, based on the provision
matrix. Impairment allowance of HK$1,608,000 and reversal of
impairment allowances HK$2,179,000 were made on debtors with
significant balances and credit impaired debtors respectively.
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At BREBIRE AR FHANE L BEE
HRfhE  WHRBAIEE T U EKALLE S BN
EENAEEERHEL B - BB EEE RN
DM ARERA BRE IS AR B RHRISE
¥ o

BE-T—\F+-A=1+—HLEFE ' £&
BB BEREEEDHSLEKE ZERREHNE
EREURERE 527,000/ TR EHT  THA
BEEREANEBIRR Rz ERERKERS
B VE H 5 B9 5 1,608,000 5% 7T K2 5 (B 3 5 1 [l
2,179,000/ 7T °



Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the

simplified approach.

As at 31 December 2017
under IAS 39

Adjustment upon application
of IFRS 9

As at 1 January 2018
- As restated

Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January:

— Transfer to credit impaired

— Impairment losses recognised

— Impairment losses reversed

New financial assets originated

Exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2018

R_E—+F+-A=1—H
(REIRREFHERIZE 395

RERBRM SRS R
FIRENBE

RZE—-\F—A—H
— &5
R—A—BRERN
SRITAMBE
-BEEEER
-BREZRESE
~BRERESE
RO EREE
B 5 AR

R-E-\F+-A=+—H

B R EE i B R ()

FEmR R B ETE ()

TR RIBE R E W E 5 R
R L RHEHE SRR

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL

credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
EamBHRN AR RN
FEER FEEE

(VEEERE) (EERE) @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TEx TEx

- 22,455 22,455

4,000 - 4,000

4,000 22,455 26,455

(1,395) 1,395 -

75 3,309 3,384

(2,031) (5,982) (8,013)

3,037 494 3,531

(193) (1,133) (1,326)

3,493 20,538 24,031

RANESEERAR —F /17 FH
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities.

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for entrusted loan receivable.

B R EER B SEEEE (])
EEmBRR B ETE ()

BEEMBETEBAEREV BN KW EE
ARAT U [ TR - RIS SR B O R R B R
R EBAETEERCETRERFR
(ABRFEERE) - CHMBHEKE SRR E
AR FINEHAITES ©

TRESIC LR E T E I R B 1R
BBk -

Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
EaniB B TERE B ER

As at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 and

1 January 2018

Changes due to financial instruments

recognised as at 1 January:

— Impairment losses recognised (Note 21)

As at 31 December 2018
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(EERME)
HK$'000
T
R=F—tF+=-A=+—H
(IREIFR 5T 4ERIEE 39 5%)
;r=ZE—N\F—HF—H -
W— B — B iR
SRMIT AR
— BRI ERE (FE21) 8,314
RZZE—N\F+=A=+—H 8,314




Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for other receivables (Note 21).

As at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 and
1 January 2018

Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January:

— Impairment losses recognised

New financial assets originated

As at 31 December 2018

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances

that has been recognised for consideration receivables.

As at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 and
1 January 2018

Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January:
— Impairment losses recognised (Note 39)

B R EE i B R ()

FEmR R B ETE ()

TR EMERS
< $ifk (BRE21)

KIR F H HERR O S 1R 18

Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
Fan B ERTE B E B E1E

(zERE)
HK$'000
FHTT
RZZE—tF+=A=+—H
(B 25 ERIZE 395%)
r=_ZT—-NF—H—H =
»—A—BRERH
SR TEMKES
—BERREEE 2,708
BN CREE 907
R=ZE—N\E+=—A=+—~1 3,615

TRETIERERRBIELERNEEREZ
EE
Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
HK$'000
S AR REEEE
(EERE)
FAT
RZEB—tF+-A=+—H
(REFR &5 RIS 395%)
E_F—-—N\F—H—H -
®— A — BR8N
SR T EPTEE
—Eﬁmm%gﬁmﬁwm 2,456
2,456
BANEEEERAR —FT—/(FFH
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
bank borrowings amounted to HK$83,887,000 (2017:
HK$84,104,000). All such bank borrowings included a
repayment on demand clause exercisable at any time by
the relevant banks and are classified as current liabilities. In
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements, the aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows amount to HK$84,012,000 (2017: HK$86,057,000).
However, should the relevant banks exercise their rights to
demand immediate repayment, the principal amounts of
these bank borrowings amounting to HK$83,887,000 (2017:
HK$84,104,000) will be repayable on demand. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the Directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

The Directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of bank
borrowings as discussed above and the short-term liabilities
which are required to be repaid within three months from the
end of the reporting period. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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B R EER B EEEE (R)

REETmEE

ERRPDECRARTH  AEESERNER
ReRRCEFEREREEEBR /T RHAIK
o ARNAEEZENRE  LRERERE
KB E BEEESERRITEEZER
VAREIR T & BREL5H ©

R-_ZE—NE+-_F=+—8 HB7HEE
H) BR [ {5 3£ 83,887,000/ T (—Z&F — + 4
84,104,000/ 7T) - A RITIEEHE B RTT
ATAMERBFRETEMZRERER G Ao
BHARBEE REEEHRZTHEEAE -
AeRFERE T4 E84,012,000%8 7T
(ZZ—+4 :86,057,000/87T) ° A1 W
BRARITITEREF ERENRER  ZER1T
&2 N4 %883,887 0008 (—E—+H4F :
84,104,000 ) I BN EKFF(EE - ZEE
REEOF AR © ARAREZRBIBITTA
AT REITF AR R kAN R -

ZRIAKEER R HRORKES R (B
EXPrE R IRITIE B & R R F R IR E B
RE=ZBARNEENERER) 2R EFR
BRPETRRER - AEEBBFHEERE
HEERRST YR EERA GRS
ARERAEREENEHE  KMERRBES
B o



Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
entrusted loan receivable, certain other receivables and bank
borrowings (2017: entrusted loan receivable).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
(2017: variable-rate bank borrowings and bank balances).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk was mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of LPR arising
from the Group’s variable interest rate bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change on
market interest rate and will consider hedging changes in
market interest rates should the need arise. A 100 basis points
(2017: 100 basis points) change represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a result
of the change of market interest rate is insignificant and thus
variable-rate bank balances are not included in the sensitivity
analysis.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate of bank
borrowings had been 100 basis point (2017: 100 basis point)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
would decrease/increase by HK$Nil (2017: HK$631,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

B R EE A B R ()

FE mbg
$'§l”$@ﬁ“lﬁﬂﬁ$2§ﬂﬁﬁ%§%%ﬁ
o mTEMERERMRITEERR(Z
—tF  BREREEF) °

R-ZE—NE+-A=+—8 AEERTE
IRITHEBR(ZT—LF  FERITEERIET
ER) AR MAIERER -

R=B—tE+=A=1—0 AKERER
Bk R £ B AR R 8 R B
47 WRERFISRD) -

IR (B3R T AR IR R R SRR IR

IR B R B 1 R T 5 A1 2 H@jﬁﬁ%xzfﬁ?ﬁ
RERER © WATHNH ERZ R AT S E
228 o 100AES (=T —+tF : 100/EEE)
ZEBIRKREBEMTEMEAEERZE

BUEES T

%ﬂ_ﬂimﬁa REBEAMS M EEH TSR
ERET 2 RRRBRRABRTA - Bt - 8

!@?Eﬁ M E s 2 ERITAR

REBIRRE DT B RERSHREAEEDN
TR TERBEFRNKRERE - MBTEERNE L
Ft/ TR I00EESN (=T —tF : 100EE
) MATE EMEHEFITE  AEEHE
- N\F+_A=FT—HIEFENGREBRF
e g MEAET (ZF—+14F : 631,000
BIL) c EEEZRHARAEEZERITEEDN
=R -

RANESBARAR —F /1755
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Price risk

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group is exposed to
other price risk through its listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL and FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale investment).
The Group also invested in certain unquoted equity securities
for long term strategic purposes which had been designated
as FVTOCI.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. If the price of the respective investment in listed
equity securities measured at FVTOCI had been 10% higher/
lower, assuming all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s other comprehensive income (net of tax) for the
year ended 31 December 2018 would increase/decrease by
HK$2,898,000 (2017: HK$6,019,000). If the prices of the
respective investment in listed equity securities measured at
FVTPL had been 10% (2017: 10%) higher/lower, assuming
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 would increase/
decrease by HK$1,526,000 (2017: Nil).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial
assets and FVTPL (2017: available-for-sale investments) are
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
estimating the fair value, the Group uses market observable
data to the extent it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The
chief financial officer of the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
technigues and inputs to the model. The chief financial officer
reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company
at the end of the reporting period to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value.
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B R EER B S EEER (R)

1E15m AR
REB-_NFER_ZF—+F+-_HA=+—8"
AEBRERAFEF ABRSE RRAFERFTA
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FAMEHERE) MESEMERRR - &
SENAREREENRES TERERAE
7 ROEERRAFEFAREMEEEES -

T X2 GRE DT TR R S HAR P 32 i
AEREREE - HRRAFEFAELME
mW S EZ EMBRAR S EBRENE
BT TFE10% - 1 FrA H i 2 8 =T
2 AEEHE_ZT-N\F+-_A=+—H
EENE M2 EKES (RBR) K505
4>2.898,000/8 7t (= Z — -+ : 6,019,000/%8
7T) o MR R R FER ABRFTEZ EWBRA
BHHEBERENER LA TR10%(ZF
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® AEEHE_ZT-)/\Ft_H=1t—H1
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as

Fair value at hierarchy
RATASZATE NVERE
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
“E-)\E 3t
tZA=+-H +=A=t-A
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén T
Financial assets
SHEE
1. Available-for-sale investment - 80253 Levell
- listed equity security
A ERE 1
— FiRAE S
2. Equity instruments at FVTOCI 38,646 - lewell
- listed equity security
BATE AL M2 Bl RATA R
- LiRAES
3. Equity instruments at FVTOCI 503 - lewel3
- unlisted equity security £=R
EATEG AL 2 ERE RATE
—J FTRAES
4. Financial assets at FVTPL 18,278 - lewll
- listed equity security
BATET AR SREE g
- FiRAES

B R EIE i B R ()

FEFZBERER L FEGBZLHEES
2FE

AEEBHEREEDN SRS WRIZAFHE
e TREHEEZSEREEATFEZS
E(LERMERZEERTRBARE) - U
ERBAFEFEHABBZ TEHEREERLQ
FEFENIBZATFERBER(—E2=H) 2
B e

Significant Relationship of
unobservable  unobservable inputs

Vialuation technique(s) inputs to fair value
and key input(s) EXTUER  FUEERAHE
HERAREEEALE BAEE HAVENEE
Quoted bid prices in an active markets. N/A N/A
E-ERmAREE NER NER
Quoted bid prices in an active markets. N/A N/A
E-ERmARRE NER R

Anincrease in the
adjusted net assets,
holding all other

Adjusted net asset approach - inthis  Adjusted net
approach, the share of the net asset value - asset value
was Used to capture the present value of of the

the expected future economics benefits investee variables constant,
to be derived from the ownership would increase
of the investeg the carrying amount.
HRREEREA-EATAT REHZZ AAAHEE
BEAETEPAIGERERE  BEE  RETEomEs
HRERREL JBEAR BES BEFEEN
BENE R SHESEN-
Quoted bid prices in an active markets. N/A N/A
EERmATRE yilid NER

RANESEERAR —T /1755
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Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

EMITAZDPERE ()
FEFZBERER L FPEGBZLHEESZ
AFE (F)

BB TFEFAEZEHE

Equity instruments

at FVTOCI
EATERTA
Hh 2 A
ZIRATE
HK$'000
FA&T
As at 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF—HA—HK
—E—+F+A=+—H =
Total loss in other comprehensive income Hit 2 miis < B8R (2,923)
Purchases BE 3,426
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-—NFE+ZA=+—H 503

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of
HK$2,923,000 loss relating to unlisted equity securities
classified as equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the end
of the current reporting period and is reported as changes of
“assets revaluation reserve”.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018
5 —N\F+ZA=+—HILFE

43. TEMB LA 2FHE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

R-B-NER-F—LF+-A=+—B%
ARZHBARRELT -

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital KARFERATE/ FRER LA
Name of subsidiary HRRL/ ERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEAR AR REREZ R/ EHER B 3 IEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\F ZEHE ZB-N\F EAE
SIM Technology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited Britsh Virgin Islands USD12,233 RARR
(BVI") LER 12335
ZTEMETAT=H
EBRAES
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REETTEARAR Samoa USD2,002 RARR
“TNAMETZATER  ERER200ET
EEDHE
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 Novernber 1993 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing and Handsets and
LEREZRE The PRC RMB200,000,000 10T terminals business in the PRC and
“TNZET-AAE  HER Property management
HE AR 200,000,007 TR ETR R BRGEE
RY=HEEE
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
bhsgE The PRC 1SD5,000,000 and 10T terminals business and
“TE-FT-ARA AR Electronics manufacturing services
HE 5,000,005 business in the PRC
BN SR RASF R RES
PnE B RETRERBILES
£
Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited" 23 September 2003 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
LEBREHETARAG! The PRC 1SD400,000 marketing of the Group's products and
“ET-FAACTZR  EffER provides logistics services in the PRC
lE] 40000057 EPERE e HEREEALE

EmREHRRHE
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)

43. TEWE R T 2F1F (&)
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Name of subsidiary

HEAAER

Simcom International Holdings

Limited

Suncom International Holdings

Limited

SIM Technology HK Limited

RAHREEARAR

Shanghai Speedcomm Technology

Limited!

LERURRABNARAA

Max Vision Limited
REBRAA

Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited!
FERET (L) ARAR!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
e/
AHRE

2 October 2003

BVI
2
EBRUkE

12 January 2004

BVI
“ZIME-AT=R
ERRAHS

21 April 2004

Hong Kong
“ETMEMA=T-A
&r

16 November 2005

The PRC
“EERET-A1AA
HE

17 September 2003
Hong Kong
ZEEZENATLRA
&r

8 December 2003

The PRC
ZFE=FZANA
HE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRTRAR

R4 /sER

Ordinary share USD1
LER1ET

Ordinary share USD1
Lkl

Ordinary share HK$1
LAk 1B

Registered capital
RMB7,500,000

Al
ARET500,0007

Ordinary shares HK$2
Lhko#TL

Registered capital
USD200,000

Al
20000057

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
ANTMERAERE/ ARERZILA
Directly Indirectly
E# ]
2018 2017 2018 2017
BN\ ZEtF ZB-\F T HE

- = 100% 100%

- = 100% 100%

- = 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

- = 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

Principal activities

IEER

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Provision of administrative services in
Hong Kong
ERBREORRS

Design and development of Handsets
and [0 terminals business and
Electronics manufacturing services
business in the PRC

PR R RAEF RS
B RRETHERGHREES

Investment holding

RERR

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products and
provides logistics services in the PRC

TPERE 6 HERKEASE
EmRREMRRSE
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Name of subsidiary

i) PG

Simon Wireless®
PARESRE

Shanghai SIM Technology Limited”

Rk (L) BRAT!

Shanghai Simcom Electronic
Limited®
LENESFERAR

Shenyang SIM Technology Limited?

Rk (18 BRAF

Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited

(*SYRE")?
FAEZ(IR)BRAR?

Shenyang SIM Simcom*
TBRAARE!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
e/
BHREE

31 October 2006
ZEEETA=T-R
HE

2 August 2006

The PRC
Z25ENAZR
HE

21 November 2006

The PRC
“EEET-A-1-H
HE

25 Qctober 2007

The PRC
“ERLETAZTERA
HE

8 November 2007

The PRC
“ZT3+E+-AN\A
HE

24 July 2008

The PRC
“22)\ErAZThA
HE

Proportion of nominal value of

Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

share capital/ held by the Company
registered capital ANAMERAEE/ ARERZILA
EERAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R4 /sER E# ] TEEH
2018 2017 2018 217
Z2-N\E ZE-tE ZB-N\E EF-tF
Registered capital - - - 100%  Design and development of wireless
1USD1,000,000 communication modules business in
AR the PRC
1,000000% 7 EPEU R RS RRENRA
£
Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in
RMB40,000,000 the PRC and property management
AR TP HRRE REERRDF
ARE40,000,0007 s
Registered capital - - - 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
1SD200,000 marketing of the Group” s products
AR and provides logistics services in
200000% 7 the PRC
EPERE e HEREEASE
EmRREmRRS
Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in
USD10,000,000 the PRC and property management
il TP HRRE REBRRDF
10,000,000% 7 HEEE
Registered capital - - 60% 60%  Properties development in PRC
USD20,000,000 frEfENEERE
AR
20,000,000
Registered capital - = 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets and
RMB30,000,000 Electronics manufacturing services
Rl business in the PRC
AR30,0000007 ISR RREFRRE TR

BB RERZHS

RANBEBERAT — T/ FFH 231
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EM B AR 2 F1E (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital ARAFBRAEE/RER LA
Name of subsidiary HRAYL/ R EETRAE Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEAR AR RERMH A/ HRER E# ] IREH

2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\E ZTtF ZE-\E Tt

Shenzhen Simcom Technology 28 August 2008 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Electronics
Limited* The PRC RMB5,000,000 manufacturing services business

MIERENEERAR “ES\ENAZTAR  ifREA inthe PRC

i AJRH5,000,0007C PR E R RREE T RER
Simecom Holdings HK Limited 22 September 2008 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERESERAR Hong Kong HKS1 RERR

“ER\EAACT-R  ERERIET

&
Shanghai iLove Limited! 21 February 2009 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
LEVEAESRMERRT  ThePRC USD3,000,000 RERR

ZEENFZACTHA AR

i 3,000,000%7
Shanghai Xinkang Electronic 5 January 2009 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Electronics

Technology Limited* The PRC RMB20,000,000 manufacturing services business

HEERETHEERARY  ZTENE-AER &R inthe PRC

il AR 20,0000007 BRI SR RER S TR
Goldsey Limited 31 January 2008 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
BtARAR Hong Kong HK$18,000,000 RABR

ZEEN\E-A=T-H E£BRI8000000AT

B
Smartwireless Technology Limited" 13 February 2007 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
FRERRERREERAR! The PRC RMB20,500,000 and 0T terminals business in the PRC

ZTREE-RTER AR KPR R R RS

t AR 20,500,000 £

232 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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Name of subsidiary

i) PG

Shanghai Mobile Phone Public
Testing Platform Co., Ltd.*
EEFEASALRETEAR

G

Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limited®
FNRAREFERAR’

Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited*
TEREREARAR!

Jiangsu Yunmao Intemnet of Things
Technology Limited*
THZEMMAREERA A

Shanghai Wide-Top Financial
Leasing Co., Ltd.!
LEESRARERRAR!

Jiangsu Hangjin Electronic
Technology Limited®
TEMFEFREERAD.

Alpha Apex Limited

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
e/
BHREE

21 December 2009
The PRC

“EENET-AC1-A

HE

7 March 2013

The PRC
“T--£-A+A
LG

24 Apil 203
The PRC
“3-ZMA-1RE
i

7 June 2013

The PRC
ZE-ZF5AKR
el

17 July 2013

The PRC
“E-=ELAHA
Gl

9July 2013

The PRC
“E-=EtANA
HE

26 October 2012

Samoa
ZE-ZEHA 1A
BEDHE

Proportion of nominal value of

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRTRAR

R4 /sER

Directly

ER
2018
Z2-)\f

2017
5t

Registered capital - -
RMB20,000,000

a0
AR20,000,00070

Registered capital - -
RMB120,000,000

iftER
ARE120,000,0007C

Registered capital - -
RMB50,000,000

AR
AR 50,000,000

Registered capital - -
RMB10,000,000

Ry
ARE10,000,0007

Registered capital - -
USD17,000,000

AR
17,000,000%7

Registered capital - -
RMB30,000,000

iftEs
ARE30,000,0007

Registered capital - -
USD1
HERIET

share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
ANAMERAEE/ ARERZILA

Indirectly

2018
“E-\§

87.5%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

B
2017
“E+E

81.5%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

RANBEBGRAE —F—/FFH

Principal activities

IZER

Design and development of Handsets
and |07 terminals business in the PRC

RE R R AR ARG ALs
£

Properties development in the PRC
il 35S

Investment holding

REZR

Development of internet of things system
and online to online equipment in the
PRC

kP AREIRAZRREE R

Finance lease service in the PRC

EhERtRERERS

Development of internet of things system
and onling-to-offline equipment in the
PRC

EREREIREATREER

Investment holding

RASK

233
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)

43. TEWE DT 2=FH1F (&)

Name of subsidiary

HEAAER

Shanghai Boshen Vending Machine
Limited”
HERREHESRERLA

Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited*
LEERESERAR!

Shanghai Yunmao 10T Limited*
LREEMBENEARAT

Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech
Limited*
GRS R RARAR

Shanghai Simcom System Limited"
ARBERERER (L)
BRAR!

Hangzhou Kawo Automation
Technology Co., Limited®
MARREBHEREERARE

Guandong Chentuo Robot
Technology Co., Limited*
ERRABBANRERAR!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
e/
BHRE

5 August 2011

The PRC
“2—£\AEA
al5i

28 August 2014

The PRC
“E-mENAZT/R
il

11 October 2014

The PRC
“2MmETAT-H
ke

28 October 2014

The PRC
Z2METAZTR
HE

17 March 2014

The PRC
ZE-ME=fTtH
28

13 February 2015

The PRC
“E-RECRT=H
il

11 March 2015

The PRC
“Z-1%=R1-H
HE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRTRAR

R4 /sEs

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000

iHiER
AR5,0000007C

Registered capital
RMB38,500,000
A
AR 38,500,0007C

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

FRalig-p
ARE10,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB30,000,000

Al
AR30,000,00070

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000

iHER
ARE20,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB6,000,000

&R
ARH6,0000007C

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

Rl
ARE10,000,0007

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
KDARERAER/ ERER LA
Directly Indirectly
B ]
2018 2017 2018 2017
Z2-N\E ZE-tE ZE-N\F E-tF
- - - 100%
- - 98.7% 9%8.7%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 75%
- - 100% 100%
- - - 80%
- - 100% 100%

Principal activities

IEER

Finance lease service and trading of
snacks in the PRC

EPERHEERERER
t=3R87

Procurement and trading of snacks in the
PRC

EREUSTRERRES

Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREEERES

Development of internet of things system
and online-to-offline equipment in the
PRC

ErEREIRRZIRER R

Building design and construction of
smart home in the PRC
AR RRERI AR

Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
EPEREE D RERE

Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
EPERZ L RERE
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Ra MR
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43. TENMB R A 215 (&)

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered capital
Name of subsidiary HRRL/ R BETRAE
WEAR AR AR R4 /ifEs
Dongguan Xinlubiao Automation 11 May 2012 Registered capital
Equipment Technology Co., The PRC RMB15,000,000
Limiteg® Z2-CEIAT-B AR
REMMASAD(RERE  PE AR 150000007
ARAR?
Shenyang Jingxingcheng Automation 24 August 2015 Registered capital
Technology Co., Limited? The PRC RMB10,000,000
IEREHEDIENERAT: —3-REN\AZTBR =fEX
H AR10,000,0007
Hefei Yunhao Trade Co., Limited* 19 December 2014 Registered capital
ERERESERAR! The PRC RMB1,500,000
ZE-RETZATAR AR
HE AR 1,500,007
Hangzhou Yunyou Trade Co., 3 November 2015 Registered capital
Limited* The PRC RMB2,000,000
WNERERERAA! Z3-REt-AzR EfER
ik ARE2,0000007C
Shenzhen Yunding Vending 16 January 2015 Registered capital
Operators Co., Limited* The PRC RMB7,000,000
MIMZLEHEEREEER —3-146-At~E  #fiEx
AN lE] ARET,000,0007
Shanghai Bachen Inteligent 14 October 2015 Registered capital
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB5,500,000
HEERERGERAR! Z3-RETATEE AR
mE AR 55000007
Shanghai Jizhi Automation 29 September 2014 Registered capital
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB20,000,000
LEEEEBMEERARY ZF-BEAAZTAR AR
H ARE20,000,0007

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company

ANAMERAEE/ ARERZ LA

Directly Indirectly Principal activities

ER ] TEEH

2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\E ZE-tE -0\ EAE
- - - 63.6%  Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC

EPEREEDRERE

- - 60% 60%  Development of automated test

equipment in the PRC

ErEREEDRERE

- - 51% 51%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
EPEIEFERES

- - 100% 51%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
P EERES

- - 70% 70%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
PN EERES

- - 100% 100%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREETRES

- - 100% 100%  Development ofinternet of tings system

and online-to-offline equipment in the
PRC
EREREIBEATRER SR

RANBEBERAT — T/ FFH 235
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)

SETBIMAMIE
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43. TEWE DT 2=F1F (&)

Name of subsidiary

HELFER

Shanghai Pami Intelligent

Technology Co., Limited*

LEERRENRERAA

Technology Co., Limited*

Wuhan Yunbang Supply Chain

Management Co., Limited*

REEAHERERARAR

Ningbo Yunjing Supply Chain

Management Co., Limited*

ERERURECEARLA

Management Co., Limited*

Guangdong Chengshida Automation

ERRIEERBIHBARLA

Fujiansheng Yunxiang Supply Chain

RRAZANERERARLD!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
AL/ R
AHRE

14 March 2016

The PRC
“F-nEZAtIA
e

21 April 2016

The PRC
“EREMA-T-H
hE

30 June 2016

The PRC
ZErErA=1H
Gl

24 June 2016

The PRC
ZE-E~AZTRA
ke

3 August 2016

The PRC
ZZ-ENA=R
HE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Proportion of nominal value of

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BEGE

R4 /e

Directly

BR
2018
Z2-)\E

2017
3t

Registered capital - -
RMB10,000,000

iHiER
AR¥10,000,0007

Registered capital - -
RMB10,000,000

&R
AR%10,000,0007

Registered capital - -
RMB2,000,000

Rl
AR 2,000,007

Registered capital - -
RMB2,000,000

Rl
ARE2,000,0007

Registered capital - -
RMB10,000,000

Rl
AK10,000,00070

share capitall registered capital
held by the Company
ANAMERAEE/ ARERZ LA

Indirectly
]

2018 2017
“E-\F 5t
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 51%
51% 51%
100% 100%

Principal activities

IBER

Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
ERERE A RARE

Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
ErERZE D RERE

Trading of snacks in the PRC
ErEREERES

Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREEERES

Trading of snacks in the PRC
EPENEERES



L Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE”) registered in the PRC. 1 FEREFMRZINGBERSE -

2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC. 2 EFRBFMzFINEERE -

3 Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC. 3 BEFRERETREFMZIINEBERE -

€ Domestic Company registered in the PRC. 2 EFPBFRzERNERE -

5 The Company was disposed at 28 February 2018. B ZARNRZE—\F-ZA=+N\BEE-

6 The Company was de-registered at 29 September 2018. ® ZARNRZE—\FNA =+ BEUEZEM -

7 The Company was disposed at 28 December 2018. 7 ZARNRZE—\F+=_A=+N\BEE -

8 The Company was disposed at 28 January 2018. g ZARNRZE—\F—A=+N\BLEE-

9 The Company was disposed at 22 August 2018. 3 ZARNR=ZE—\FNA=+=BEE -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at N £ AT (] Bff B8 A BRI AN B AR S AN B AR ]

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

A R AR B ES -

A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Handsets and ZEWBRATRE DN EHE TFH R B AR
IOT terminals business, Electronics manufacturing services InERS BT RUERSEERER - WHAR
business, 0T system and 020 business, Intelligent SINEEET - S REER - MEEREY
manufacturing business, Property development and Property *HEEE - ZEWB AR 2 EBEEH5 0
Management. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are T~

summarised as follows:

Principal activities

EREY

Handset and IOT terminals business
F e R B A IR T
Electronics manufacturing services business
B RE RIS R RS

|OT system and 020 business

L EES S A

Intelligent manufacturing business
BReBRIEER

Property development

MEER

Property management
MEREERE

Principal place of

of business Number of subsidiaries
FTEEEME MEARIZA
2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F
PRC 8 8
HR
PRC 2 4
[
PRC 11 12
H
PRC 7 8
[
PRC 2 2
B
PRC 3 1
H

RANESEERAR —T /1755
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The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling

interests:

Name of subsidiaries

HEARER

SYRE

FlEx

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-contralling interests

FAEREL BRI EANELA

Summarised financial information for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Place of
incorporation
and principal
place of business

AMALREEEELY

PRC
R

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

F2EWBAT :
Proportion of
ownership interests Profit (loss)
and voting rights held by allocated to
non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERER AREFEREE L
BRREERRZELS i (58)
2018 2017 2018 2017
= S I U C
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tién Fin
40% 40% (18,122) 474

TRHJIAEENEFTHRAEANIERES 2

Accumulated non-
controlling interests

EHE 2N
2018 2017
ZE-\F Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T
53,942 75,040
9,463 26,441

63,405 101,481

NEBHEAEAEERER B ARNEE
T N\EERZE—+tF+ZA=+—HLHF
BZHEERBBINT o TXATE B ER
BEE Ty ARIEREEAA R R



SYRE

EBREX
2018 2017
—E-N\F Rt
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets EMBEE 80 201
Current assets mENE E 143,385 274,020
Current liabilities mENEE (8,610) (86,622)
Total equity R AREE 134,855 187,599
Revenue A 186,123 77,209
Expenses 53 (231,428) (76,023)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (B518) &8 (45,305) 1,186
Other comprehensive (expense) AFEFEEMEE (FAX) WS
income for the year (7,439) 12,105
Total comprehensive (expense) AFEE2E(FY) WES4E58
income for the year (52,744) 13,291
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to N3 IBRE(GANERE (E518) % F
— the owner of SYRE -ERABECHEAA (27,183) 712
— non-controlling interests of SYRE - EAMBXE 2 RS (18,122) 474
(Loss) profit for the year REE (E518) 55 (45,305) 1,186
Other comprehensive (expense) income 314 18 fE {5 AN & H
for the year attributable to 2 (X)) &
— the owner of SYRE -RHBEEZHEEA (4,463) 7,263
— non-controlling interests of SYRE - BB IR ER (2,976) 4,842
Other comprehensive (expense) income ZN4E & Eth 2 (FI2 ) Wzs
for the year (7,439) 12,105
Total comprehensive (expense) income R3I|% T8 fE (L AR EE 2 H
for the year attributable to (R Wz1asa
— the owner of SYRE -RHBEEZHEEA (31,646) 7,975
— non-controlling interests of SYRE - RAEFE IR ER (21,098) 5,316
Total comprehensive (expense) income 7N & 2 U zs (B ) Wak
for the year (52,744) 13,291
Net cash outflow from (used in) g ERENFTS (FTA) IR E R FEE
operating activities and KBS RA i) 558
net cash inflow (outflow) 51,494 (22,272)

RANEEBERAT —F /| FFH 239
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Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables

Bank balances

Financial assets at FVTPL

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets (liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2018

FRBEE
R—HBRARZRE
FE LB 8 X R RIR

RBEE

H it fEH IR

RITHEER
BATVEFABGZ ERMEE

wREBAE
FESTH B & RIFIR

H At R AR S IR T 5K0R

RBEE(BFE)FH
HEERRBAE
BEXRK R

(e

G

Rz

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
179,803 179,803
1,262,621 1,038,477
1,442,424 1,218,280
2,418 618
23,780 11,627
18,278 -
44,476 12,245
11,806 11,806
1,239 3,288
13,045 15,094
31,431 (2,849)
1,473,855 1,215,431
252,025 255,955
1,221,830 959,476
1,473,855 1,215,431




Movement in the Company’s reserves

At 1 January 2017

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Transfer upon exercise of
share options

Issue of new shares upon
exercise of share options

Dividend paid

Share options lapsed

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

At 31 December 2017

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividend paid

Share options lapsed

Repurchase of ordinary shares

At 31 December 2018

RZZ—+5-A—H
AEERFIR
PENGEE
NG
i
IR RER
BT
BATRE
BRERN
BANRESE 2
ARE

RIB—t%
t=A=t-A

BB
BoEER

RZF-N\F
t=A=t-H

ARREEEE

Capital Share Accumulated
Share  redemption option Special (losses)
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
git
RVEE 4ErmERE BRERE BHRE  (BR)ER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TARL ThARL TARL TARL THET
831,363 2,282 29,512 193,848 (93,725) 963,280
- - - - 20,087 20,087
297 = (297) = = =
406 - - - - 406
- - - - (25,579) (25,579)
= = (751) = 751 -
- - 1,282 - - 1,282
832,066 2,282 29,746 193,848 (98,466) 959,476
- - - - 413,548 413,548
- - - - (143,335)  (143,335)
- - (10,515) - 10,515 -
(7,859) 3,930 - - (3,930) (7,859)
824,207 6,212 19,231 193,848 178,332 1,221,830
RZZ—NF—A=0 " LBEABEEX (XA

On 3 January 2019, SYRE, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and EEREREEFR AR (Shanghai
Chenyu Investment Limited, “Shanghai Chenyu”), the
non-controlling shareholder of SYRE, entered into a loan
agreement, pursuant to which SYRE shall provide a loan in
the principal amount of RMB33 million to Shanghai Chenyu.
The loan bears interest at the rate of 4.35% per annum and
is repayable on 31 December 2019. Details of the above
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3

January 2019.

AREEEMBAR) B EBRERERBRA
Al ([ BRI RMEE 2 FEHERARR)
RN ER B Bt KEERMEESR LS
EHERHEASE A ARK33,000,000THE
oo BRIREMRAI5%FEBIL AR -B—R
F+-—A=1+—HEEZ - LHlFBERAQFH
HAE—T-NE—A=-BNAEHHEE -

RABERBARAR —F |55
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Group’s effective interest

Location in the properties
b B AEBRYEP ZERER

Block A, SIM Technology Building,
No. 633 Jinzhong Road,
Changning District,

Shanghai, the PRC

B LERERSEK 633 5%
BB A AE

Block B, SIM Technology Building,
No. 633 Jinzhong Road,
Changning District,

Shanghai, the PRC

B DB RERSEK 633 5t
EARHEAEBE

An industrial complex located at
No. 888 Shengli Road,

Qingpu District,

Shanghai,

the PRC

Bl 85 RS RS 888 5%
F—E TR

An industrial complex, located at
No. 37 Shenbei Road,

Shenbei New District,

Shenyang,

Liaoning Province,

the PRC

P EIEZE R &S T AR
EILER 37 M — AT R
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100%

100%

100%

100%

Approximate gross
floor area

BREEEEE
(sq. m)
(FEFHK)

4,946

11,262

12,685

12,053

Usage
Jizkes

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

Industrial

T%

Industrial

T

Category of
lease

HAER

Medium-term lease

AR AY

Medium-term lease

AR A

Medium-term lease

T AR A

Medium-term lease

REITRAY



For the year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=t-BLEFE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“E-MmE “E-nF “ERE “E—+tF —Z-N\§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FTET FHT THL
RESULTS £
Revenue N 2,352,353 3,197,289 2,724,390 3,258,517 2,312,230
Profit before taxation BREA AR A 50,175 89,650 96,500 138,796 299,646
Taxation HIE (16,029) (19,775) (22,067) (36,190) (84,607)
Profit for the year REER 34,146 69,375 74433 102,606 215,039
Attributable to: PAR AL PSS
Owners of the Company AREEA A 23,967 64,645 77,278 111,651 238,012
Non-controlling interests RS 10,179 5,230 (2,845) (9,045) (22,973)
34,146 69,875 74,433 102,606 215,039
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-A
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-NF —F—0F —FNF T tF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TAT TAT FET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHARE
Total assets BEE 3,074,583 3,396,089 3,479,800 3,630,405 2,972,011
Total liabilities BaE (1,076,129) (1,397,705) (1,347 253) (1,407,114) (749,572)
1,998 454 1,998,384 2,132,547 2,223,291 2,222,439
Equity attributable to owners KAREEA
of the Company FEfb R 1,912,011 1,895,779 2,026,746 2,121,810 2,159,034
Non-controlling interests JeEiE R 86,443 102,605 105,801 101,481 63,405
1,998 454 1,998,384 2,132,547 2,223,291 2,222,439
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Corporate Information

N R AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms YEUNG Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr WONG Cho Tung (President)
Ms TANG Rongrong
Mr CHAN Tat Wing, Richard
(resigned as Executive Director
with effect from
29 September 2018)
Mr LIU Jun (Chief executive officer)

Independent
non-executive Directors

Mr LIU Hing Hung

Mr WANG Tianmiao

Mr WU Zhe

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
Mr WANG Tianmiao

Mr WU Zhe

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
Mr WANG Tianmiao

Mr WU Zhe

Mr WONG Cho Tung
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms CHAN Chi Yin

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO
HONG KONG LAWS

LCH Lawyers LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of Communications

Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank

BERMUDA REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HONG KONG REGISTERED OFFICE

Unit 1206, 12th Floor,
Billion Trade Centre
31 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong

Hong Kong

SHANGHAI HEAD OFFICE

Block A, SIM Technology Building
No. 633 Jinzhong Road
Changning District

Shanghai

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.sim.com

STOCK CODE

2000
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